06036124

()
T ARRLAAEN

Fc
JR-3(-05




LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholder:

Cronos delivered solid operational results in 2005, chiefly through strategies that bolstered its presence and
competitiveness in the container leasing market, and positioned the company for future growth. Net income
for the year ended December 31, 2005 totaled $7.8 million, or $0.98 per diluted share, compared to
$8.9 million, or $1.14 per diluted share, for 2004. Net income for 2005 was reduced by $4.9 million, or
$0.63 per diluted share, as a result of non-operating items that related to the TOEMT litigation and the
restructuring of the Company’s sales and marketing divisions.

As reported last month, Cronos purchased the claims of the only known creditors of the insolvent TOEMT. In
doing so, we are now able to bring to an end the litigation brought against Cronos by TOEMT’s liquidator.
This will enable management to focus more on the day-to-day operations of the Company and eliminate the
distraction that this litigation has caused over recent years.

This past year marked a third consecutive year of strong growth in global containerized trade, recording an
increase of 9% in 2005 after expanding by 11% in 2004 and 8% in 2003. As a result, the container leasing
industry has experienced one of its strongest growth periods in its 35-plus year history. The substantial
expansion in world trade over the period prompted shipping lines to employ more leased containers to meet
their increased freight transport requirements. This generated high demand for the containers in the
Company’s fleet and also resulted in a decline in off-hire inventories.

While 2005 saw a continuation of favorable lease market conditions, the demand for leased dry cargo
containers eased from the strong levels experienced in 2004 when demand often exceeded supply, resulting in
a more balanced market. Utilization of the Cronos combined fleet averaged 92.4% during 2005. Utilization
was 90.8% at year end, a very favorable rate when compared to historical levels.

We responded to the moderation in demand for dry cargo containers by increasing our focus on and acquiring
greater quantities of specialized containers. Cronos added $154 million of container equipment to its fleet
during 2005. Specialized containers accounted for approximately 70% of our container acquisitions, compared
to 35% in each of the preceding two years. The Company is now even more competitive in soliciting container
lease business with its increased focus and more visible presence in the specialized container market. I believe
that this diversification strategy will enable us to broaden our revenue base with new business opportunities
over the long term.

During 2005, the Company also sold approximately 31,500 TEU (twenty-foot equivalent units) from its
owned and managed fleets, and achieved favorable residual values on this disposed equipment. Container
inventories remained at low levels at the end of 2005, primarily due to high utilization as well as the increase in
disposals of older off-hire equipment. However, the disposal rate recently has eased, and inventories have
begun to increase.

During 2005, we restructured our funding sources and expanded our very successful Joint Venture Program.
We believe that this expansion will be important to our future growth and take us closer to our ultimate
objective of securitizing the indebtedness of the Joint Venture Program in 2006.

Many industry analysts expect that the growth rate for global containerized trade will moderate somewhat in
2006, but still exhibit growth in the range of between 7% and 8%. The potential effects of higher energy prices
on consumer spending and the economic mechanisms at play in the shipping industry may come to bear on the




container leasing market. However, as mentioned above, in spite of a leveling in demand for dry cargo
containers, we are confident that the lease market will remain strong with respect to refrigerated containers,
tanks, and dry freight special containers in the coming year. In addition, strong economic growth rates in
China are expected to continue to fuel containerized trade volumes in the foreseeable future.

1 and your Board of Directors are very pleased with our many successes and the accomplishments that 2005
has brought to the Company. I would like to thank our highly qualified and dedicated employees for their
continued support and commitment in this endeavor. Cronos demonstrated good operational performance in
2003, executed actions that will support performance improvement over the longer term, and has established a
solid base for future growth. We look forward with confidence to delivering increased returns to our
shareholders in the future.

Sincerely,
‘—w :/ - /(4

Dennis J. Tietz

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
The Cronos Group

April 28, 2006
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INTRODUCTORY NOTE

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the “Company” means The Cronos Group excluding its
subsidiaries, and “Cronos” or the “Group” means The Cronos Group including its subsidiaries.

“TEU” means twenty-foot equivalent units, the standard unit of physical measurement in the container
industry. All references herein to “$” or “Dollars” are to United States dollars.

The information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certain “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of the securities laws. These forward-looking statements reflect the current view of the
Group with respect to future events and financial performance and are subject to a number of risks and
uncertainties, many of which are beyond the Group’s control. All statements, other than statements of
historical facts included in this report, regarding strategy, future operations, financial position, estimated
revenues, projected costs, prospects, plans and objectives of the Group are forward-looking statements. When
used in this report, the words “will”, “believe”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “estimate”, “expect”, “project”, and
similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looking
statements contain these identifying words. All forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this
report. The Group undertakes no obligation to update or revise publicly any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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PART I

Item 1 — Business

Introduction

The Company is a limited liability company (société anonyme holding) organized in Luxembourg with its
registered office at 5, Rue Guillaume Kroll, 1.-1882 Luxembourg (telephone (352) 26 48 36 88). The
Company is registered with the Luxembourg Registrar of Companies under registration number R.C.S. Lux.
B. 27489, The internet address of the Company is www.cronos.com.

Cronos is the successor to Intermodal Equipment Associates (“IEA”) and Leasing Partners Interna-
tional (“LPI”). IEA began managing and leasing dry cargo containers in 1978, primarily under master leases.
LPI was established in 1983 to manage and lease refrigerated containers. In 1990, LPI acquired IEA and the
companies combined their operations under the new name Cronos. In December 1995 and January 1996, the
Company and a selling shareholder sold 3,643,000 common shares of the Company in a public offering (the
“Public Offering”).

Cronos is one of the world’s leading lessors (by aggregate TEU capacity) of intermodal marine
containers. It owns and manages a fleet of dry cargo and specialized containers. Through an extensive global
network of offices and agents, Cronos leases both its own and other owners’ containers to over 400 ocean
carriers and transport operators, including the majority of the 25 largest ocean carriers.

Industry Background

A marine cargo container is a reusable metal container designed for the efficient carriage of cargo with a
minimum exposure to loss through damage or theft. Containers are manufactured to conform to worldwide
standards of container dimensions and container ship fittings adopted by the International Standards
Organization (“ISO”) in 1968. The standard container is either 20’ long X 8’ wide X 8’ 6” high (one TEU) or
40’ long X 8 wide X 8’ 6” high (two TEU). Standardization of the construction, maintenance and handling of
containers allows containers to be picked up, dropped off, stored and repaired effectively throughout the world.
This standardization is the foundation on which the container industry has developed.

One of the primary benefits of containerization has been the ability of the shipping industry to effectively
lower freight rates due to the efficiencies created by standardized intermodal containers. Containers can be
handled much more efficiently than loose cargo and are typically shipped via several modes of transportation,
including ship, truck and rail. Containers require loading and unloading only once and remain sealed until
arrival at the final destination, significantly reducing transport time, labor and handling costs, as well as losses
due to damage and theft. Efficient movement of containerized cargo between ship and shore reduces the
amount of time that a ship must spend in port.

The logistical advantages and reduced freight rates brought about by containerization have been major
catalysts for world trade growth since the late 1960s, resulting in increased demand for containers. The world’s
container fleet has grown from an estimated 270,000 TEU in 1969 to approximately 21 million TEU by the
end of 2005.

The container leasing business is cyclical and depends largely upon the volume of world trade.

Operations

Cronos’ sales and marketing operations are conducted through Cronos Containers Limited (“CCL”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary based in the United Kingdom. CCL is supported in this role by area offices and
dedicated agents located in San Francisco, New Jersey, Antwerp, Genoa, Hamburg, Gothenburg, Singapore,
Hong Kong, Sydney, Tokyo, Taipei, Seoul, Rio de Janeiro, Shanghai, Lisbon and Chennai.

Cronos also maintains agency relationships with 13 independent agents around the world who are
generally paid a commission based upon revenues generated in the region or the number of containers that are
leased from their area. These agents are located in areas where the volume of Cronos’ business necessitates a
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presence in the area but is not sufficient to justify a fully-functioning Cronos office or dedicated agent. Agents
provide marketing support to these areas, together with limited operational support.

In addition, Cronos relies on the services of approximately 168 independently owned and operated depots
around the world to inspect, repair, maintain and store containers while off-hire. The Group’s area offices
authorize all container movements into and out of the depot and supervise all repairs and maintenance
performed by the depot. The Group’s technical staff set the standards for repair of the Cronos fleet throughout
the world and monitor the quality of depot repair work. The depots provide a link to the Group’s operations, as
the redelivery of a container into a depot is the point at which the container is off-hired from one customer and
repaired, if necessary, and stored in preparation for re-leasing to the next customer.

Cronos’ global network is integrated with its computer system and provides 24-hour communication
between offices, agents and depots. The system allows Cronos to manage and control its global fleet and
provides the responsiveness and flexibility necessary to service the leasing market effectively. This system is an
integral part of Cronos’ service, as it processes information received from the various offices, generates billings
to lessees and produces a wide range of reports on all aspects of the Group’s leasing activities. The system
records the life history of each container, including the length of time on-hire, revenue and repair costs
information, port activity trends and leasing and equipment data per customer. The operations and marketing
data interfaces with Cronos’ finance and accounting system to provide revenue, cost and asset information to
management and staff around the world. The Group continues to develop its internet based applications,
which enhance its customer support network by allowing access for on-line product inquiries.

Benefits of Leasing for Shipping Lines

The container fleets of leasing companies represent approximately 46% of the world’s total container fleet
with the balance owned predominantly by shipping lines. Shipping lines, which traditionally operate on tight
profit margins, often supplement their owned fleets of containers with leased containers, and in doing so,
achieve the following financial and operational benefits:

+ Leasing provides shipping lines with the flexibility to respond to rapidly changing market opportunities;

» Leasing allows shipping lines to respond to changing seasonal and trade route demands, thereby
optimizing their capital investment and minimizing storage costs;

+ Leasing enables shipping lines to expand their trade routes without making a permanent commitment
to support their new structure;

+ Leasing gives shipping lines access to the equipment they need without having to make large capital
expenditures;

+ Leasing offers a shipping line an alternative source of financing in a traditionally capital-intensive
industry; and,

+ Leasing permits shipping lines to benefit from the relationship between container manufacturers and
leasing companies.

Fleet Profile

Cronos focuses on supplying high-quality containers to its customers. These containers are manufactured
to specifications that meet ISO standards and are designed to minimize repair and operating costs. Cronos
operates a fleet of dry cargo and specialized containers. Specialized containers include refrigerated, tank and
dry freight special containers.




The following chart summarizes the gross lease revenue recorded by product for each of the years
presented:

(in thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Dry cargo containers. ..................... $ 94,638 $ 91,511 $ 80,773 §$ 78,760 § 84,921
Specialized containers:
Refrigerated containers.................. 19,890 20,613 20,829 21,293 22,422
Tank containers .. ...........cocvvvvnn... 10,188 8,295 6,713 6,123 5,908
Dry freight specials..................... 14,308 11,677 9,186 7,467 7,094
Total ..o $139,024  $132,096 $117,501  $113,643  $120,345

Dry Cargo Containers

Standard dry cargo containers are rectangular boxes constructed to carry a wide variety of cargoes ranging
from heavy industrial raw materials to light-weight finished goods. Dry cargo containers are the most
commonly used type of container in the shipping industry. Cronos’ dry cargo containers are constructed of all
Corten® steel (i.e, Corten® roofs, walls, doors and undercarriage), which is a high-tensile steel yielding
greater damage and corrosion resistance than mild steel.

Specialized Containers

Refrigerated containers are used to transport temperature-sensitive products, such as meat, fruit and
vegetables. The majority of Cronos’ refrigerated containers have high-grade stainless steel interiors and
muffler grade outer walls. As with the dry cargo containers, all refrigerated containers are designed to
minimize repair and maintenance and maximize damage resistance. Cronos’ refrigerated containers are
designed and manufactured to include the latest generation refrigeration equipment, with the most recently
built units controlled by modular microprocessors.

Cronos’ tank containers are constructed and maintained in accordance with strict international codes for
the worldwide transport and storage of bulk liquids on both land and sea. These codes include those of the
ISO, the International Maritime Organization (“IMO”) and the American Society of Mechanical Engineers
(“ASME”) VIII Pressure Vessel Design Code. The fleet comprises both T4 and T11 type tanks, which can
carry highly flammable, corrosive, toxic and oxidizing substances as well as non-hazardous cargoes such as
food and oils. Tank containers range in capacity from 17,500 litres to 31,000 litres and are generally insulated
and equipped with a heating system (steam or electrical).

Dry freight specials include Cellular Palletwide Containers (“CPCs”), rolltrailers, open tops, flat racks
and bulkers:

» Cronos owns the patents for the CPC, a specialized container of extra interior width designed
specifically for the carriage of cargo on metric pallets. The patents expire at various dates between 2006
and 2013. CPCs allow for the side-by-side stowage of metric pallets, which is not possible in a standard
ISO container, thereby increasing the pallet load capacity per container. In addition to its leasing
activity, Cronos earns CPC licence fee income on the sale of CPCs to third parties.

» A rolltrailer is a heavy-duty chassis used for moving heavy cargo or containers onto and off of Roll
On — Roll Off ships. Cronos entered the rolltrailer market in 1996 when it acquired a Swedish
company with an existing fleet of rolltrailers.

» Open tops are primarily used to enable loading of heavy machinery from above the container and for
the carriage of certain over-height cargoes that would be unsuitable for a standard ISO container.

+ Flat racks similarly are typically used for the transportation of heavy machinery and can be folded flat
for inexpensive and efficient repositioning.




» Bulkers are containers designed for the carriage of granular cargoes, including plastics, certain
chemicals and agricultural products. The cargo carried by bulkers can be loaded and shipped in a loose
state without the need for any other packaging.

Cronos Fleet (in TEU thousands)
at December 31,

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Dry cargo containers. . .......cooovvie i 393.9  399.1 370.5 3645 368.4
Specialized containers:
Refrigerated containers. ........... ... ... i, 14.9 11.5 12.3 13.3 13.9
Tank containers. ....... ... i 4.9 3.5 2.7 24 23
Dry freight specials . . ......... ... .. . i 32.1 25.2 20.3 14.8 21.6
Total fleet ... .. 445.8 4393 4058 395.0 3959

Company Strategy

Cronos focuses on optimizing the return on container investment capital by providing flexible master,
term and direct financing leases to the world’s top ocean carriers, across a broad range of dry cargo and
specialized containers.

Types of Leases Available to Shipping Lines

Master leases provide customers with flexibility by allowing them to pick up and drop off containers
where and when needed, subject to restrictions and availability, on pre-agreed terms. Master leases also define
the number of containers that may be returned within each calendar month, the permitted return locations and
applicable drop-off charges. Due to the increased flexibility they offer, master leases usually command higher
per diem rates and generate more ancillary revenue (including pick-up, drop-off, handling and off-hire
revenue) than term leases. The commercial terms of master leases are usually negotiated or renewed annually.

Term leases are for a fixed number of containers for a fixed period of time, typically ranging from three to
five years. In most cases, containers cannot be returned prior to the expiration of the lease. Some term lease
agreements contain early termination penalties that apply in the event of early redelivery. Term leases provide
greater revenue stability to the lessor, but usually at lower lease rates than master leases. Ocean carriers use
term leases to lower their operating costs when they have a need for an identified number of containers for a
specified term.

Direct financing leases are usually long-term in nature, typically ranging from three to seven years, and
require relatively low levels of customer service. They ordinarily require fixed payments over a defined period
and provide customers with an option to purchase the subject containers at the end of the lease term. Per diem
rates include an element of repayment of capital and therefore are higher than rates charged under either term
or master leases.

The mix of container equipment held under master, term and direct financing leases varies widely among
leasing companies.

Lease rates depend on several factors including market conditions, customer credit rating, type of lease,
length of lease term, type and age of the equipment, equipment replacement cost, interest rates and
maintenance requirements.




Lease Profile

Percentage of Fleet by Lease Type as of December 31, 2005
Product Type

Dry Freight Total

Type of Lease Dry Cargo Refrigerated Tank Specials Fleet
Master ... 47% 26% 42% 46% 46%

Term. ..o e

-short-term(l) ........... ... ... .. ... .. 12% 25% 14% 18% 13%
- long-term(2) ............. e 35% 45% 33% 20% 34%
Direct Financing ............................ _ 6% _ 4% _11% _16% _ 1%
TOtal ... 100% 100%  100%  100% 100%

(1) Short-term leases represent term leases that are either scheduled for renegotiation or that may expire in
2006.

(2) Long-term leases represent term leases that expire after 2006, the majority of which will expire between
2007 and 2012.

The terms and conditions of the Group’s leases provide that customers are responsible for paying all taxes
and service charges arising from container use, maintaining the containers in good and safe operating condition
while on lease and paying for repairs, excluding ordinary wear and tear, upon redelivery. Some leases provide
for a “damage protection plan” whereby lessees, for an additional payment (which may be in the form of a
higher per diem rate}, are relieved of the responsibility of paying some or all of the repair costs upon redelivery
of the containers. The Group offers this service to selected customers. Repairs provided under such a plan are
carried out by the same depots, under the same procedures, as the repairs to containers not covered by such
plans. Customers are also required to insure leased containers against physical damage and loss, as well as
against third party liability for loss, damage, bodily injury or death.

Customers

Cronos is not dependent upon any particular customer or group of customers. None of the Group’s
customers accounts for 10% or more of its revenue, and the ten largest customers accounted for approximately
57% of the total leased TEU fleet. The majority of Cronos’ customers are billed and pay in United States
dollars.

See Item 7A — “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk™ herein for a description of
the Cronos credit policy.

Acquisition Policy

Cronos’ acquisition policy for the total fleet is driven by capital availability, market requirements and
anticipated future demand, including demand generated by trade growth and the replacement of containers
retired around the world. The Group believes that the worldwide manufacturing capacity for all container
types is adequate to meet its current and near-term requirements,

In recent years, China has become the primary location for almost all types of container manufacturing.
Refrigeration units, which represent approximately half of the cost of a refrigerated container, are purchased
from the two primary suppliers of container refrigeration units headquartered in the United States, both of
which have manufacturing plants in the Far East. These units are shipped to the container manufacturer for
installation into the container.




Repair and Maintenance

All containers are inspected and repaired when redelivered in accordance with standardized industry
guidelines. Depots in major port areas perform repair and maintenance work that is verified by either
independent surveyors or the Cronos technical and operations staff. As described under Item 1 — “Busi-
ness — Lease Profile” some customers enter into a damage protection plan. All other customers are obligated
to pay for all damage repairs, excluding normal wear and tear.

Before any repair or refurbishment is authorized on older containers in the Cronos fleet, the Cronos
technical and operations staff review the age, condition and type of containér and its suitability for continued
leasing. Cronos compares the cost of such repair or refurbishment with the prevailing market resale price that
might be obtained for that container and makes the decision whether to repair or sell the container
accordingly. Cronos is authorized to make this decision on behalf of most of the owners for whom it manages
equipment and makes the decision by applying the same standards to the managed containers as to its own
containers.

Disposition of Used Containers

Cronos estimates that the useful operational life for most containers in the Group fleet ranges from 12 to
20 years.

Cronos disposes of used containers in a worldwide secondary market in which buyers include wholesalers,
mini-storage operators, construction companies and others. The market for used containers generally depends
on new container prices, the quantity of containers targeted for disposal and the overall lease market for
containers at a particular location.

Competition

Competition among container leasing companies is based upon several factors, including the location and
availability of inventory, lease rates, the type, quality and condition of the containers, the quality and flexibility
of the service offered, the availability of suitable financing and the professional relationship between the
customer and the lessor. Other factors include the speed with which a leasing company can prepare its
containers for lease and the ease with which a lessee believes it can do business with a lessor or its local area
office. Not all container leasing companies compete in the same markets as some supply only specific
container types.

Cronos competes with various container leasing companies in the markets in which it conducts business.
The container leasing companies essentially comprises three broad groups. The first group includes six of the
largest leasing companies, controlling almost 72% of the total leased fleet. The second group, which includes
Cronos and five other leasing companies, controls approximately 21% of the total leased fleet. The third group
controlling the remaining 7% comprises the smaller, more specialized fleet operators.

In Cronos’ experience, ocean carriers generally lease containers from several leasing companies in order
te minimize dependence on a single supplier.

Economies of scale, worldwide operations, diversity, size of fleet and financial strength are increasingly
important to the successful operation of a container leasing business. Additionally, as containerization
continues to grow, customers may demand more flexibility from leasing companies, particularly regarding the
structure of leases, per diem rates, pick-up and drop-off locations, and the availability of containers.

Cronos believes it has created a strategic advantage due to its product and funding diversity, allowing it to
develop a wider customer portfolio and lower risk profile.
Insurance

Cronos’ lease agreements typically ‘rcquire lessees to obtain insurance to cover all risks of physical
damage and loss of the equipment under lease, as well as public liability and property damage insurance.

6




However, the precise nature and amount of the insurance carried by each ocean carrier varies from lessee to
lessee.

In addition, Cronos has purchased secondary insurance effective in the event that a lessee fails to have
adequate primary coverage. This insurance covers liability arising out of bodily injury and/or property damage
as a result of the ownership and operation of the containers, as well as insurance against loss or damage to the
containers, loss of lease revenue in certain cases and cost of container recovery and repair in the event that a
customer goes into bankruptcy. Cronos believes that the nature and amounts of its insurance are customary in
the container leasing industry and subject to standard industry deductions and exclusions.

Employees

As of December 31, 2005, Cronos had 81 employees worldwide; 44 were located in Europe, 22 in the
United States and 15 in Asia and Australia combined.

Four of Cronos’ employees based in Italy are covered by the terms of a collective bargaining agreement
that exists for employees of the service industry.

Operating Segments

Cronos has four reportable segments, which are determined based on the source of container funding for
the Group’s container fleet acquisitions:

1. US Limited Partnership Programs (“US Limited Partnership Programs”),
2. Joint Venture Program (*‘Joint Venture Program™),

3. Private Container Programs (“Private Container Programs™), and

4. Owned Containers (“Owned Containers”).

Prior to December 2004, the US Limited Partnership Programs segment and the Joint Venture Program
segment were combined in a single operating segment, Container Equity Programs, in accordance with the
aggregation criteria of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 131 — “Disclosures
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS 131"). At December 31, 2004, the Joint
Venture Program exceeded the 10% revenue threshold of SFAS 131 and accordingly has been reported as a
separate segment since that date. Corresponding items of segment information have been restated for prior
years.

Lease agreements with US Limited Partnership Programs, the Joint Venture Program and Private
Container Programs (collectively “Managed Container Programs”). The majority of agreements between the
Group and Managed Container Programs are in the form of a master lease, under the terms of which the
Group is not liable to make any payments to the Managed Container Programs until such time as the
containers have been placed on lease to an ocean carrier. The agreements generally provide that the Group will
make payments based upon the rentals collected from ocean carriers after deducting direct operating expenses
and the compensation earned by the Group for managing the containers.

Although all containers, regardless of the source of funding or ownership, are leased as part of a single
global fleet, management separately monitors performance of each reportable segment.




The following chart summarizes the composition of the Cronos fleet by segment (based on original
equipment cost) at December 31 for each of the years indicated:
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

US Limited Partnership Programs. ........................ 0 ... 18% 22% 25% 27% 29%
Joint Venture Program ........ ... .. .. i 31% 14% 8% 4% —
Private Container Programs ............cuuineiriiinineennnnenn. 29% 32% 36% 39% 40%
Owned Containers .......... ...t 22% 32% 31% 30% 31%
Total ..o 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

The Group evaluates the performance of its reportable segments based on segment profit or loss. Gross
lease revenue is deemed to be earned based on the physical location of the containers while on lease and, as
substantially all of the Group’s lease revenue is earned on containers used in global trade routes, the Group
believes that it does not possess discernible geographic reporting segments as defined in SFAS 131.

Segment revenues from external customers, segment profit or loss and total assets are disclosed in Note 3
to the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements, and are incorporated by reference herein.

US Limited Partnership Programs

Since 1979, Cronos has sponsored seventeen US limited partnerships and raised over $485 million from
over 37,500 investors. The partnerships are all California limited partnerships. Eleven of the original seventeen
partnerships have now been dissolved. The objectives of the partnerships are to invest in marine cargo
containers, to generate continuing income for distribution to the limited partners, and to realize the residual
value of the container equipment at the end of its useful economic life or upon the liquidation of a partnership.
See “Material Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Transactions and Obligations” under Item 7 — “Manage-
ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” herein.

The US Limited Partnership Programs provide compensation to Cronos, the general partner, consisting
of the following fees and commissions:

» Acquisition fees equal to between 1.5% and 5% (depending on the program) of the original cost of
equipment acquired by the partnerships. Such fees are paid on or about the date of the equipment
purchase and are recognized as income for accounting purposes by Cronos, in its statement of
operations, on a straight-line basis over the period of the agreement to which they relate;

¢ Management fees equal to 7% of gross lease revenue;
s Reimbursed administrative expenses for certain overhead and operating expenses;

» Incentive fees equal to 15% of distributable cash after the limited partners have received an amount
equal to their capital contributions plus an 8% — 10% cumulative compounded annual return on their
adjusted capital contributions (depending on the program);

 General partner’s share equal to 5% of distributable cash generated by the partnerships’ operating
activities and 1% of distributions from sales proceeds.

One customer, Mediterranean Shipping Company S.A. (“MSC”), accounted for 10% of gross lease
revenue of the US Limited Partnership Programs operating segment for the year ended December 31, 2005.
MSC is a private company based in Switzerland and is ranked as the second largest container liner operator in
the world.

Joint Venture Program

Cronos established the Joint Venture Program in 2002 with one of the Company’s lenders. See “Material
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Transactions and Obligations” under Item 7 — ‘“Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” herein.
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The Joint Venture Program provides compensation to Cronos consisting of the following fees:

» Acquisition fees equal to 1.25% of the original cost of equipment acquired by the Joint Venture
Program. Such fees are paid on or about the date of the equipment purchase and are recognized as
income for accounting purposes by Cronos, in its statement of operations, on a straight-line basis over
the period of the agreement to which they relate;

* Management fees equal to 8% of net lease revenue (gross lease revenue less direct operating expenses);

* Disposition fees equal to 5% of disposal proceeds providing that at the time of disposition the disposal
proceeds exceed the net book value of the container.

Private Container Programs

Cronos manages containers pursuant to agreements negotiated directly with corporations, partnerships
and private individuals located in Europe, the United States and South Africa. The terms of the agreements
vary but do not exceed 15 years and take two principal forms.

Under the first form of agreement, Cronos generally earns compensation equal to gross lease revenue less
direct operating expenses less the payment to the Managed Container Programs, computed in accordance with
the terms of each individual agreement. In certain cases, Cronos may also earn an incentive fee.

Under the second form of agreement, the container owner is entitled to a fixed payment for a specified
term. Cronos earns compensation equal to the excess of gross lease revenue less direct operating expenses less
the fixed payment to the Managed Container Program. See Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” herein.

Owned Containers

Cronos uses cash, bank loans and capital leases to finance the acquisition of equipment for its own fleet.
From time to time, Cronos also owns containers on a temporary basis until such time that the containers are
sold to the Managed Container Programs. Most containers identified for sale to the Managed Container
Programs are purchased new by Cronos, and sold to owners of the Managed Container Programs within six
months. This strategy allows Cronos more flexibility to negotiate and buy containers strategically, based on
market conditions. In addition, Cronos may on occasion own equipment that has been acquired specifically for
resale to third parties under equipment trading transactions. Equipment acquired under equipment trading
transactions does not enter the Cronos managed fleet.

Assets that are funded by capital leases are initially reported at the fair value of the asset categorized
within container equipment, with an equivalent liability reported as capital lease obligations. Container
equipment is depreciated over its expected useful life. Finance charges are reported over the lease term in
accordance with the effective interest method and are recorded as interest expense.

Financial Information about Geographic Areas

The operations of the Group are subject to the fluctuations of world economic and political conditions.
Such factors may affect the pattern and levels of world trade. The Group believes that the risks associated
with leases to non-US customers are generally the same as for leases to US customers.

Lease revenue is deemed to be earned based on the physical location of the containers while on lease.
Almost all of the Group’s lease revenue is earned on containers used by its customers in global trade routes.
Accordingly, the Group believes that it does not possess discernible geographic reporting segments. See
additionai discussion in “Operating Segments” and in Note 3 to the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item 1A — Risk Factors

An investment in the common shares of the Company involves a high degree of risk. The principal risks
that attend the Company and its business include the following:

Market for Common Shares. The market for the Company’s outstanding common shares is not liquid.
The Company’s four largest groups of shareholders control approximately 63% of its outstanding common
shares. For 2005, the average daily trading volume in the Company’s shares was 7,216.

Political, Economic & Business Risks. The Group may be adversely affected by business, economic and
political risks which generally are beyond the control of the Group and include:

+ Political instability;

+ Fluctuations in world trade: Demand for leased containers is dependent upon levels of world trade and
the supply of containers relative to demand. Future fluctuations in world trade could negatively affect
the Group’s container leasing operations;

+ Fluctuations in inflation, interest rates and foreign exchange rates;
» Import and export tariffs and restrictions;

» Restrictions on the movement of capital;

« Terrorist attacks and the risk of terrorist attack;

« Economic conditions in the shipping and other industries;

» The supply and cost of new containers: For example, lease rates can be impacted by the over-supply of
new containers into the market;

» Fluctuations in supply and demand for containers resulting from, among other things, obsolescence,
changes in the methods or economics of a particular mode of transportation or changes in governmen-
tal regulations or safety standards;

« Fluctuations in shipping lines’ fleet mix: Demand for leased containers is largely dependent on the
decision of shipping lines to lease, rather than purchase, containers to supplement their own operating
fleets. Any significant changes in the composition of the shipping lines’ leased and owned container
fleets could adversely affect the demand for leased containers;

* Increases in maintenance expenses, taxes, insurance costs, third party fees and other expenses
attributable to the operation and the maintenance of the containers that cannot be offset by increased
lease revenues from the containers;

» The risk of uninsured losses with respect to the containers or insured losses for which insurance
proceeds are inadequate; and,

» The effects of strikes, labor disputes and foreign political unrest.

Competition. The container leasing industry is highly competitive. Some of Cronos’ competitors have
greater financial resources than Cronos and may be more capable of offering lower per diem rates on a larger
fleet. In addition, the barriers to entry for the container leasing industry are relatively low. If the supply of
available equipment increased significantly as a result of new companies entering the industry, demand for
Cronos equipment could be adversely affected.

Requirement for Third Party Capital. Cronos is heavily dependent upon third parties to supply it with
the capital required for container acquisitions. Such capital may not be available to the Group to enable it to
expand its fleet of containers.

Defaults by Lessees. A default by a customer may result in lost revenue for past leasing services and
additional operating expenses. The repossession of containers from customers that have defaulted can prove
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difficult and, when containers are recovered, the Group may not be able to re-lease the equipment at
comparable rates and on favorable lease terms.

Residual Value of Containers. The majority of containers that are at the end of their useful economic
life are sold in the non-maritime secondary market for use as temporary or permanent storage facilities. The
proceeds realized on the disposition of such containers depends on a variety of factors including the location of
the container at the time of disposition, foreign currency exchange rates, the lease market for marine cargo
containers, the cost of new containers, the quantity of used containers being supplied to the secondary market,
technological advances in container construction and in techniques of ocean transportation, and developments
in world trade. A reduction in container residual values could adversely affect the long-term returns generated
by containers resulting in reduced profitability and reduced capital availability.

Specialized Containers. Specialized containers include refrigerated containers and tanks. Refrigerated
containers are subject to inherent risks of mechanical breakdown and technological obsolescence. Tanks,
which can be used to transport hazardous materials, include additional risks of environmental and tort lability.

Environmental. Countries that are signatories to the Montreal Protocol on the environment agreed in
November 1992 to restrict the use of environmentally destructive refrigerants, banning production (but not
use) of chlorofluorocarbon compounds (“CFCs”) beginning in January 1996. Since then, the environmental
impact of CFCs has become increasingly prominent. On January 1, 2001, it became illegal for environmen-
tally destructive refrigerants to be handled, other than for disposal, in most of the countries that are members
of the European Union. All of Cronos’ refrigerated containers purchased since June 1993 use non-CFC
refrigerant gas in the operation and insulation of the containers, although a reduced quantity of CFCs are still
used in the container manufacturing process. At December 31, 2005, 54 of the 10,200 refrigerated containers
that were operated by the Group used the CFC refrigerant gas. All of the 54 containers are currently on lease
and the Group will dispose of each unit upon its redelivery. The replacement refrigerant used in the Group’s
new refrigerated containers may also become subject to similar governmental regulations. In the past, the
Group has retrofitted certain refrigerated containers with non-CFC refrigerants. Cronos has decided not to
retrofit any additional containers. In the unlikely event that any such further retrofitting expenses should be
required, they would not be material to the financial position or results of operations of the Group.

Key Personnel. The senior management team at Cronos has significant industry experience. The
continued growth and profitability of the Group depends on the ability to retain senior management. The loss
of certain key personnel could have an adverse impact on the future of the business.

The Group is subject to other risks in the operation of its business. For a discussion of the container
leasing industry and the Group’s business, see Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” herein.

For a discussion of the Group’s legal proceedings, see Item 3 — “Legal Proceedings” herein. For a
discussion of the Group’s commitments and contingencies, see Note 17, “Commitments and Contingencies”,
to the Company’s 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements. For a discussion of the market for the Company’s
common shares, see Item 5 — “Market for the Company’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder
Matters” herein.

Item 1B — Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.
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Item 2 — Properties

Cronos leases approximately 6,300 square feet of office space near London, England, where its container
leasing operations are conducted. Cronos also leases approximately 8,900 square feet of office space in
San Francisco, California, where its Managed Container Program activities are based. Cronos also conducts
its container leasing operations from smaller offices that are leased in Antwerp, Genoa, Gothenburg,
Hamburg, Hong Kong, New Jersey, Singapore and Sydney.

The containers owned and managed by Cronos are described under Item 1 — “Business” and under
Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”. The
following table summarizes the composition of the container fleet as of December 31, 2005 (based on TEUs):

Managed

Owned Container Total

Containers Programs Fleet
Dry cargo containers. . .. ...t e 63,214 330,666 393,880

Specialized containers:

Refrigerated containers .............ouuiviirn e 5,654 9,246 14,900
Tank Containers. . .. ... i e 1,615 3,255 4,870
Dry freight specials. ... ... i 15,681 16,437 32,118
Total . . e e 86,164 359,604 445,768

The majority of Owned Containers are financed by debt and capital lease obligations. Under the terms of
the debt agreements, the containers act as collateral for the outstanding loan facility. For assets financed by
capital lease obligations, although the Group takes all the risks and rewards of ownership, the lessor retains
title to the equipment until the capital lease obligation has been discharged and any purchase option has been
exercised by the Group. :

The following chart summarizes the utilization of each product type as at December 31, 2005:

Dry cargo contailers. . .. ..oovun et 91%
Specialized containers:
Refrigerated containers. . ...ttt 87%
Tank containers................... e 84%
Dry freight specials:
CPCS 92%
Rolltrailers . . ... ... ..o e 93%
Other dry freight specials.............. .. ... o ... 82%
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Item 3 — Legal Proceedings
TOEMT Litigation

Since the 1980s the Group has managed containers for Transocean Equipment Manufacturing and
Trading Limited (“TOEMT (UK)”), an English company. A separate company by the same name was
registered in the Isle of Man (“TOEMT (Isle of Man)”). Both TOEMTs are in liquidation in England,
represented by the same liquidator. On December 13, 2004, the liquidator filed his “ordinary application” (in
the nature of a complaint) in the High Court of Justice, Chancery Division, Companies Court, London,
against the Company and two of its subsidiaries, Cronos Containers N.V. (“CNV”") and Cronos Containers
(Cayman) Limited (“CAY”) (collectively the “Respondents”). See the report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on January 13, 2005.

By the ordinary application, the liquidator seeks a declaration pursuant to Section 213 of the UK Insol-
vency Act of 1986, as amended (the “Insolvency Act”), that the Respondents were knowingly parties to the
carrying on of the business of the two TOEMTs with the intent to defraud the creditors of the two TOEMTs
and/or for other fraudulent purposes, by assisting Stefan M. Palatin, a former Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, in diverting assets from TOEMT (UK) to himself, to entities in which he was
interested, and/or to his associates, otherwise than for proper purposes and otherwise than for full
consideration.

By his ordinary application, the liquidator alleges that the Respondents knowingly were parties to the
carrying on of the business of the two TOEMTs to defraud the creditors of TOEMT (UK) by reason of:

1. The transfer on or about November 25, 1991, to TOEMT (UK) of 5,500,000 ordinary shares of the
Group in consideration of the contribution of shares in Trans Ocean Limited by TOEMT (UK) to the
Group worth approximately $16 million, which 5,500,000 ordinary shares were then redeemed and/or
transferred to Mr. Palatin and/or his nominee for no or no proper consideration;

2. The transfer on or about December 31, 1991, to TOEMT (UK) of 90,000 preference shares (worth
approximately $9 million) which were then transferred to Barton Holding Limited (a company
allegedly controlled by Palatin) for no or no proper consideration, and a loan which the liquidator
alleges not to have been repaid,

3. The making of various payments (amounting to approximately $1 million) between approximately
April 1993 and February 1996 by CNYV to third parties, including Mr. Palatin or entities in which he
was interested and/or his associates, which payments were made otherwise than for any legitimate
commercial purpose or any other purpose of TOEMT (UK)’s business or interests;

4. The making of improper cash withdrawals (amounting to in excess of $2 million), between
approximately February 1991 and June 1999 from TOEMT (UK)’s bank accounts, with the
assistance of CNV, which withdrawals were allegedly for the benefit of Mr. Palatin and/or his wife
rather than for any legitimate commercial purpose or other purpose of TOEMT (UK)’s business or
interests; and,

5. The diversion between 1991 and 1993 (with the assistance of CNV) of TOEMT (UK)’s container
business to TOEMT (Isle of Man), for no or for no proper consideration.

The liquidator further seeks a declaration pursuant to Section 213 of the Insolvency Act that the
Respondents and each of them is liable to contribute to the assets of TOEMT (UK) the amount of the
deficiency as regards the creditors of TOEMT (UK), which the liquidator currently estimates to be at least
$41 million, or, alternatively, that the Respondents make such contributions to the assets of TOEMT (UK) as
the Court thinks fit.

The liquidator seeks an order from the court that the Respondents and each of them pay to the liquidator
any sums found to be due to him by reason of the conduct alleged above, plus interest and costs.

On May 3, 2005, the Respondents filed their application (the “Strike-Out Application” or “Applica-
tion”) with the court to set aside the court’s order granting the liquidator permission to serve his ordinary
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application on the Respondents and, alternatively, for-an order granting the Respondents summary judgment
against the liquidator on his claims. By their Application the Respondents asserted that the liquidator’s
complaint, and the evidence he submitted in support thereof, provided no reasonable grounds for bringing the
lawsuit and/or that the liquidator has no real prospect of succeeding on his lawsuit and therefore no reason to
proceed to trial of his claims against the Respondents.

A hearing on the Respondents’ Strike-Out Application was heard between July 18 and 20, 2005, at the
conclusion of which the court struck out from the liquidator’s application his claim of diversion of TOEMT
(UK)’s container business to TOEMT (Isle of Man) (claim no. 5 above), but otherwise set over the hearing
until October 4, 2005, pending the liquidator’s filing of a comprehensive specification of his claims against the
Respondents. The hearing on the Respondents’ Strike-Out Application continued on October 4 through 10,
2005. On November 4, 2005, the court rendered its judgment, granting the Respondents’ Application as to
claim nos. 3 and 4 above, but denying the Respondents’ Application as to claims nos. 1 and 2. In addition, the
court allowed the liquidator to restate his claim no. 5 to allege that the Respondents knowingly participated in
Mr. Palatin’s concealment of his fraudulent diversion of assets from TOEMT (UK). With respect to the
liquidator’s claim nos. 1 and 2, the court denied the Respondents’ Application on the grounds that the
liquidator had presented an arguable case and should be allowed to proceed to trial on these claims. Because
CAY had not been in existence prior to March 1998, the date of the commencement of the TOEMT
(UK) liquidation proceedings, the court dismissed the liquidator’s claims in their entirety against CAY.

On November 2, 2005, the liquidator applied to the court to file a new and superseding ordinary
application against the Respondents to restate claim nos. 1, 2, and 5 above and to add three additional
instances of alleged knowing participation by the Respondents in TOEMT (UK)’s fraudulent trading. The
three instances involve the sale of approximately 600 refrigerated containers to CNV or an affiliate of the
Company in May and December of 1991 and June of 1992 for aggregate consideration of approximately
$10.7 million. The liquidator alleges that the consideration for the containers was not paid or, alternatively, if
paid, that the payments were misappropriated from TOEMT (UK) by Mr. Palatin.

At the hearing held on November 4, 2005 in which the court rendered its judgment on the Respondents’
Strike-Out Application, the court awarded the liquidator reimbursement of one-half of his costs for the
hearing on Respondents’ Application (estimated to be ninety thousand British pounds), denied the application
of the Company and CNV (the “Remaining Respondents™) for leave to appeal the court’s judgment; and
granted the liquidator leave to file his new and superseding ordinary application against the Remaining
Respondents. The liquidator filed his new and superceding ordinary application against the Remaining
Respondents on February 10, 2006. On November 18, 2005, the Remaining Respondents filed their notice
with the court of appeal seeking leave to appeal that portion of the court’s judgment denying their Strike-Out
Application, on the ground that the court’s ruling on the claims it did not strike out is incorrect as a matter of
law. With respect to the liquidator’s three additional instances of alleged knowing participation by the
Remaining Respondents in TOEMT (UK)’s fraudulent trading, the Remaining Respondents believe the
allegations to be without merit and time-barred. On March 10, 2006, the court of appeal granted in part and
denied in part the Remaining Respondents’ application to appeal the court’s judgment. Pendmg resolution of
the appeal, prosecution of the underlying action is stayed.

Purchase of TOEMT Creditor Claims

The liquidator of the two TOEMTs has identified two creditors of TOEMT (UK) (it is now common
ground that TOEMT (Isle of Man) had nominal assets and no substantive creditors). The two identified
creditors of TOEMT (UK) are MKB Bank Rt., also known by its English name, the Hungarian Foreign
Trade Bank (“MKB” or the “Bank”) and companies or partnerships managed by Karadas GmbH — Contrin
Konsortium 1988/1, Contrin Konsortium 1988/S, Contrin Ubersee Transportgerite Handelsgesellschaft
mbH. & Co KG 1989, Contrin Ubersee Transportgerite Handelsgesellschaft mb.H & Co KG 1990,
Container Leasing GmbH (1993), Contrin Worldwide Containerleasing GmbH (1994 &
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1995) — each a company or partnership organized and existing under the laws of Austria (collectively, the
“Contrin Creditors™). The liquidator has acknowledged MKB’s creditor’s claim at U.S. $38.3 million. The
Contrin Creditors initially submitted a creditor’s claim in the TOEMT (UK) insolvency proceeding
aggregating U.S. $20.6 million. The Respondents understand that the liquidator rejected these claims in
September 2005, but allowed the Contrin Creditors to reformulate them. The Contrin Creditors reformulated
their claims and resubmitted them on or about December 15, 2005, in the aggregate amount of
US $2.2 million. There are no other known creditors of TOEMT (UK).

On March 21, 2006, CNV purchased from MKB its entire TOEMT (both TOEMT (UK) and TOEMT
(Isle of Man)) creditors’ claims and from the Contrin Creditors’ their entire TOEMT (both TOEMT (UK)
and TOEMT (Isle of Man)) creditors’ claims, for an aggregate cash payment of $3.7 million, including fees
paid to CNV’s third-party financial advisors. In addition, CNV has agreed to pay the Contrin creditors 5% of
any distributions CNV receives, as creditor of the two TOEMTs, in excess of $1.9 million (which CNV
currently believes to be unlikely). In addition, CNV has provided a bank guarantee to MKB to provide
assurance to MKB that it will be held harmless from any liability (and costs reasonably incurred in connection
therewith) imposed on MKB arising from the liquidation of the two TOEMTs. The limit of the guarantee is
$0.4 million. The guarantee shall remain open until the liquidation proceedings of the two TOEMTs are
completed and the two TOEMTs are struck off the UK and Isle of Man companies’ registers.

With the purchase of the claims of the only known creditors of both TOEMTS, the Company intends to
pursue an end to the litigation brought by the TOEMT liquidator against the Respondents. The timing of the
termination of the litigation and the winding-up of the two TOEMTs will depend upon the cooperation of the
liquidator. Accordingly, the Company is unable to predict when the winding-up of the TOEMT liquidations
and the termination of the litigation brought by the liquidator against the Respondents will occur.

Item 4 — Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.
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PART 1

Item 5 — Market for the Company’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

The Company’s common shares are traded on the Nasdaq National Market System under the symbol
“CRNS”. There is no trading market for the common shares outside the United States.

At March 29, 2006, there were outstanding 7,599,347 common shares. They were held of record by
approximately 1,100 holders. The table below shows the high and low reported closing prices for the common
shares on the Nasdaq National Market System for the last two years for the quarterly periods indicated.
Closing prices are market quotations and reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark up, mark down or
commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Price Range
High Low

Calendar Year 2004

First QUarter. . ..ottt $ 7.200 $5.000

Second QUATTET .. ..\t $ 6.980 $5.810

Third Quarter . .. ..o e $ 9.600 $6.310

Fourth Quarter. . ...t i $10.320 $7.850
Calendar Year 2005

First Quarter. ... e $13.879  $9.980

Second QUAaer . ...ttt $13.100  $0.810

Third QUAarter . . .. oottt e $12.770  $0.350

Fourth Quarter....... ... . i $12.890  $0.400

The Company declared dividends to its shareholders for the last two years for the quarterly periods
indicated:
Calendar Year

2005 2004
First QUAarter. .. ..ottt $§ — § —
Second QUATET . ..o\ttt $0.06  $0.03
Third QUAarter . .. ...ttt e $0.07  $0.04
Fourth Quarter(1) ... ... i e i e $0.14  $0.10

(1) Declared in respect of fourth and first quarters. See additional disclosure herein.

On November 11, 2004, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of 10 cents per common share, of
which 5 cents per common share was paid on January 10, 2005, for the fourth quarter of 2004 to shareholders
of record as of December 22, 2004, and 5 cents per common share was paid on April 15, 20085, to shareholders
of record as of March 24, 2005, for the first quarter of 2005.

On November 11, 2005, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of $0.14 per common share. Of this, 7
cents per common share was paid on January 10, 2006, for the fourth quarter of 2005 to shareholders of record
as of the close of business on December 22, 2005, and 7 cents per common share is payable on April 13, 2006,
for the first quarter of 2006 to shareholders of record as of the close of business on March 23, 2006.

In March 2006, subject to shareholder approval at the 2006 annual meeting of shareholders, the Board of
Directors declared a dividend of $0.07 per common share for the second quarter of 2006, payable July 13, 2006
to shareholders of record as of the close of business on June 23, 2006. The Group currently expects to declare
quarterly cash dividends for the third and fourth quarters of 2006 comparable to that proposed for the second
quarter of 2006.
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The primary debt facilities of the Group have financial covenants that are tested on a quarterly basis and
include covenants that are designed to restrict excessive dividend distributions. The Group does not expect
such covenants to have an impact on its current dividend policy.

There are currently no Luxembourg foreign exchange control restrictions on the payment of dividends on
the common shares or on the conduct of Cronos’ operations. In addition, there are no limitations on holding or
voting applicable to foreign holders of common shares, imposed by Luxembourg law, by the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation or otherwise, other than those restrictions which apply equally to Luxembourg
holders of common shares.

The following summary of the material Luxembourg tax consequences is not a comprehensive description
of all of the tax considerations that are applicable to the holders of common shares, and does not deal with the
tax consequences applicable to all categories of holders, some of which may be subject to special rules.

Under present Luxembourg law, as long as the Company maintains its status as a holding company, no
income tax, withholding tax (including with respect to dividends), capital gains tax or estate inheritance tax is
payable in Luxembourg by shareholders in respect of the common shares, except for shareholders domiciled,
resident (or, in certain circumstances, formerly resident) or having a permanent establishment in Luxem-
bourg. The reciprocal tax treaty between the United States and Luxembourg limiting the rate of any
withholding tax is therefore inapplicable.

The top US federal income tax rate for dividends received by an individual subject to US taxation was
reduced by the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003 to 15% (in most cases); the same rate
that is applicable to capital gains. The reduced rate for dividends expires at the end of 2008. The reduced rate
applies to dividends received from a domestic corporation or a “qualified foreign corporation”. The Group
currently qualifies as a “qualified foreign corporation” by reason of the fact that its outstanding common
shares are traded on Nasdaq. The reduced dividend rate does not apply to dividends paid on common shares
owned for less than 60 days in the 120-day period surrounding the ex-dividend date, or on common shares with
respect to which the taxpayer elects to include the dividends in investment income for purposes of claiming an
investment interest deduction.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Information regarding the Group’s equity compensation plans, including both shareholder approved plans
and non-shareholder approved plans, will be set forth in the section entitled “Compensation of Executive
Officers and Directors” in the Group’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the Group’s
fiscal year-end of December 31, 2005, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

See Note 19 to the 2005 Consclidated Financial Statements for a description of the stock-based
compensation plans.
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Item 6 — Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth consolidated financial information for the Group as of and for the periods
noted. The balance sheet and statements of operations data have been derived from the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company. The table should be read in conjunction with Item 7 — ““Manage-
ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the 2005 Consolidated
Financial Statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2002 2001
OIEIC)] 2004(5) 2003(6) (N ® (8) (9)10)

(in thousands, except per share data)

Statements of Income Data:

Gross lease revenue .................... $139,024 $132,096  $117,501 $113,643  $120,345
Total revenues . .................... . ... 148,290 140,508 126,263 119,323 131,688
Income before cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle (see footnote 8) 7,802 8,865 4,190 2,309 3,401

Basic net income per share before

cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle . . ... . o i § 1.06 $ 122 $ 057 $ 031 § 043

Diluted net income per share before
cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle .. ... ..o $ 098 $ 114 $ 055 $§ 031 § 042
Shares used in:
- basic net income per share calculations 7,359 7,261 7,322 7,365 8,001
- diluted net income per share
calculations ........... .. .. ... ..... 7,962 7,749 7,602 7,425 8,052

Cash dividends declared per common share $ 027 $ 017 $ 008 $ 004 —
Balance Sheet Data (at end of period):

Cash and cash equivalents . . ............. $ 15,829 $ 17,579 $§ 8432 § 5626 § 5,7%
Total assets . ... o 271,732 271,749 238,037 236,303 251,402
Long-term debt and capital lease

obligations ................... ..., 76,011 114,122 106,434 114,864 124,686
Total debt and capital lease obligations . . .. 87,780 127,953 119,205 128,950 138,385
Shareholders’ equity .................... 77,537 70,359 62,033 59,082 57,104

(1) In 2005, the Group recorded a charge of $4.1 million in connection with TOEMT related legal claims
made against the Group.

(2) In 2005, the Group recorded a gain of $1.3 million on the completion of the sale of the Amersham
Estate and the distribution of the amounts due to Cronos. See [tem 7 — “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” herein.

(3) In 2005, the Group recognized $0.8 million of income on the recovery of an amount payable to a
Managed Container Program. See Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” herein.

(4) In 20095, the Group recorded a one-time after-tax expense of $0.9 million relating to the restructuring of
the Group’s sales and marketing divisions. See Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ herein.

(5) In 2004, the Group reversed a $1.3 million provision that had originally been provided against a related
party loan note in 1997. In December 2004, the Group concluded that the loan note was recoverable and
would be repaid in full from the proceeds of the sale of the Amersham Estate. The loan note was repaid
on February 2, 2005.
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(6)

(7)

(8)

)

(10)

In 2003, the Group recorded a tax benefit of $2.7 million following the transfer of assets to an affiliate
resident in a foreign jurisdiction. Under the prevailing tax legislation, the Group was able to complete
the transaction without generating a recapture of tax depreciation. As a result, the deferred tax
associated with these assets was credited to income. In addition, the Group incurred $0.5 million of
breakage costs in connection with the refinancing of the assets.

In 2002, the Group recorded a tax benefit of $2.5 million as a result of a settlement with an overseas tax
authority.

In December 2003, the Group adopted Interpretation No. 46 Revised (“FIN 46R™), “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities”. The Group applied FIN 46R to all entities that were subject to FIN 46R as
of December 31, 2003, and determined that it was the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity.
Accordingly, Cronos applied FIN 46R by restating previously issued financial statements as of
December 31, 2002, and for the year ended December 31, 2002, with a cumulative effect adjustment in
the beginning of the first year restated.

In 2001, the Group recorded charges of $2 million relating to the impairment of certain long-lived
assets.

In 2001, the Group recorded income of $6 million from recovery of related party loans resulting from the
partial recovery of interest and principal under two promissory notes between the Group and a former
chairman.
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Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the Group’s financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto and the other financial
and statistical information appearing elsewhere in this annual report. The 2005 Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“US GAAP”).

The segment information presented in Note 3 to the Group’s 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements
relates to the containers in the Group’s fleet owned by the Group itself (Owned Containers) and by Managed
Container Programs. Owned Containers include containers held for resale.

All containers, whether owned or managed, are operated as a single fleet. The Group has discretion over
which ocean carriers, container manufacturers and suppliers of goods and services it deals with. Since the
Group’s agreements with the owners of Managed Container Programs meet the definition of leases within the
scope of SFAS No. 13 — “Accounting for Leases” (“SFAS 13”), they are accounted for in the Group’s
financial statements as leases under which the container owners are lessors and the Group is lessee. In 2005,
95% of payments to owners of Managed Container Programs represented agreements which generally provided
that the amounts payable to container owners were based upon the rentals to ocean carriers after deducting
direct operating expenses and the compensation earned by Cronos for managing the equipment. The
remaining 5% of payments to Managed Container Programs represented agreements under which there were
fixed payment terms. Minimum lease payments on the agreements with fixed payment terms are included in
Item 7 under Contractual Obligations and in Note 15 (¢) to the Group’s 2005 Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Overview of Primary Revenue and Expense Items

Gross lease revenue is generated by leasing containers, both owned by the Group and by Managed
Container Programs, to ocean carriers under operating leases and exclude billings in advance. Amounts due
under master leases are calculated by the Group at the end of each month and billed approximately 3 to 5 days
thereafter. Amounts due under term leases are set forth in the respective lease agreements and are generally
billed and payable on a monthly basis. Changes in gross lease revenue depend primarily upon changes in fleet
size, utilization rates and per diem rates.

Equipment trading revenue and expenses represent revenue earned from the sale of equipment and the
cost of the equipment sold.

In equipment trading transactions, the Group enters into an agreement in which it undertakes to supply
equipment to a third party. Simultaneously, Cronos enters into a separate agreement with a container
manufacturer for the acquisition of the equipment. The Group acts as principal in such transactions and
accordingly the revenue and expenses are reported gross. This equipment does not enter the Cronos fleet of
managed containers.

Commissions, fees and other operating income includes acquisition fees relating to the Group’s Managed
Container Programs, income from direct financing leases, fees earned in connection with equipment
consultancy and design services, licence fee income earned in connection with the patented CPCs (see
Item 1 — “Business”), fees earned on the disposal of containers owned by Managed Container Programs,
foreign exchange gains or losses, and miscellaneous other fees and income. Although acquisition fees are
generally received in cash at the inception of a Managed Container Program and are non-refundable, they are
recognized in the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the period of the managed container
agreement to which they relate.

This item is affected by the size of managed programs and the contracted acquisition fee, the quantity of
consultancy and design projects undertaken and the profit margins earned in each transaction, the quantity of
CPCs acquired by third parties, the quantity and value of direct financing leases, the proceeds realized on the

20




disposition of used containers and the fee earned in each case and changes in the value of the US dollar in
relation to other major currencies.

Direct operating expenses are direct costs associated with leasing both owned and managed containers.
Management analyzes direct operating expenses as a percentage of gross lease revenue. Direct operating
expenses may be categorized as follows:

« Activity-related expenses include agents costs and depot costs, such as repairs, maintenance and
handling;

 Inventory-related expenses relate to off-hire containers and comprise storage and repositioning costs.
These costs are sensitive to the quantity of off-hire containers as well as the frequency at which
containers are re-delivered;

» Legal and other expenses include legal costs related to the recovery of containers, insurance and
provisions for doubtful accounts.

Payments to Managed Container Programs reflect the amounts due to the owners of containers in
Managed Container Programs computed in accordance with the terms of the individual agreements.

Selling, general and administrative expenses include all employee and office costs, all professional fees,
including audit, legal and other professional fees, business insurance and information technology costs.

Segment profit or loss for reported segments, comprises items directly attributable to specific containers
in each of the Group’s operating segments, including gross lease revenue, direct operating expenses, payments
to Managed Container Programs, direct financing lease income, container interest expense, container
depreciation expense and certain impairment charges.
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Funding

The ability of the Group to add new equipment to both its owned and managed fleets was one of the main
reasons for the growth in profitability in recent years. Cronos recognizes that its ability to secure funding from
third parties in order to expand its container fleet is crucial to its future growth and profitability.

Traditionally, Cronos has utilized funding from each of its operating segments to expand its container
fleet. In more recent years, the majority of the growth has been generated by the Owned Container segment,
through debt and capital leases, and by the Joint Venture Program. Each of these sources provides a flexible
financing structure with competitive pricing.

Restructure of Funding Sources. On August 1, 2005, the Group completed the first phase of a funding
restructuring program. This involved a series of transactions that were closed in June and August of 2005. The
key features of this program to date are:

On June 15, 20035, as reported by the Group in its Report on Form 8-K of the same date:

+ the maximum debt commitment available to the Joint Venture Program increased from $150 million
to $300 million.

On August 1, 2005, as reported by the Group in its Report on Form 8-K of the same date:

» the Group increased its aggregate equity contribution commitment to the Joint Venture Program from
$20 million to $30 million;

o the Group sold $73.8 million of equipment that had been financed in its Revolving Credit Facility (the
“Revolving Credit Facility”) to the Joint Venture Program. This equipment was sold at book value,
which approximated fair value, and accordingly no gain or loss arose on the sale;

» The Group utilized part of the proceeds from the sale to fund an equity contribution of $7.3 million to
the Joint Venture Program to finance the fixed asset acquisition;

+ the Group repaid a debt facility with a then outstanding balance of $16.2 million;

+ the Group repaid $48 million of Revolving Credit Facility debt reducing the balance outstanding to
$21.1 million on August 1, 2005;

+ the maximum debt commitment available under the Revolving Credit Facility was reduced from
$70 million to $45 million; and,

+ the interest rate on the Revolving Credit Facility declined by 25 basis points.

The ultimate objective of the funding restructuring program is to securitize the indebtedness of the Joint
Venture Program in 2006. This should result in a further reduction in the cost of funding and allow the Group
to be more competitive when bidding for leasing transactions. The sale of the container assets to the Joint
Venture Program will assist it to achieve the minimum level of indebtedness required for a securitization
within the target timeframe and has generated sufficient cash to allow Cronos to fund-the increased equity
contributions required from the Group for the expansion of the Joint Venture Program. The Group will earn a
fee for managing the equipment sold to the Joint Venture Program and is entitled to 50% of the net income
generated by the equipment sold. In the long-term, the securitization of the indebtedness of the Joint Venture
Program should result in increased growth and profitability for Cronos. While the Group expects the
indebtedness of the Joint Venture Program to be securitized in 2006, there can be no assurance that its debt
can be securitized or that the expected interest cost savings will materialize.
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Funding for Owned Containers. The primary debt facilities include financial covenants tested on a
quarterly basis including minimum tangible net worth, the maximum level of debt and capital lease obligations
to tangible net worth and interest expense coverage. At December 31, 2005, the Group was in compliance with
these covenants. The breach of a covenant constitutes an event of default.

At December 31, 2005, the Group had $102.6 million of available container borrowing facilities under
which $87.8 million was outstanding. In addition, the Group had $2 million of short-term credit facilities
under which $0.1 million was outstanding. The short-term credit facilities are available, if required, for
operating activities.

The primary source of debt funding available to the Group is its Revolving Credit Facility. As discussed
herein, on August 1, 2005, the Revolving Credit Facility was amended to reduce the commitment of the
lenders from $70 million to $45 million. Under the terms of the amended facility the revolving credit period
was extended until July 31, 2007, and uniess the revolving credit period is extended on that date, the balance
outstanding as of July 31, 2007, will be repaid over three years. The interest rate under the amended facility
declined to one-month London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“Libor”) plus 200 basis points from one-month
libor plus 225 basis points. The amendment to the facility removed the requirement to hold a minimum
restricted cash balance and as a result the level of restricted cash balances related to debt facilities declined by
$1.2 million since the beginning of 2005.

The Group utilizes the Revolving Credit Facility to fund the acquisition of new equipment and to
refinance existing debt and capital lease facilities. New equipment is funded 75% by debt and 25% by cash
provided by the Group. The Group usually makes monthly repayments under the Revolving Credit Facility
and, from time to time, may sell equipment that has been financed by the facility to Managed Container
Programs. Any such reductions to the facility may be redrawn to fund the acquisition of additional equipment
subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions relating to the maintenance of minimum collateral levels. It is
anticipated that the balance of funds available under the Revolving Credit Facility will be utilized primarily to
purchase new equipment,

At December 31, 2005, the outstanding balance on the Revolving Credit Facility was $32.9 million. An
additional amount of $4.6 million was available for immediate drawdown against the collateral provided by the
Group under the facility.

The ability of the Group to expand its owned container fleet may be constrained if the revolving credit
period is not renewed on a periodic basis or if the Group cannot provide the 25% cash required for new
container acquisitions.

In addition to the Revolving Credit Facility, the Group finances the acquisition of equipment with term
debt and capital lease facilities. In 2005, the Group secured $25 million of funding under such facilities
representing an increase of $15.8 million when compared to 2004. The Group enters into annual discussions
with lenders in order to renew the amounts available under existing facilities and to add new facilities. The
Group expects that the amount of funding provided by these lenders in 2006 will approximate the level raised
in 2005,

Joint Venture Program. The Joint Venture Program has been a major source of funding for the Group
since its inception in 2002.

At December 2003, the Joint Venture Program had capacity for an additional $129.3 million of new
equipment. :

As discussed herein, the lenders to the Joint Venture Program increased their maximum debt
commitment from $150 million to $300 million on June 15, 2005. Under the amended facility, there will be a
one year revolving line of credit which will be renewed annually. The first renewal date will be June 2006, and,
if the facility is not renewed, the debt balance outstanding on that date will be repaid over a period of ten years
with the repayments equalling 10% per annum of the outstanding balance.

The future growth of the Joint Venture Program may be constrained if the revolving line of credit is not
renewed on an annual basis, if increases in equity and debt funding are not approved when required or if the
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Group cannot provide the 10% cash required for its equity contribution. See further discussion in “Material
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Transactions and Obligations™ herein.

At December 31, 2005, the Joint Venture Program had fixed assets and direct financing leases with a
book value of $239.6 million, partly funded by debt of $195.6 million.

In the twelve months ended December 31, 2005 the Group earned $2.5 million as compensation for the
management of containers owned by the program, recorded $4.3 million in equity in earnings of the program
and contributed $11.1 million of capital to the Joint Venture Program.

Private Container Programs. The growth experienced in global container trade in recent years has
attracted capital to this segment. Private Container Programs acquired over $14.4 million of new container
equipment in 2005. See further discussion in “Material Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Transactions and
Obligations” herein.

US Limited Partnership Programs. The objectives of the partnerships are to invest in marine cargo
containers, to generate continuing income for distribution to the limited partners, and to realize the residual
value of the container equipment at the end of its useful economic life or upon the liquidation of a partnership.

At December 31, 2005, the US Limited Partnership Programs had total assets of $84.3 million and total
liabilities of $3.2 million.

OnJuly 1, 2005, the offering period for the latest US Limited Partnership Program program closed. This
program raised $7.6 million of proceeds and acquired $6.9 million of new container equipment since its
inception in 2004.

The Group organized a new program on September 19, 2005. This program is designed to raise a
maximum of $25 million of proceeds, in an offering conducted pursuant to Regulation D of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, from “accredited” limited partners and may also seek to augment the size of its
container investments by borrowing under loan facilities secured from commercial lenders. See further
discussion in “Material Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Transactions and Obligations” herein.
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Market Overview

Average utilization for the combined Cronos fleet was 92.4% in 2005 compared to 91.8% in the prior year.
Utilization at December 31, 2005 declined by 3.3% from the beginning of the year, Approximately 1.3% of this
decline was due to the addition of new container equipment that had not yet been placed on lease. The
following table summarizes the combined utilization of the Cronos fleet:

005 2004 2003
Utilization at December 31 ... ... .. i 90.8% 94.1% 88.8%
Average utilization during the year.......... ... ... ... 92.4% 91.8% 86.0%

The following table summarizes the composition of the total fleet at December 31, 2005, by reportable
segment, based on original equipment cost.

Us
Limited Joint Private
Partnership Venture Container Owned Total
Programs Program  Programs Containers Fleet
Dry cargo containers ...........c.coouuieiinna... 81% 54% 86% 42% 65%
Specialized containers:
Refrigerated containers .. ....... ... .. ... ..... 14% 24% 3% 25% 16%
Tank containers ............ . i, 5% 12% 7% 13% 10%
Dry freight specials . .......................... = _10% 4% _20% 9%
Total ..o e 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Cronos operates a highly diversified fleet of dry cargo and specialized containers. Cronos believes that a
diversified fleet produces higher profit, more growth opportunities, a wider customer base and allows it to
broaden its business base with its existing customers by supplying a wide range of their equipment
requirements. In addition, demand for certain of these containers is less likely to be affected by global
economic downturns due to the nature of their markets and customer base.

The lease market for dry cargo containers is sensitive to the demand for consumer goods and the levels of
investment by shipping lines as they procure dry cargo containers for their own fleet. During 2005, the demand
for leased dry cargo containers moderated from the levels in 2004 when demand often exceeded supply.

In the first half of 2005, container manufacturers reported that the total level of new dry cargo container
inventories in China exceeded market requirements. Cronos believes that this imbalance was due, in part, to
the fact that shipping lines were more successful at moving their own container equipment into demand
locations in 2005 than in 2004, allowing them to manage their container inventories more efficiently, and also
due to an easing in the level of port congestion that was reported in the United States and Europe in 2004.
Manufacturers currently report that leasing company inventories of new dry cargo containers have returned to
normal levels.

The excessive inventories reduced requirements for new dry cargo container production in 2005 and
placed downward pressure on new dry cargo container prices and the related lease rates. In addition, steel
prices declined during the year. The price for a new twenty-foot dry cargo container declined to $1,450 in early
2006 from $2,300 early in 2005.

Cronos experienced strong growth in specialized containers in 2005, purchasing a total of $107.3 million
of refrigerated, tank and dry freight special equipment.

Refrigerated containers, representing the biggest category of specialized containers, were the fastest
growing equipment type in the Cronos fleet in 2005, representing $49.4 million of new production. The
demand for containerized food cargos, such as frozen fish, frozen meat and fresh fruit, continues to grow. In
addition, the conversion of food cargos from non-containerized break bulk shipping methods to refrigerated
containers is also contributing to the increasing demand for refrigerated containers by Cronos’ customers.
Cronos expects these trends to continue in future years.
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Tank containers also represent a significant share of the specialized container fleet, with their growth
driven by the demand for chemicals, pharmaceuticals and food products. In 2005, Cronos invested
$30.4 million in tank containers. The demand for tank containers is strong due to increased volumes of
transported bulk liquid and also changing trends in the method of transportation for bulk liquids from drums to
tank containers. Tank containers offer users greater safety, reduced cargo damage and increased economies of
scale. The size of the Cronos tank fleet has doubled in the last three years.

The market for dry freight specials has been buoyed by the increase in investment in heavy equipment
and project cargo, as well as an increase in investment by car carriers in the form of Roll On — Roll Off ships.
Cronos acquired $27.5 million of new dry freight special equipment in 2005.

Cronos expects the demand for specialized containers to increase even further in 2006 based on the
following market observations:

» Increasing demand for transportation of food products such as frozen fish, frozen meat and fresh fruit;

¢ Increasing demand for tank containers as a result of growth in the volume of bulk liquid transportation
within the chemical, pharmaceutical and food industries;

» Increasing levels of conversion of cargo from non-containerized to containerized transportation in both
the refrigerated and tank container markets; and,

+ Increasing levels of investment in heavy equipment and project cargo, particularly in Asia, as well as
increased investment in car carriers by major car transportation shipping lines.

Cronos has set increased investment targets for specialized containers in 2006 in line with its growth and
profit expectations for these products.

Cronos expects that the leasing market for dry cargo containers will slow further in 2006 based on the
following market observations:

» Shipping lines are experiencing increased pressure on operating margins due to increased fuel prices
and lower freight rates. As new container ships continue to be added to the world’s fleet, the pressure
on operating margins will continue as shipping lines are forced to lower their freight rates in order to
utilize their increased capacity;

+ The growth in demand for consumer goods in the United States, Europe and other developed
economies has slowed, and most forecasts are uncertain as to when this trend will reverse; and,

» Recent mergers among major shipping lines will most likely result in further fleet consolidations,
allowing shipping lines to operate more efficiently in certain locations and trade routes. This will have a
further dampening effect on the demand for leased containers.

In 2005, Cronos experienced a strong market for used container sales. Used containers are typically sold
in the non-maritime secondary market for use as temporary or permanent storage facilities. The Group sold
approximately 21,000 containers from the owned and managed fleets in 2005 resulting in a profit of $1 million
on the disposition of Cronos Owned Containers. Cronos believes that the decline in new container prices and
the increase in container inventories at non-factory locations will reduce the sales price of used containers.
Cronos has increased its disposal targets for 2006 and will dispose of off-hire inventories in locations where
sales prices equal or exceed internal economic targets.
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Container Fleet

In 2005, additions of new container equipment to the combined Cronos fleet, comprising both owned and
managed containers, were 26% higher than in 2004. The Owned Container and Joint Venture Program
segments acquired over 80% of total 2005 additions.

Cronos Fleet Container Additions

(in USD millions)
for the year ended December, 31

2005 2004 2003

Dry Cargo COMTAIMETS . . vttt ettt et ettt e et et et e e $ 46.5 $ 81.0 %408
Specialized containers:

Refrigerated containers. .. ...t 49.4 11.7 7.0

Tank containers . . ...ttt e 30.4 14.3 4.0

Dry freight specials . . ... i i e 27.5 15.1 12.9

2171 $153.8  $122.1  $64.7

During 2005, the size of the Group’s combined fleet increased by a net 6,500 TEU, representing new
container acquisitions of 38,000 TEU less disposals of 31,500 TEU.
Cronos Fleet (in TEU thousands)
at December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

US Limited Partnership Programs ......................... 71.2 86.4 93.8 1009 1i28
Joint Venture Program . .......... ... . ... .. i 130.3 68.2 37.4 9.9 —
Private Container Programs..................cooiiiiiin. 158.1 161.1 1633 180.2 187.1
Owned CONTAINEIS. « .\ttt ettt et n et iiee e ns 86.2 1236 111.3 104.0 96.0
Total Fleet . .. .v vt 4458  439.3 4058 3950 395.9

The size of the Joint Venture Program fleet increased by 91% in 2005, when compared to December
2004. This reflected both the acquisition of new container equipment and the purchase of $73.8 million of
container fixed assets from the Owned Containers segment utilizing the increased funding capacity available
to the Program.

The fleets of both the Private Container Programs and the US Limited Partnership Programs have
declined as the quantities of equipment disposed at the end of its useful economic life exceeded new container
additions.

At December 31, 2005, the Owned Container fleet included approximately 6,130 TEU of equipment that
was held for resale to Managed Container Programs. Excluding equipment held for resale, the Owned
Container fleet declined by 29% as a result of the sale to the Joint Venture Program.
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Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004
Overview
Cronos reported net income of $7.8 million in 2005. Net income for 2005 included the impact of:
» A charge of $4.1 million recorded in connection with the TOEMT litigation;
+ Legal expenses of $2.4 million relating to Palatin and TOEMT litigation; and,

+ Charges of $0.9 million (including the effect of income taxes) in respect of one-time termination
benefits relating to involuntary employee terminations pursuant to a reorganization of the Group’s
marketing and operations structures.

The impact of these charges was partially offset by the following:
+ Income of $1.3 million recognized on the recovery of amounts owed by a related party;
¢ The recovery of $0.8 million payable to a Private Container Program; and,

¢ The reversal of a taxation provision of $0.4 million which had been provided against potential
withholding taxes on the unremitted retained earnings of certain subsidiaries.

The overall effect of these items was to reduce net income by $4.9 million, or approximately $0.63 cents
per diluted share.

Analysis & Discussion

Gross lease revenue {“GLR ") of $139 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, was $6.9 million, or
5%, higher than for the prior year. Of the increase, $5.9 million was due to the increase in fleet size and
$1 million was due to the effect of the increased utilization during the year. GLR increased for almost all
product types, with the exception of refrigerated containers where GLR declined by $0.7 million due to the
disposal of older equipment at the end of its economic life.

Direct operating expenses were $18.1 million in 2005, a decrease of $2.5 million, or 12%, compared to
2004 due primarily to reductions in inventory-related and activity-related costs:

 Repositioning expense declined by $1.2 million as the Group moved fewer containers from low to high
demand locations reflecting the low volume of off-hire inventories and the strong market for container
disposals; and,

» Activity-related expenses declined by $1 million as the level of handling and repair work undertaken
decreased in line with the reduced volumes of container redeliveries and off-hire inventories.

Operating segment information (see Note 3 to the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements).

us
Limited Joint Private
Partnership Venture Container Owned

(in USD thousands) Programs Program Programs Containers Total
Year ended December 31, 2005

- gross lease revenue ............... $ 23,512 $ 30,637 $ 47,368 $ 37,507 $139,024

- direct operating expenses .......... (3,587) (2,119) (7,250) (5,135) (18,091)

-net lease revenue . ................ 19,925 28,518 40,118 32,372 120,933

- direct financing lease income . ... ... — — — 1,757 1,757

- payments to Managed Container

Programs........................ (14,801) (26,025) (36,177) — (77,003)

- container depreciation ............. — — — (14,890) (14,890)

- container interest expense.......... — — — (6,266) (6,266)
Segment profit ...................... $ 5,124 $ 2,493 $ 3,941 $ 12,973 $ 24,531
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US Limited Partnership Programs: Segment profit increased to $5.1 million in 2005 from $4 million in
2004.

» Net lease revenue for this segment decreased by $1.7 million compared to the prior year. GLR
declined by $3.2 million due primarily to the effect of the disposal of containers at the end of their
useful economic life and the liquidation of three of the partnerships. Direct operating expenses
declined by $1.4 million, reflecting lower inventory-related and activity-related costs.

s Payments to US Limited Partnership Programs declined by $2.9 million when compared to 2004.
The ratio of segment profit to net lease revenue increased to 26% in 2005, from 18% in 2004, as
the management fee attributable to the cash generated by the Programs increased as cash
collections and disposal activity increased.

Joint Venture Program: Segment profit increased to $2.5 million in 2005 from $1.3 million in 2004.

» Net lease revenue for this segment increased to $28.5 million in 2005 reflecting the significant
investment in additional equipment for the program including the acquisition of $73.8 million of
container fixed assets from the Group.

» Payments to the Joint Venture Program increased by $12.1 million, which is in line with the
increase in net lease revenue for this segment.

Private Container Programs: Segment profit increased to $3.9 million in 2005 from $2.8 million in
2004.

* Net lease revenue increased by $1 million when compared to 2004 reflecting the decline in
inventory-related and activity-related expenses.

» Payments to Private Container Programs were $0.1 million lower than in 2004. The ratio of
segment profit to net lease revenue increased to 10% in 2005, from 7% in 2004. This was due to
the expiration of a number of agreements with fixed payment terms.

Owned Containers: Segment profit declined by $1.3 million to $13 million in 2005.

*» Net lease revenue declined by $3.1 million due primarily to the sale of $73.8 million of container
fixed assets to the Joint Venture Program in August 2005.

« Container depreciation of $14.9 million in 2005 was $2.8 million lower than in 2004. The primary
factors for the decline were:

- The effect of the sale of the container fixed assets to the Joint Venture Program in the third
calendar quarter;

- The effect of the disposal of equipment at the end of its useful economic life more than offset
the increase in depreciation attributable to new container additions; and,

- The effect of the change in the estimate of useful lives for tank, rolltrailer and flat rack products
on October 1, 2003, resulted in a $0.1 million decline in depreciation expense.

» Container interest expense of $6.3 million in 2005 was $1.2 million higher than in 2004. The
increase in interest expense was primarily attributable to increased US interest rates. In addition,
the Group incurred $0.2 million of breakage costs that resulted from the restructure of the
Revolving Credit Facility. The increase in interest was partially offset by the effect of the
repayment of $64.2 million of debt utilizing part of the proceeds generated by the container fixed
asset sale to the Joint Venture Program.

Equipment trading revenue of $2.2 million in 2005 represented transactions undertaken primarily in
Scandinavia for which the Group used its relationships with equipment manufacturers to assist third parties in
designing and acquiring their own equipment and organizing delivery to designated locations. Equipment
trading expenses represented equipment and related costs for this activity. The Group eamned $0.2 million
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from equipment trading activity in 2005, compared with $0.7 million in 2004, reflecting a reduction in both the
quantity of transactions undertaken and in average profit margins.

Commissions, fees and other operating income of $5.4 million in 2005 was $1.8 million higher than the
prior year. The main changes were attributable to:

* An increase of $0.7 million in the level of gains recorded on the disposal of fixed assets. This was due in
part to the increased disposal proceeds realized on the sale of equipment at the end of its economic life
(see discussion in “Market Overview” above); ‘

« A $0.6 million increase in design and consultancy fee income reflecting a project undertaken with a
European customer;

» A $0.4 million increase in fees earned on the disposal of containers owned by Managed Container
Programs that again reflected the strong market for used containers; and,

» A $0.2 million increase in finance lease income due to an increase in the value of direct financing leases
held by the Group.

Gain on settlement of litigation: In January 2005, the Group completed the sale of an estate located in
Amersham, England (the “Amersham Estate”) in which Stefan M. Palatin, a former chairman of the Group,
held a beneficial interest. The order for the sale of the Amersham Estate had been directed by the UK courts
so that the proceeds of the sale could be applied to discharge two charging orders that the Group had secured
against Mr. Palatin and his beneficial interest in the Amersham Estate. The Group received a total of
$2.6 million in respect of the two charging orders and related interest.

The first charging order secured by Cronos was in respect of the remaining principal balance of
$1.28 million owed under a loan note by Mr. Palatin and related interest of $0.3 million.

The second charging order was secured in respect of an additional amount of $0.5 million owed by
Mr. Palatin and related interest of $0.5 million.

In December 2004, the Group conducted a review of the $2.6 million proceeds expected on the sale of the
Amersham Estate. The Group concluded that the loan note subject to the first charging order was recoverable
and accordingly, the $1.3 million reserve that had previously been recorded against the principal balance of the
loan note in 1997 was reversed and the receivable reinstated in December 2004. The remaining proceeds of
$1.3 million expected on the sale of the Amersham Estate, comprised the second charging order and interest
due in connection with the first and second charging orders. A receivable had not previously been recorded for
these items. The Group concluded that as these items represented contingent gains, they should not be
recognized until the consummation of the sale of the Amersham Estate and the settlement of all contingencies
requisite to the distribution of funds to the Group. Accordingly, the $1.3 million of additional proceeds were
recognized in the first quarter of 2005 on the completion of the sale of the property and the distribution of the
amounts due to Cronos under the charging orders.

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $21.9 million in 2005, an increase of $3.2 million, when
compared to 2004. The increase was primarily due to:

* An increase of $2 million in legal costs for TOEMT and Palatin litigation; and,

+ $1.7 million of charges in respect of one-time termination benefits relating to involuntary employee
terminations pursuant to reorganizations of the marketing and operations structures.

These increases were partly offset by:

» A $0.6 million decline in the expense recognized for a stock appreciation rights plan reflecting a
smaller increase in the Group share price in 2005 than in 2004,

Recovery of amount payable to a Managed Container Program: In 2003 the Group entered into a
settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with a group of Austrian investment entities collectively
known as “Contrin”.
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The Settlement Agreement provided for Cronos to pay Contrin a total of $3.5 million if the Group was
unable to foreclose the charging orders against the Amersham Estate by the third anniversary of the effective
date of the settlement (December 17, 2006). In addition, had the net proceeds of foreclosure of the
Amersham Estate in satisfaction of the charging orders and any charging order obtained by the Group to

enforce an Austrian judgment totalled less than $3.5 million, then the Group agreed to make up the
difference.

In 2003, the Company calculated that the present value of the total $3.5 million future cash payments
under the Settlement Agreement installment payment plan, discounted using an appropriate risk-free interest
rate, was $3.3 million. In addition, the Group had previously recorded a reserve of approximately $3 million
against the Contrin claims. Interest has been charged to the Company’s income statement over the period for
performance of the Settlement Agreement using the effective interest rate method.

Under the Settlement Agreement installment payment plan, Cronos paid Contrin $0.3 million in
November 2003 and $0.3 million in February 2004. Cronos made an additional payment of $2.1 million on the
completion of the sale of the Amersham Estate and the distribution to Cronos of the amounts due to Cronos
under the two charging orders in the first quarter of 2005. The balance of $0.9 million was originally due on or
before November 17, 2006.

In the first quarter of 2003, the Group, Contrin, and the TOEMT liquidator settled their differences with
respect to the allocation of the proceeds remaining from the sale of the Amersham Estate after discharging the
Cronos charging orders (the “Amersham Surplus Proceeds’), agreeing to an allocation of such proceeds
between Contrin and the liquidator. This agreement was approved by the Court supervising the TOEMT
liquidation in April 2005. Under the agreement, Contrin was allocated Amersham Surplus Proceeds in an
amount sufficient to fully discharge the Group’s remaining payment obligations to Contrin under the terms of
Settlement Agreement.

In March 2005, the total payable to Contrin in the Cronos financial statements of $0.8 million,
comprising the balance of the 1997 reserve of $0.7 million and interest accrued since the date of the 2003
Settlement Agreement of $0.1 million was recognized as income.

Provision for legal claims: As discussed in [tem 3 — “Legal Proceedings”, the liquidator acting on
behalf of the two TOEMT companies has made a number of claims against Cronos. The Group understands
that the liquidator has identified two creditors (“MKB” and the “Contrin Creditors”) of the TOEMT
companies and to date has acknowledged the claims of MKB. MKB bases its claim against the TOEMT
companies on one or more loan notes (the “Loan Notes”) purportedly issued by the TOEMT companies. In
December 2005, the Group entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”) with an independent third-party
(the “Third-Party”) under which it contracted to pay a maximum amount of $4 million (inclusive of related
transaction costs) to the Third-Party to acquire the Loan Notes, in the event that the Third-Party were to
purchase the Loan Notes from MKB. The Group directed its bank to issue an irrevocable standby letter of
credit with an expiry date of March 15, 2006 (subsequently extended to March 31, 2006) in favor of the
Third-Party and placed $4 million on deposit with the bank as security for the letter of credit. The expiry date
under the Agreement was March 1, 2006 (subsequently extended to March 31, 2006). In February 2006, the
Third-Party advised the Group that MKB was prepared to enter into an agreement to sell the Loan Notes to
the Third-Party. On March 21, 2006, the Group acquired the Loan Notes for a payment of $3.6 million
(inclusive of related transaction costs) and the issuance of a guarantee by the Group, for a maximum amount
of $0.4 million, under which the Group would be required to make a payment of up to $0.4 million in the event
that MKB suffers a loss as a result of claims made by the liquidator of the two TOEMTs against MKB. The
Group also acquired the claims of the Contrin Creditors for $0.1 million in March 2006.

With the purchase of the claims of the only known creditors of both TOEMT’s, the Group intends to
pursue an end to the litigation brought by the liquidator against the Group. The Group is unable to predict
when the termination of the litigation brought by the liquidator against the Group and the winding-up of the
TOEMT liquidations will occur.

31




In December 2005, the Group recorded a charge of $4.1 million equal to the fair value of the costs
associated with the Agreement, the related guarantee, the purchase of the claim of the Contrin Creditors and
the estimated costs of establishing the position of the Group as the sole creditor of the two TOEMTs.

Equity in earnings of affiliate increased to $4.3 million in 2005 compared to $2.9 million in 2004 due to
the expansion of the container fleet in the Joint Venture Program. See additional discussion herein.

Income Taxes for 2005 were $0.2 million lower than in 2004.

The Group provides for potential deferred income tax liabilities on the unremitted retained earnings of
certain subsidiaries. In December 2005, the status of a wholly owned European based company (“the
European Company”) changed. As a result of this change, future dividend payments to the European
Company from its wholly owned subsidiaries will be subject to a zero rate of withholding tax under the
provisions of a favorable tax treaty. Accordingly, in December 2005 the Group reversed $0.4 million of

potential deferred income taxes that had previously been provided against potential distributions to the
European Company.

Excluding the effect of adjustments relating to income taxes on unremitted retained earnings, income
taxes for 2005 and 2004 equalled 15% of income before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliate.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003
Overview

Cronos reported net income of $8.9 million in 2004 compared to $4.2 million in the prior year. The
increase in profitability in 2004 can be attributed primarily to:

» Growth in global container trade;

+ Increased availability of funding for investment in new container production and, in particular, the
growth and profitability of the Joint Venture Program; and,

» Income recognized on the recovery of a related party loan note.

Analysis & Discussion

Gross lease revenue of $132.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, was $14.6 million, or 12%,
higher than for the prior year. $9.4 million of the increase was due to the combined effect of the change in
utilization and per diem rates and $5.2 million was due to the increase in fleet size. GLR increased for almost
all product types, with the exception of refrigerated containers where GLR declined by $0.2 million due to the
disposal of older equipment at the end of its economic life.

Direct operating expenses were $20.6 million in 2004, a decrease of $4.9 million, or 19%, compared to
2003 due to reductions in inventory-related costs:

+ Storage expenses declined by $2.4 million due to the reduction in off-hire container inventories;

* Repositioning expense declined by $2.5 million (see discussion in Market Overview above).

32




Operating segment information (see Note 3 to the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements).

Us
Limited Joint Private
Partnership Venture Container Owned
(in USD thousands) Programs Program Programs Containers Total
Year ended December 31, 2004
- gross lease revenue ................... $ 26671 $16349 §$ 47,442 $ 41,634 $132,096
- direct operating expenses .............. (5,012) (1,058) (8,359) (6,134)  (20,563)
-net lease revenue . .................... 21,659 15,291 39,083 35,500 111,533
- direct financing lease income . .......... — — —_ 1,547 1,547
- payments to Managed Container Programs (17,675) (13,963)  (36,323) — (67,961)
- container depreciation ................. — — — (17,716)  (17,716)
- container interest expense . ............. — — — (5,076) (5,076)
Segment profit .......................... $ 3984 § 1,328 $§ 2,760 $§ 14,255 § 22,327

US Limited Partnership Programs: segment profit increased to $4 million in 2004 from $3.4 million in
2003.

* Net lease revenue for this segment increased by $2.3 million over the prior year. The improvement
in fleet utilization resulted in increased GLR and lower inventory-related direct operating
expenses. This more than offset the effect of the disposal of containers at the end of their useful
economic life.

« Payments to US Limited Partnership Programs increased by $1.7 million, which is in line with the
increase in net lease revenue for this segment.

Joint Venture Program: segment profit increased to $1.3 million in 2004 from $0.7 million in 2003.

» Net lease revenue for this segment almost doubled to $15.3 million in 2004 reflecting the
significant investment in additional equipment for the program.

s Payments to the Joint Venture Program increased by $6.8 million, which is in line with the
increase in net lease revenue for this segment.

Private Container Programs: segment profit increased to $2.8 million in 2004 from $1.6 million in 2003.

» Net lease revenue increased by $4.9 million when compared to 2003. The improvement in fleet
utilization resulted in a $2.5 million increase in GLR and a $2.4 million reduction in inventory-
related direct operating expenses.

« Payments to Private Container Programs increased by $3.8 million over the prior year. The ratio
of segment profit to net lease revenue increased to 7% in 2004 from 5% in 2003. The level of
payments to Private Container Programs with variable payment terms increased in line with net
lease revenue. Under the variable payment basis, the amount payable to the Managed Container
Program is based on the rentals to the ocean carriers after deducting direct operating expenses and
the compensation earned by Cronos for managing the equipment. The level of payments to Private
Container Programs with fixed payment terms declined as the Group amended the terms of a
fixed payment agreement with a container owner in November 2004. The amended agreement
which was effective from October 2004, is now accounted for as a capital lease obligation.
Accordingly, the Group recorded an adjustment to container equipment and capital lease of
approximately $3.2 million in the fourth quarter of 2004.

Segment profit on Owned Containers increased by $5.2 million to $14.3 million in 2004.

* GLR increased by $4.2 million reflecting the effect of the increased fleet size and the combined
effect of the increase in utilization and per diem rates.
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» Container depreciation of $17.7 million in 2004 was $0.4 higher than in 2003 as the increase in
depreciation attributable to new container additions more than offset the effect of the disposal of
equipment at the end of its economic life.

« Container interest expense of $5.1 million in 2004, was $0.6 million, or 10%, lower than in 2003,
The main changes in interest expense were attributable to:

- An increase of $0.3 million due to higher interest rates during 2004;

- A saving of $0.4 million resulting from the refinancing of approximately $9 million of
fixed rate debt with variable rate debt in December 2003; and,

- In December 2003, $0.5 million of breakage costs were incurred as a result of the refinancing of
approximately $9 million of fixed rate debt.

Equipment trading revenue of $4.7 million in 2004 represented transactions undertaken primarily in
Scandinavia and Australia for which the Group used its relationships with equipment manufacturers to assist
third parties to design and acquire their own equipment and organize delivery to designated locations.
Equipment trading expenses represented equipment and related costs for this activity. The Group earned
$0.7 million from equipment trading activity in 2004, compared with $0.4 million in 2003, reflecting improved
profit margins for the transactions undertaken.

Commissions, fees and other operating income of $3.6 million in 2004 were almost unchanged from the
prior year. The primary activity included:

» A $0.7 million decline in unrealized exchange gains. In 2003, the Group recorded $0.5 million of
foreign exchange gains that were recognized primarily on Euro direct financing lease receivables;

* An increase of $0.5 million on the gain recorded on the disposal of fixed assets. This was due in part to
the increased disposal proceeds realised on the sale of equipment at the end of its economic life (see
discussion in “Market Overview” above); and,

* A $0.2 million increase in fees earned on the disposal of containers owned by Managed Container
Programs that again reflected the strong market for used containers.

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $18.8 million in 2004, an increase of $3 million, when
compared to 2003. Of the total increase, $0.9 million can be attributed to the decline in the value of the
US dollar against other major currencies. In 2004, over 50% of selling, general and administrative expenses
were incurred in non US dollar currencies. The balance of the increase was primarily due to:

» A $1.1 million increase in the expense recognized for a stock appreciation rights plan reflecting a larger
increase in the Group share price in 2004 than in the prior year;

+ A $0.3 million increase in professional services costs reflecting an increase in the level of corporate
governance and compliance work undertaken; and,

* A $0.6 million increase in manpower costs due in part to the recruitment of additional employees to
support both the growth in the business and the additional corporate governance and compliance
workload.

Recovery of related party loan note of $1.3 million in 2004 represented the reversal of a provision against
the principal balance due under a loan note between the Group and Mr. Palatin. The Group had previously
established a reserve against the principal balance of $1.3 million in 1997. In December 2004, the Group
entered into a contract for the sale of the Amersham Estate. The order for sale of the Amersham Estate had
been directed by the UK courts so that the proceeds of the sale could be applied to discharge two charging
orders that the Group had secured against Mr. Palatin and his beneficial interest in the Amersham Estate. The
first charging order secured by Cronos was in respect of the remaining balance, and related interest, owed
under the loan note by Mr. Palatin. The second charging order was secured in respect of additional amounts
owed by Mr. Palatin for which the Group had not recorded a receivable. In December 2004, the Group
conducted a review of the amount due under the loan note and concluded, that in light of the fact that a
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contract for the sale of the Amersham Estate had been executed and that no other creditor of Mr. Palatin had
secured an equal or better charge over the proceeds from the Amersham Estate, that the loan note was
recoverable. Accordingly, the $1.3 million provision that had previously been recorded against the principal
balance of the loan note was reversed and the receivable reinstated.

The Group also conducted a review of additional proceeds of $1.3 million expected on the sale of the
Amersham Estate, comprising the second charging order and interest due in connection with the first and
second charging orders. A receivable had not previously been recorded for these items. The Group concluded
that as these items represented contingent gains, they should not be recognized until the consummation of the
sale of the Amersham Estate and the settlement of all contingencies requisite to the distribution of funds to
the Group.

The sale of the Amersham Estate was completed in January 2003, and the Group received $2.6 million in
respect of its charging orders and related interest. This receipt included $1.3 million in respect of the
repayment of the outstanding loan note.

Equity in earnings of affiliate increased to $2.9 million in 2004 compared to $1.5 million in 2003 due to
the expansion of the Joint Venture Program fleet. See additional discussion herein.

Income Taxes of $1.1 million in 2004 represented an effective tax rate of 15%. The effective tax rate after
adjusting for the non-operating recovery of the related party loan note was 19%. In 2003, the tax benefit of
$1.5 million included tax charges of $1.2 million which were more than offset by a credit of $2.7 million that
was recorded in connection with an asset refinancing transaction. The $0.1 million reduction in the amount of
tax charges in 2004 was due primarily to the fact that the increased profit reported in 2004 has been earned in
jurisdictions with relatively low tax rates. In addition, the Group recorded a $0.2 million tax benefit in one of
its European entities that arose as a result of transactions involving the transfer of container equipment.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group uses cash from a number of sources in order to meet its operating and other cash flow
commitments.

The primary sources of cash generated by operating activities are gross lease revenue provided by the
Group’s container fleet, fee revenues from its Managed Container Programs and other parties and income
earned on equipment trading and direct financing lease transactions.

Cash flow is utilized to meet costs relating to day-to-day fleet support, payments to Managed Container
Programs, selling, general and administrative expenses, interest expense, servicing the current portion of long-
term borrowings, financing a portion of Owned Container acquisitions, providing equity contributions to fund
10% of the capital expenditure requirements of the Joint Venture Program and making payments to container
manufacturers on equipment trading transactions.

Cash flows relating to gross lease revenue are largely dependent upon the timely collections of lease
revenues from shipping lines and other customers. At December 31, 2005, the amount due from lessees was
$28.6 million representing an increase of $3.5 million from the position at December 31, 2004. This increase is
entirely due to the increase in the amounts billed for gross lease revenue and disposal proceeds in 2005.

Based on loss experience for the last fourteen years, bad debts have approximated 1% of lease revenues.
The Group monitors the aging of lease receivables, collections and the credit status of existing and potential
customers. There is always a risk that some shipping lines may experience financial difficulty. Any resultant
material increase in the level of bad debts could potentially affect the ability of the Group to meet its operating
and other commitments.

The Group utilizes the proceeds arising from the transfer of equipment held for resale to Managed
Container Programs to pay the related amount due to container manufacturers. At December 31, 2005, the
Group held $38.1 million of container equipment for resale to Managed Container Programs, including the
Joint Venture Program. This represented a $21 million increase over the position at December 31, 2004, and
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was due to the increase in the level of container acquisitions by the Group due to the strong demand for
specialized containers and the continued growth of the Joint Venture Program.

Proceeds generated by the sale of Owned Containers at the end of their economic life are utilized in the
first instance to repay any related outstanding balance under debt or capital lease facilities.

The Group utilizes surplus cash balances to pre-pay debt under the Revolving Credit Facility and thereby
reduces interest expense. Such amounts may be redrawn at a later date for the purchase of containers and
other purposes.

Cash Flow Statements for the yéars ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities during 2005 was $26 million.

Cash collections increased by $23.8 million when compared to 2004 due to the combined effect of the
increase in the amounts billed and collected for gross lease revenue and container disposals. A significant
portion of the increased cash collections were in turn utilized to make the related payments to Managed
Container Programs.

During 20035, the Group sold $86.6 million of container equipment, which had been held for resale, to
Managed Container Programs. The proceeds from these sales have been used to make the related payments to
the container manufacturer.

Other receipts in 2005 included $1.3 million relating to the distribution of proceeds from the sale of the
Amersham Estate.

The net cash provided by operating activities in 2005 was $4.8 million, or 16%, lower than in 2004. The
decline in the net cash generated in 2005 was primarily due to the following:

* A $4.5 million increase in payments for selling general and administrative payments including legal
costs incurred for Palatin and TOEMT litigation; and,

» The cash generated by operating activities in 2004 included additional receipts totaling almost
$2 million related to payments received for an equipment trading transaction and the release of cash
that had previously been held as a security deposit.

Net cash provided by operating activities during 2004 was 36% highcr than in 2003. The increase in net
cash generated in 2004 was primarily due to the following:

+ Increased collections of gross lease revenue;

* Reduced payments for direct operating costs; and,

» Increased receipts for equipment trading transactions.

‘Thcse were partially offset by:

¢ Increased distributions to Managed Container Programs; and,

* Increased payments for selling, general and administrative expenses.

Investing Activities include the acquisition of containers for the Group’s owned container fleet, the
purchase of other assets related to the operation of the worldwide Cronos office network and equity
investments in the Joint Venture Program. Net cash provided by investing activities for 2005 was $20.4 million
and included the following:

» The receipt of proceeds realized on the disposal of equipment amounting to $91.1 million. Of this,
$73.8 million related to the sale of equipment to the Joint Venture Program, and the balance related to
equipment sold at the end of its useful life. These proceeds were utilized primarily to repay related
outstanding balances on debt and capital lease obligations.
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This was partially offset by:

+ Payments of $55.3 million for the acquisition of new container and other equipment and investments of
$4.3 million in container equipment placed on direct financing leases;

« Investments of $11.1 million in the Joint Venture Program in order to provide the Group’s share of
equity funding for additional equipment acquisitions by the Program.

Net cash used in investing activities was $16.6 million in 2004 and included the following items:

* Payments of $29.7 million for new container and other equipment of which $5 million was sold to a
Managed Container Program in the first quarter of 2004; and,

 Investments of $3.6 million in the Joint Venture Program in order to provide the Group’s share of
equity funding for additional equipment acquisitions by the Program.

This was partially offset by:

» Realization of $16.7 million on the disposal of container equipment of which $11.7 million related to
equipment at the end of its useful life, and $5 million related to the sale to the Managed Container
Program. The proceeds received in both cases were utilized primarily to repay related outstanding
balances on debt and capital lease obligations,

Net cash used in investing activities was $9.8 million in 2003 and included the following:
» Acquisition of $16.9 million of new container and other equipment; and,

+ $2.6 million of equity contributions to the Joint Venture Program.

These payments were partially offset by:

» $9.6 million of proceeds from the sale of container equipment, including $4.6 million of proceeds
generated by a sale to the Joint Venture Program.

Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing activities in 2005 was $48.2 million and included the
following items: ’

« Proceeds of $49.8 million generated by debt and capital leases to fund the acquisition of container and
other equipment;

» Repayments of $95.2 million to financial institutions, including a repayment of approximately
$64.2 million from funds received on the equipment sale to the Joint Venture Program in the third
quarter of 2005 and $31 million of further payments, including short term pre-payments of debt using
surplus cash balances to reduce interest expense;

 Dividend payments of $1.7 million; and,

« $2.7 million of net payments to restricted cash accounts. During the year, the Group realised
$1.2 million in cash previously restricted in accordance with the terms of a number of financing
facilities, which were renegotiated. In addition, the Group made payments of $3.9 into a restricted cash
account under the terms of a letter of credit with a financial institution.

This was partially offset by:
» The receipt of $1.280 million from the recovery of a related party loan; and,

+ The receipt of $0.4 million upon the issuance of new shares pursuant to the terms of the 1999 Stock
Option Plan and the Non-Employee Directors Equity Plan.

Net cash used in financing activities in 2004 was $5.1 million and included the following items:
+ Utilization of $21.6 million of debt and capital leases to fund the acquisition of container and other

equipment;
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+ Repayments of $25.4 million to financial institutions, including a paydown of approximately $5 million
from funds received on the equipment sale to the Managed Container Program in the first quarter of
2004, $10 million of scheduled payments and $9.5 million of further payments, including short term
pre-payments of debt using surplus cash balances to reduce interest expense;

« Dividend payments of $0.8 million; and,

+ $0.5 million of payments to restricted cash accounts in accordance with the terms of a number of
financing facilities.

Net cash used in financing activities was $10.1 million in 2003 and included the following:

» The utilization of $35.6 million of revolving credit and term loan facilities to fund equipment
acquisitions and to refinance $16.9 million of existing debt and capital lease obligations. The Group
made additional repayments of $28 million of debt and capital lease obligations including a $4.6 million
repayment in connection with an equipment sale to the Joint Venture Program and repurchased
$0.3 million of its common shares.

Capital Resources
Capital Expenditures and Comntitments

The Group purchases new containers for its Owned Container operations and for resale to its Managed
Container Programs and other parties. At December 31, 2005, the Group owed container manufacturers
$52.8 million for equipment. The Group intends to fund $15 million of this equipment utilizing new and
existing debt and capital lease facilities and to sell $37.8 million of this equipment to the Joint Venture
Program.

In addition, at December 31, 2005, the Group had outstanding orders to purchase container equipment of
$29.4 million. Of this amount, the Group intends to sell $26.6 million to the Joint Venture Program and
$1.8 million to a third party under an equipment trading transaction. The remaining $1 million will be funded
by the Group using existing container funding facilities and cash.

Capital expenditures for containers in 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $54.9 million, $29.1 million and
$16.5 million respectively. Other capital expenditures in 2003, 2004 and 2003 were $0.4 million, $0.6 million
and $0.3 million, respectively.

In February 2005, the Group acquired 100% ownership of a variable interest entity in which it held a
0.01% share. The Group had determined that it was the primary beneficiary of the variable interest entity in
December 2003. The debt held by the variable interest entity was restructured in February 2005. In
connection with this restructuring, the Group issued a guarantee for $10 million of the outstanding debt and
the lender cancelled an option to acquire 25% of the variable interest entity. In addition, 200,000 warrants to
purchase 200,000 common shares of the Company were cancelled effective February 4, 2005. The warrants,
which were exercisable at $4.41 per share, were held by the lender to the variable interest entity. See the
Group’s Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 10, 2005. The outstanding debt balance was
repaid in full on August 1, 2005, as part of the funding restructuring program in which the Group sold
$73.8 million of containers to the Joint Venture Program.

On April 1, 2003, the Group sold $4.6 million of containers to the Joint Venture Program and transferred
an additional $1 million of containers as a capital contribution. The Group utilized the proceeds from the sale
of containers to repay approximately $4.6 million of indebtedness outstanding under an existing revolving line
of credit. The sale of the containers by the Group to the Joint Venture Program was at book value, which
approximated fair value, and therefore did not result in a gain or loss.

Cronos intends to use funding from each of its operating segments to finance future fleet growth (see
“Funding” herein for a discussion of funding for each segment).

The Group believes that it has sufficient resources to support its operating and investing activities for the
next twelve months.
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Material Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Transactions and Obligations

Joint Venture Program. The Joint Venture Program has been a major source of Managed Container
Program funding since its inception in 2002 and is 50% owned by a subsidiary of the Group and 50% owned by
a lender to the Group, a major international financial services provider. The purpose of the program is to
acquire and lease marine cargo containers to third party lessees with several lenders, including the 50% joint
venture owner, providing up to 80% of the cost of acquiring the containers and the joint venture partners each
providing one-half of the equity to fund the balance of the capital requirements of the program. The joint
venture entity is a bankruptcy-remote, special purpose company organized under the laws of Bermuda.

The Group has determined that the Joint Venture Program falls within the scope of FIN 46R; however it
is not a variable interest entity. The maximum exposure for Cronos to losses as a result of its involvement with
the Joint Venture Program at December 31, 2005, was $31.7 million, representing the total of its equity
investment in the Joint Venture Program and the management fees due to Cronos from the program. The
Joint Venture Program is accounted for under the equity method of accounting.

Under the operative documents governing the Joint Venture Program, certain changes in control of the
Group constitute an event of default, permitting the lenders to the Joint Venture Program to accelerate
repayment of the Joint Venture Program’s indebtedness. In addition, whether or not a change of control
constitutes an event of default, one of the agreements governing the Joint Venture Program provides that upon
a change in control of the Group, the parent of the Group’s joint venture partner {and lead lender to the Joint
Venture Program) may cause the Group to purchase the container assets of the Joint Venture Program at a
purchase price equal to their book value plus a premium of 10%, and to purchase all other assets of the Joint
Venture Program at their book value. In addition, at the election of the parent of the Group’s joint venture
partner (and lead lender), the parent may cause the Joint Venture Program to repay, in full, the Joint
Ventures Program’s outstanding indebtedness.

A further discussion of the Group’s involvement and transactions with the Joint Venture Program is
provided in Item 1 — “Business”, elsewhere in Item 7 - “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and in Notes | and 10 to the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements
herein.

US Limited Partnership Programs — General Partner. The Group has equity interests as a general
partner in six US limited partnership programs. The partnerships are all California limited partnerships
managed by Cronos Capital Corp., an indirect subsidiary of the Company. Since 1979, sixteen public limited
partnerships and one private limited partnership have raised over $485 million from over 37,500 investors.
Eleven of the original seventeen partnerships have now been dissolved.

The general partner investments are accounted for using the equity method.

In accordance with FIN 46R, the Company has determined that the six limited partnerships qualify as
variable interest entities. In each case, the Company has concluded that neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries, is the primary beneficiary of any US Limited Partnership Program.

The general partner is indemnified by the partnerships for any liabilities suffered by it arising out of its
activities as general partner, except in the case of misconduct or negligence. As limited partnerships, the
limited partners may not be assessed for additional capital contributions, and it is possible that the general
partner could be liable if the assets of the partnerships are not sufficient to pay their liabilities. However, the
Group considers that the risk of any such loss is not material. Therefore, the maximum exposure for Cronos to
losses as a result of its involvement with the US Limited Partnership Programs at December 31, 2005, was
$2.8 million, representing the total amount due to Cronos for management fees and other items from the
partnerships.

A further discussion of the Group’s involvement and transactions with US Limited partnerships is
provided in Item 1 — “Business”, elsewhere in Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and in Notes 1 and 10 to the 2005 Consolidated Financial
Statements herein.
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Parent Guarantee under Agreements with Private Container Programs. The Company has provided
parent guarantees for certain agreements between wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company and Private
Container Programs. The agreements are in the form of a master lease and provide that the subsidiary
companies make payments to the Private Container Programs based on rentals collected after deducting direct
operating expenses and the income earned by the subsidiary company for managing the containers. The
subsidiary company is not liable to make payments to the Private Container Program if the containers are not
placed on a lease or if a lessee fails to pay the lease rentals.

At each financial statement date, the amounts due under each agreement are recorded as a liability and
disclosed under amounts payable to Managed Container Programs. The amount payable at December 31,
2005 was $6.4 million. The terms of the guarantees generally obligate the Company to ensure payments and
other obligations of the subsidiary companies are performed on a timely basis and in accordance with the
terms of the agreement.

The agreements with the Private Container Programs expire between 2006 and 2015. Should a default
occur, the Company would be required to make the contracted payments on behalf of the subsidiary
companies over the remaining term of the agreements or until such time as the default was remedied. Based
on the $4.1 million earned by the Private Container Programs for the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company
estimates that the maximum amount of future payments for rentals collected after deducting direct operating
expenses and the income earned for managing the containers would be $58.7 million. The fair value of the
estimated amount of maximum future payments is $49.8 million.

Guarantees under Fixed Non-cancellable Operating Leases with Private Container Programs. Certain
subsidiaries of the Group have fixed operating lease agreements for container equipment with Private
Container Programs. The Company has provided parent company guarantees for the $11.7 million of
minimum future lease payments outstanding under these agreements at December 31, 2005. The agreements
provide that, in the event of a default by the subsidiary, the Company will pay all amounts due under the
agreements as they fall due. The agreements contain purchase options, the majority of which allow the Group
to acquire the containers after a period of ten years. See “Contractual Obligations” herein and Note 15 (c) to
the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements for the minimum amount of future lease payments due under
fixed operating and other lease contracts.

Agreements with Private Container Programs — early termination options. At December 31, 2005,
approximately 69% (based on original equipment cost) of the agreements with Private Container Programs
contained early termination options, under which the container owner may terminate the agreement if certain
performance thresholds are not achieved. At December 31, 2005, approximately 41% (based on original
equipment cost) of the containers subject to these agreements were cligible for early termination. Cronos
believes that early termination of these agreements is unlikely.

Agreements with Private Container Programs — change of control provisions. At December 31, 2005,
approximately 61% (based on original equipment cost) of the containers subject to agreements with Private
Container Programs provided that a change in ownership of the Group, without the prior consent of the
container owner, may constitute an event of default under the agreement. In substantially all of these
agreements, the consent of the container owners may not be unreasonably withheld. In the event that consent
is not obtained, the container owners may require the Group to transfer possession of 41% of the containers
under management to another equipment manager. Such transfer of possession may result in the Group
incurring certain costs. The owners of the remaining 20% of the containers under management may require the
Group to purchase the equipment from the container owners pursuant to the terms of their respective
agreements, generally a stipulated percentage (determined by age of the equipment) of the original cost of the
equipment.

A further discussion of the Group’s involvement and transactions with the Private Container Programs is
provided in Item 1 — “Business”, elsewhere in Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and in Notes 1 and 15 to the 2005 Consolidated Financial
Statements herein.
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Non-Container Fixed Operating Leases Obligations. Cronos, as lessee, has entered into fixed operating
lease contracts for computer equipment and office space. In 2005 the rental expense was $0.8 million. See
“Contractual Obligations” herein and Note 15 (¢) to the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements for the
minimum amount of future lease payments due under fixed operating and other lease contracts.

Legal Settlement. On November 17, 2003, Cronos and Contrin entered into a Settlement Agreement,
resolving litigation which had commenced in August 2000. See Item 3 — “Legal Proceedings” and Item 7 —
“Contractual Obligations” herein. Under the terms of the Settlement Agreement, Cronos agreed to make
certain future payments to Contrin.

In February 2005, the Group paid $2.1 million to Contrin, under the terms of the Settlement Agreement,
on the completion of the sale of the Amersham Estate. In addition, in February 2005, an agreement was
reached between the Group, Contrin and the TOEMT liquidator under the terms of which Contrin was
allocated Amersham Surplus Proceeds in an amount sufficient to fully discharge the Group’s remaining
payment obligations to Contrin under the Settlement Agreement.

Primary Beneficiary. In December 2003, the Group determined that it was the primary beneficiary of a
variable interest entity in which it held a 0.01% share. The Group had sold $49.7 million of containers to the
variable interest entity in a series of transactions in prior years. The variable interests of the Group in the entity
comprised a management fee that the Group earned in return for managing the containers of the entity, a non-
interest bearing loan note and an option to acquire 75% of the container owning company for one US dollar,
the exercise of which was subject to the repayment of certain of the indebtedness of the variable interest
entity.

On February 4, 2005, the Group acquired 100% ownership of the variable interest entity. The debt held
by the variable interest entity was restructured on the same date. In connection with this restructuring, the
Group issued a guarantee for $10 million of the outstanding debt and the lender cancelled an option to acquire
25% of the variable interest entity. In addition, 200,000 warrants to purchase 200,000 common shares of the
Company, that were held by the lender to the variable interest entity and were exercisable at $4.41 per share,
were cancelled effective February 4, 2005. The outstanding debt balance was repaid in full on August 1, 2003.

Provision for legal claims. In December 2005, the Group recorded a charge of $4.1 million in respect of
the fair value of costs to be incurred in connection with TOEMT related legal claims made against the Group.
A further discussion of this transaction and the related claims is included in Item 3 — “Legal Proceedings”
and, elsewhere in Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and in Note 17 to the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements herein.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth the payments by period for Cronos’ contractual obligations. For a discussion
of the Group’s commitments and contingencies, see Note 16 to the Company’s 2005 Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Payments Due By Period

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(US dollar equivalent, in thousands)
Long-term debt obligations - principal ........... $58,767  $ 5,790  $20,789  $25,503 $6,685
Long-term debt obligations - interest ............ $12,836 $ 3,727 $ 5,663 $ 2,710 $ 736
Capital lease obligations - principal .. ............ $29.013  $ 5979 $10,716 $ 6,969 $5,349
Capital lease obligations - interest .. ............. $ 468 $1465 $1920 $ 937 $ 367
Fixed operating lease obligations to Managed

Container Programs ........................ $11,654 $ 1,313 $ 2626 $ 7,715 —
Term lease rental obligations to Managed ,

Container Programs ................c.co.ouuun. $94,859  $33,501  $46,546  $14,248 $ 564
Amounts payable to container manufacturers . . ... $52,790  $52,790 — — —
Container purchase commitments............... $29,429  $29,429 — — —
Provision for legal claims . ..................... $ 4,100 $ 4,100 — — —

Long-term debt obligations and capital lease obligations. The contractual payments detailed by period
represent the principal and interest payments due.

Fixed operating lease obligations to Managed Container Programs. This represents the amounts
payable to Managed Container Programs under fixed operating lease agreements for container equipment with
Private Container Programs. The Company has provided parent company guarantees for the $11,654 of
minimum future lease payments outstanding under these agreements at December 31,2005.

Term lease rental obligations to Managed Container Programs. This represents the amounts payable to
Managed Container Programs from the minimum term lease rentals receivable by the Group in future years
from ocean carriers. See Note 6 and Note 15 (c¢) to the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements. No amount
will be payable to the Managed Container Program if the ocean carriers fail to pay the future term lease
rentals to the Group.

Amounts payable to container manufacturers. Cronos has outstanding obligations to pay container
manufacturers for equipment that was acquired by the Group in 2005.

Container purchase commitments. The Group has contracted with container manufacturers for the
production of new equipment in 2006.

Provision for legal claims. See Item 3 — “Legal Proceedings” and, elsewhere in Item 7 — “Manage-

ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and in Note 17 to the 2005
Consolidated Financial Statements herein.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Critical accounting policies are those that reflect significant judgments or uncertainties. Management
believes the following are the Group’s most critical accounting policies.

Container equipment — depreciable lives. Container equipment is carried at cost, adjusted for impair-
ment, if appropriate, less accumulated depreciation. Containers, both owned by the Group and acquired under
capital leases, are depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows:

» Refrigerated container equipment — over 12 years to a residual value of 15%
» Tanks, rolltrailers and flat racks — over 20 years to a residual value of 10%
* Dry cargo and all other container equipment — over 15 years to a residual value of 10%

On October 1, 2005, the Group changed the straight line depreciation basis for tanks, rolltrailers and flat
racks from a useful life of 15 years with a 10% residual value to a useful life of 20 years with a residual value of
10%. This was in recognition of research conducted by the Group which supported the change by providing
additional information about the estimated future useful lives and future benefits of the assets. As a result of
the change, net income for the three month period ended December 31, 2005 increased by approximately
$0.1 million and each of basic net income and diluted net income increased by two cents per share.

Container equipment — valuation. The Group reviews owned container equipment when changes in
circumstances require consideration as to whether the carrying value of the equipment has become impaired,
pursuant to guidance established in SFAS No. 144 — “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets”. Management considers assets to be impaired if the carrying value of the asset exceeds the
future projected cash flows from related operations (undiscounted and without interest charges). When
impairment is deemed to exist, the assets are written down to fair value or to the projected discounted cash
flows from related operations. The Group evaluates future cash flows and potential impairment of its fleet by
container type rather than for each individual container. Therefore, future losses could result for individual
container disposals due to various factors including age, condition, suitability for continued leasing, as well as
geographic location of the containers when disposed.

Deferred Taxation. Under SFAS No. 109 — “Accounting for Income Taxes”, the Group is required to
record a valuation allowance if realization of a deferred tax asset is unlikely. Substantial weight must be given
to recent historical results and near term projections, and management must assess the availability of tax
planning strategies that might impact either the need for, or the amount of, any valuation allowance.

Based on the recent history of operating losses in its US subsidiaries, the near term outlook and
management’s evaluation of available tax planning strategies, the Group has maintained a 100% valuation
allowance for its deferred tax asset related to net operating loss carryforwards in the US since 1998. As of
December 31, 2005, the Group’s valuation allowance aggregated $3.5 million. In the event the Group were to
determine that it would be able to realize its deferred tax asset, a reversal of part or all of the valuation
allowance would be recorded.

Allowance for doubtful accounts. Cronos continually tracks its credit exposure to each customer using
specialist third party credit information services and reports prepared by local staff to assess credit quality.
Cronos’ credit committee meets quarterly to analyze the performance of existing customers and to recommend
actions to be taken in order to minimize credit risks. Over the last 14 years, bad debts have approximated 1%
of gross lease revenues. Based on this information, Cronos has calculated an allowance for doubtful accounts
comprising specific amounts provided against known probable losses on certain customers plus an additional
amount based on loss experience for other customers. However, the Group may be subject to unexpected loss
in rental revenue from container lessees that default under their container lease agreements.

Goodwill. In accordance with SFAS No., 142 — “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, indefinite-
lived intangible assets and goodwill must be tested at least annually for impairment. The annual impairment
test uses cash flow discounting techniques to determine the fair value of respective reporting units which are
then compared to the carrying value of the asset. Management discounts the projected future net cash flows to
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be generated by the reporting units based on historic and projected trends for per diem revenues, utilization,
container disposal proceeds and funding costs over the expected remaining life of the unit. Although the
projected trends are based on historical and current available information, they require subjective management
judgment for projections relating to utilization rates, per diem rates, the disposal age of the containers,
equipment residual values, cash collections and interest rates. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Group
determined the carrying value of all its goodwill and indefinite-lived assets had not been impaired.

Gross lease revenue — Managed Container Programs. Cronos leases equipment to ocean carriers that is
owned by its Managed Container Programs. Cronos acts as principal in the lease arrangement with shipping
lines based on the characteristics of these transactions in which Cronos determines the ocean carrier to which
the equipment is leased, sets the applicable lease rental rate, acts as primary obligor in the transaction and
collects the lease rentals. Accordingly, Cronos reports the resulting lease income on a gross basis, rather than
net of its lease costs to the Managed Container Programs.

US Limited Partnership Programs — FIN 46R. The Group has determined that the US Limited
Partnership Programs are variable interest entities as defined in FIN 46R. Cronos has performed an analysis of
the expected losses and the expected residual returns of the US Limited Partnership Programs and determined
that the Group is not the primary beneficiary of these programs. Although the assumptions used in the
calculation of expected losses and expected residual returns are based on historical and current available
information, they require subjective management judgment for projections relating to utilization rates, per
diem rates, the disposal age of the containers, equipment residual values and cash collections.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued -SFAS 123 (Revised 2004) — “Share-Based Payment”
(“SFAS 123R”). SFAS 123R replaces FASB Statement No. 123 — “Accounting for Stock-Based Compen-
sation” and supersedes APB 25.

SFAS 123R establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its
equity instruments for goods or services. It also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in
exchange for goods or services that are based on the fair value of the entity’s equity instruments or that may be
settled by the issuance of those equity instruments. This statement focuses primarily on accounting for
transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. This statement
does not change the accounting guidance for share-based payment transactions with parties other than
employees provided in Statement 123 as originally issued and Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue
No. 96-18 — “Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring,
or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services”. This Statement does not address the accounting for
employee share ownership plans, which are subject to AICPA Statement of Position 93-6 — “Employers’
Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership Plans”.

SFAS 123R is effective for the first annual period beginning after December 15, 2005, Management does
not expect the adoption of SFAS 123R to have a significant impact on the financial position, results of
operations or cash flows of the Group.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154 — “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — a
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3” (“SFAS 154”). SFAS 154 requires
retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of a voluntary change in accounting principle
unless it is impracticable. APB No. 20 previously required that most voluntary changes in accounting principle
be recognized by including in net income of the period of the change, the cumulative effect of changing to the
new accounting principle. SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2005.

In June 2005, FASB ratified the consensus reached in the Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 04-5,
“Determining Whether a General Partner, or the General Partners as a Group, Controls a Limited
Partnership or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights™ (“EITF 04-5”). EITF 04-5
provides a framework for determining whether a general partner controls and should consolidate a limited
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partnership or a similar entity in light of certain rights held by the limited partners. The consensus also
provides additional guidance on substantive rights. EITF 04-5 must be applied no later than the beginning of
the first quarter of 2006, based on limited partnership agreements in place at the time of adoption.
Management does not expect the adoption of EITF 04-5 to have a significant impact on the financial position,
results of operations or cash flows of the Group.

Inflation

Management believes that inflation has not had a material adverse effect on the Group’s results of
operations.
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Item 7A — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The following table sets forth weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates for debt and
capital lease obligations outstanding at December 31, 2005, and based on effective rates as at that same date:

Expected Maturity Date of Debt and Capital Lease Obligations

2011 and
Total 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 thereafter
(US dollar equivalent, in thousands)
Long-term debt and capital
lease obligations:
Variable rate US dollar
facilities ............... $77,758  $9,039 $14,615 $12,810 $13,704 $16,874  $10,716
Average interest rate % .. .. 6.4 6.4 64 6.4 6.4 6.3
Variable rate Euro facilities $ 2,608 § 663 $ 226 $ 236 § 245 § 256 $ 982
Average interest rate % . . .. 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Fixed rate US dollar
facilities ............... $ 7,414 $2,067 $ 2,036 $ 1,582 §$ 1,143 248 336
Average interest rate % . ... 6.6 6.7 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8

Interest rate risk: Outstanding borrowings are subject to interest rate risk. At December 31, 2005, 92%
of total borrowings had floating interest rates. The Group conducted an analysis of borrowings with variable
interest rates to determine their sensitivity to interest rate changes. In this analysis, the same change was
applied to the balance outstanding as at December 31, 2005, leaving all other factors constant. It was found
that if a 10% increase were applied to market rates, the expected effect would be to reduce annual cash flows
by $0.4 million.

Exchange rate risk: Substantially all purchases of container equipment are in US dollars. In 2003,
approximately 97% of the Group’s revenues were billed and paid in US dollars and approximately 49% of
expenses were incurred and paid in US dollars. For non-US dollar denominated revenues and expenses, the
Group may enter into foreign currency contracts to reduce exposure to exchange rate risk. Of the
non-US dollar expenses, approximately 70% are individually small and unpredictable and were incurred in
various denominations. Thus, such amounts are not suitable for cost-effective hedging.

As exchange rates are outside of the control of the Group, there can be no assurance that such
fluctuations will not adversely affect its results of operations and financial condition. By reference to 2005, it is
estimated that for every 10% incremental decline in value of the US dollar against various foreign currencies,
the effect would be to reduce cash flows by $1.2 million in any given year.

Credit risk: Cronos sets maximum credit limits for all customers, limiting the number of containers
leased to each customer according to established credit criteria. Cronos continually tracks its credit exposure
to each customer. Cronos’ credit committee meets quarterly to analyze the performance of existing customers
and to recommend actions to be taken in order to minimize credit risks. Cronos uses specialist third party
credit information services and reports prepared by local staff to assess credit quality.

The Group may be subject to unexpected loss in rental revenue from container lessees that default under
their container lease agreements.
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The table below summarizes information on transactions that are sensitive to foreign currency exchange
rates including Euro (EUR) denominated direct financing leases and Euro denominated capital lease
obligations, and presents such information in US dollar equivalents. For direct financing leases the table
presents net lease receivable cash flows by expected maturity dates. For capital lease obligations the table
presents principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates.

Expected Maturity Date

2011 and Fair
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 thereafter Total Value

(US dollar equivalent, in thousands)

Direct financing leases (EUR}:

- net lease receivables ........ $1,063 $187 $120 — — — $1,370  $1,389
Capital lease obligations (EUR):

variable rate (EUR) ......... $ 663 $226 $236 $245 $256 $982 $2,608  $2,608

average interest rate % ....... 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
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Item 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
The financial statements listed in this Item 8 are set forth herein beginning on page F1:
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003;

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2005 and 2004,

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003;

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 9 — Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A — Controls and Procedures

The principal executive and principa!l financial officers of the Company have evaluated the disclosure
controls and procedures of the Group as of the end of the period covered by this report. As used herein, the
term ‘““disclosure controls and procedures” has the meaning given to the term by Rule 13a-15 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and includes the controls and other
procedures of the Group that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company
in the reports that it files with the SEC under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Based upon their evaluation, the
principal executive and financial officers of the Company have concluded that the Group’s disclosure controls
and procedures were effective such that the information required to be disclosed by the Company in this report
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and
forms applicable to the preparation of this report and is accumulated and communicated to management of
the Group, including the principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosures,

There have been no changes in the Group’s internal controls over financial reporting that occurred in the

fourth fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Group’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B — Other Information

None
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PART 11

Item 10 — Directors and Executive Officers of the Group

Information concerning the directors of the Group, including those standing for re-election, will be set
forth under the proposal entitled “Election of Directors” in the Group’s definitive Proxy Statement (the
“Proxy Statement”) to be filed with the Commission no later than 120 days after the Company’s fiscal year
covered by this annual report, which information is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15 — Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) (1) Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets — At December 31, 2005 and 2004
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders” Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statements of CF Leasing Limited have been filed in accordance with Regulation S-X as a
50% entity accounted for by the equity method by the Group.

(a) (3) Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed herewith or are incorporated by reference to exhibits previously filed with
the Commission. The Company shall furnish copies of exhibits for a reasonable fee (covering the expense
of furnishing copies) upon request.

Previously filed material contracts that are no longer in force or effect and that were entered into more
than two years prior to the date of the filing of this report are not listed in this index.

Number Exhibit Description

2.1  Purchase Agreement by and between Cronos Equipment (Bermuda) Limited (“CEB”) and CF
Leasing Limited, dated as of September 18, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated September 18, 2002).

3.1  Co-ordinated Articles of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 1997 (File No. 0-24464)).

3.2 Policies and procedures with respect to the indemnification of directors and officers of the Company,
as adopted by the Board of Directors on August 4, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3, dated November 24, 1999).

10.1 Guarantee, dated as of July 19, 2001, by and between the Group and Fortis Bank N.V. (“Fortis™), as
agent and on behalf of itself (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Quarterly
‘Report on Form 10-Q for the guarter ended June 30, 2001).

10.2 Amendment No. 1 to the Guarantee, dated as of July 19, 2001, by and between the Group and Fortis,
as agent and on behalf of itself (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

10.3 Amendment Number 2, dated as of August 1, 2005, to the Amended and Restated Guaranty, dated
as of July 19, 2001, by and among the Company, Fortis, HBU and NIB. (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.46 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated August, 2005).

10.4 Loan Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2001, by and between Cronos Finance (Bermuda) Limited
(“CFBL”) as issuer, and Fortis as agent on behalf of the noteholder, and itself, as the initial
noteholder (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001).

10.5  Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as of August 6, 2001, by
and between CFBL and Fortis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).
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Number

Exhibit Description

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as of November 20, 2001,
by and between CFBL and Fortis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Amendment No. 3, dated as of September 18, 2002, to the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement,
dated as of July 19, 2001, by and between CFBL and Fortis, (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated September 18, 2002).
Amendment No. 4, dated as of March 7, 2003, to the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement,
dated as of July 19, 2001, by and between CFBL and Fortis, (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002).

Amendment No. 5, dated as of September 23, 2003, to the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement,
dated as of July 19, 2001, by and between CFBL and Fortis (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2003).

Management Agreement by and between CF Leasing Limited and Cronos Containers (Cayman)
Limited, dated as of September 18, 2002 (incorporated by reference Exhibit 10.23 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, dated September 18, 2002).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 7, 2003 to the Management Agreement, dated as of
September 18, 2002, by and between the CF Leasing Limited and Cronos Containers (Cayman)
Limited, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Amendment No. 2, dated as of October 15, 2003 to the Management Agreement, dated as of
September 18, 2002, by and between the CF Leasing Limited and Cronos Containers (Cayman)
Limited Fortis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Members Agreement, dated September 18, 2002, by and between CF Leasing Limited, Mees
Pierson Transport & Logistics Holding B.V. and CEB, and joined by Cronos Containers (Cayman)
Ltd, and by The Cronos Group.

Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 15, 2004, to the Members Agreement, dated as of Septem-
ber 18, 2002, by and between CF Leasing Limited, FB Aviation & Intermodal Finance Holding B.V.
(formerly known as Mees Pierson Transport & Logistics Holding B.V.) and CEB, and joined by
Cronos Containers {Cayman) Ltd, and by The Cronos Group.

Amendment No. 2, dated as of July 8, 2004, to the Members Agreement, dated as of September 18,
2002, by and between CF Leasing Limited, FB Aviation & Intermodal Finance Holding B.V., and
CEB, and joined by Cronos Containers (Cayman) Ltd, and by The Cronos Group.

Amendment No. 3, dated as of June 15, 2005 to the Members Agreement, dated September 18,
2002, among CF Leasing Ltd, FB Aviation & Intermodal Finance Holding BV and Cronos
Containers (Cayman) Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005).

Amendment Number 4, dated as of August 1, 2005, to Members Agreement, dated as of
September 18, 2002, by and among CF Leasing, FB Aviation & Intermodal Holding B.V. and
Cronos Equipment (Bermuda) Limited, and joined by The Cronos Group (the “Company”).
(incorporated by reference Exhibit 10.56 to the Company’s Current Report on Form §-K, dated
August 1, 2005).

Collateral Agreement dated as of November 16, 2001, by and between CEB, CFBL and Fortis
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2001).

Amendment No. 1 to the Collateral Agreement dated as of November 16, 2001, by and between
CEB, CFBL and Fortis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).
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Number

Exhibit Description

10.20
10.21

10.22
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10.24
10.25

10.26
10.27
10.28
10.29
10.30
10.31
10.32
10.33

10.34

Grant of Security Interest (Patents) dated as of November 19, 2001, by and between CEB, CFBL
and Fortis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Amended and restated Management Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2004, by and between the CF
Leasing Limited and Cronos Containers (Cayman) Limited. (incorporated by reference to Ex-
hibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004).
Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 15, 2005 to the Amended and Restated Management
Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2004, by and between CF Leasing Ltd and Cronos Containers
(Cayman) Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of September 23, 2004, to the Second Amended and Restated Loan
Agreement, dated as of September 23, 2003, by and between Cronos Finance (Bermuda) Limited,
Fortis Bank (Nederland) N.V., Hollandsche Bank-Unie N.V. and NIB Capital Bank N.V.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2004).

Third Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2005, among CFL, Fortis
Bank (Nederland) N.V. (“Fortis”}, NIB Capital Bank N.V. (*NIB”), and Hollandsche Bank-Unie
N.V. (“HBU”). (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.57 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated August, 2005).

Amended and restated Master Loan Agreement, dated August 15, 1997, as amended and restated as
of February 4, 2005, by and between Cronos Funding (Bermuda) Limited (“CFB”), as Issuer, and
Fortis Bank (Nederland) N.V. (“Fortis”), as Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated February, 2005).

CFB Secured Note, Class A, in the principal amount of $14,672,474, dated February 4, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
February, 2005).

CFB Secured Note, Class B, in the principal amount of $4,000,000 dated February 4, 200S5.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
February, 2005).

CFB Secured Note, Class C, in the principal amount of $7,305,000 dated February 4, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
February, 2005).

Guarantee, dated as of February 4, 2005, by and between The Cronos Group and Fortis, as Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
February, 2005).

CFL Secured Note in favor of Fortis in the principal amount of $15,000,000, dated August 1, 2005.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
August, 2005).

CFL Secured Note in favor of NIB in the principal amount of $15,000,000, dated August 1, 2005.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
August, 2005).

CFL Secured Note in favor of HBU in the principal amount of $15,000,000, dated August 1, 2005.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
August, 2005).

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of September 9, 2005, by and between Cronos Containers
Inc (“CCI”) and Banc of America Leasing & Capital, LLC (“BOA”) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated September 9, 2005).
Container Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of September 9, 2003, by and between CCI, as
purchaser, and BOA, as seller, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated September 9, 2005).
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10.35
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10.38

CCI Libor Note and Security Agreement, dated as of September 9, 2003, in favour of BOA
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
September 9, 2005).

Guarantee, dated as of September 9, 2005, by The Cronos Group in favour of BOA (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated September 9, 2005).
Assignment Declaration from MKB Bank Rt. to Centrdl Workout Pénziigyi Részvéntdrsasdg
{(“Central”}, dated March 27, 2006, as endorsed by Central to Cronos Containers N.V. (“CNV”).
Assignment of Assets from the Contrin Creditors (as defined therein), as assignors, and CNV, as
assignee, dated as of March 21, 2006.

Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50
10.51

10.52

Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement by and between the Company and Peter J. Younger, dated as
of October 13, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-3, dated November 24, 1999).

1999 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, dated February 25, 2000).

Employment Agreement by and between Cronos Containers Inc. and John M. Foy, dated April 1,
1999, as amended on December 1, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 1999).

Amendment, dated December 1, 2005, to the Employment Agreement between Cronos Containers
Inc. and John M. Foy, dated April 1, 1999, as previously amended on December 1, 1999,
December 1, 2000, December 1, 2001, October 15, 2002 and November 5, 2002 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated December 1, 2005).
Service Agreement by and between Cronos Containers Limited and John C. Kirby, dated Febru-
ary 29, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K, for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Amendment, dated December 1, 2003, to the Service Agreement by and between Cronos Containers
Limited and John Kirby, dated February 29, 2000, as previously amended on November 4, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
December 1, 2005).

Service Agreement by and between Cronos Cont;liners Limited and Frank P. Vaughan, dated
April 20, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 and 10.50 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated July 14, 2005).

Amendment, dated December 1, 2005, to the Service Agreement by and between Cronos Containers
Limited and Frank P. Vaughan, dated April 20, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated December 1, 2005).

Amendment to the 1999 Stock Option Plan, dated June 1, 2001 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31,
2001).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Cronos and Dennis J. Tietz, dated
November 8, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2001).

Amendment, dated April 1, 2004, to the Employment Agreement between Cronos and Dennis J.
Tietz, dated November 8, 2001.
Amended Employment Agreement between Cronos and Peter J. Younger, dated October 1, 2003.

Amended and Restated Indemnification Agreement between Cronos and Charles Tharp, dated
November 6, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2002).

Amended and Restated Indemnification Agreement between Cronos and Maurice Taylor, dated
November 6, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2002).
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10.54

10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

10.61

10.62

Amended and Restated Indemnification Agreement between Cronos and Dennis J. Tietz, dated
November 6, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2002).

Amended and Restated Indemnification Agreement between Cronos and Peter J. Younger, dated
November 6, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2002).

Indemnification Agreement between Cronos and S. Nicholas Walker, dated November 6, 2002
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
period ended December 31, 2002).
Indemnification Agreement between Cronos and Robert M. Melzer, dated November 6, 2002
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
period ended December 31, 2002).

Indemnification Agreement between Cronos Containers Limited and John C. Kirby, dated Novem-
ber 22, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the Company s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2002).

Indemnification Agreement between Cronos Containers Inc. and John M. Foy, dated November 1,
2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the period ended December 31, 2002).

Stock Option Agreement between Cronos and Charles Tharp, dated January 10, 2003 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2002).

Stock Option Agreement between Cronos and Maurice Taylor, dated January 10, 2003 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended

. December 31, 2002).

Stock Option Agreement between Cronos and S. Nicholas Walker, dated January 10, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
period ended December 31, 2002).

Stock Option Agreement between Cronos and Robert M. Melzer, dated January 10, 2003 (incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ended December 31, 2002).

Other Exhibits

21.1
23.1
311
31.2
32.1

. List of principal subsidiaries and affiliates at December 31, 2003,

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm dated March 29, 2006.
Rule 13a-14 Certification.
Rule 13a-14 Certification.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as édopted pursuant to Section 906 of the -
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 29, 2006 THE CRONOS GROUP

By: /s/ DEenNis J. TIETZ

Dennis J. Tietz -
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
By /s/ DENNIS J. TIETZ Chairman of the Board and Chief March 29, 2006
Dennis J. Tietz Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

By /s/ PETER J. YOUNGER Director, President and Chief March 29, 2006
Peter J. Younger Operating Officer

By /s/ FRANK P. VAUGHAN Chief Financial Officer (Principal March 29, 2006
Frank P. Vaughan Financial and Accounting Officer)

By /s/ MAURICE TAYLOR Director March 29, 2006

Maurice Taylor

By /s/ STEPHEN NICHOLAS WALKER Director March 29, 2006
Stephen Nicholas Walker

By /s/  ROBERT M. MELZER Director March 29, 2006
Robert M. Melzer
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THE CRONOS GROUP
Consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2005 and 2004

and for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
and Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of The Cronos Group

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Cronos Group and subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholders equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Group’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Group is not required
to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The Cronos Group as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Reading, United Kingdom
March 29, 2006
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THE CRONOS GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(US dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

2005 2004 2003

Gross 1ease TEVENMUE . ..o v ittt e e e e e $139,024  $132,096 $117,501
Equipment trading revenue ....... ... ... ... i 2,210 4,698 4,991
Commissions, fees and other operating income:

-Related parties ... ..o 802 953 1,116

- Unrelated parties ... 4,577 2,641 2,525

- Gain on settlement of litigation ........................ ... ... 1,333 — —
TRtErest IMCOME .« o ot v e et et e ettt e e e e e e e 344 120 130
Total TEVENUES . . . . oottt 148,290 140,508 126,263
Direct operating eXpemses. . .. .v vttt 18,091 20,563 25,508
Payments to Managed Container Programs:

- Related parties ... i 40,826 31,638 23,159

- Unrelated parties .......... . i 36,177 36,323 32,571
Equipment trading expenses ......... ... ... ... .. .. 1,978 4,018 4,600
Amortization of intangible assets ............ ... ... ... ... ... .. 188 188 188
Depreciation. . . ..o ouv i 15,141 17,993 17,495
Selling, general and administrative expenses ....................... 21,909 18,834 15,791
Interest eXpense. . . ..o ot 6,186 5,178 5,754
Recovery of amount payable to Managed Container Program ........ (703) — —
Recovery of related party loannote ............. ... ... ... ... — (1,280) —
Provision against legal claims ............. ... .. o 4,100 — —
Total eXPemses . ... ...t 143,893 133,455 125,066
Income before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliate .. ... .. 4,397 7,053 1,197
Income taxes (provision) benefit ........ ... ... .. ... ... i (864) (1,071) 1,494
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliate ................... ... 4,269 2,883 1,499
Nt INCOME . . oottt e e e e 7,802 8,865 4,190
Other comprehensive income (loss):

- change in fair value of forward exchange contracts .............. — 325 (325)

- change in fair value of derivatives held by affiliate .............. 650 311 (81)
Comprehensive income . . ............... ... o $ 8,452 § 9,501 § 3,784
Basic net income per common share . .......... ... ... ... $ 106 $ 122 § 057
Diluted net income per common share ........................... $ 098 $ 114 §$ 055

All amounts were generated by continuing activities.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE CRONOS GROUP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2005 and 2004
(US dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

2005 2004
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents .......... ... ... ... i $ 15,829 §$ 17,579
Restricted cash .. ... 4,200 1,489
Amounts due from lessees, Net. . ... ... ... it 28,540 25,136
Amounts receivable from Managed Container Programs, including amounts due

from related parties of $3,155 and $3,358, respectively............. ... ... 3,391 3,386
New container equipment forresale .................. ... ... i, 38,142 17,116
Net investment in direct financing leases, including amounts due within twelve

months of $4,162 and $2,434, respectively .............coviiiiiiiiiii 12,678 7,382
Investment in unconsolidated affiliates ................. ... i 31,358 15,364
Container equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $75,493 and $127,991,

FESPECHIVELY . . o oot 121,988 166,584
Other equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $1,999 and $10,418,

TESPECHIVELY . .ttt 1,130 963
Goodwill ... 11,038 11,038
Other intangible assets, NEt. ... ...\ttt e 345 533
Related party loan receivable . ........ ... ... . ... . .o i — 1,280
Other @SSETS . ..ottt ettt e e 3,093 3,899
Total aSSets . ... ... $271,732  $271,749

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE CRONOS GROUP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2005 and 2004
(US dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

2005 2004

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Amounts payable to Managed Container Programs, including amounts payable to

related parties of $15,295 and $11,742, respectively ............ccooiiiiinn.. $ 25462 $ 22,034
Amounts payable to container manufacturers. ... ............ . ..coueiiiaan.. 52,790 27,838
Direct operating expense payables and accruals .. .......... ... ... ... 5,432 5,592
Other amounts payable and accrued expenses .......... ..ot 11,873 8,810
Debt and capital lease obligations, including amounts due within twelve months of

$11,769 and $13,831, respectively ....... ... 87,780 127,953
INcome taXes ... ... e 209 155
Deferred InCOME tAXES . . .ottt e e e 2,965 3,083
Deferred income and deferred acquisition fees................. ... . ... . .... 7,684 5,925
Total liabilities ... ... ... ... . e 194,195 201,390
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity
Common shares, par value $2 per share (25,000,000 shares authorized; shares

issued and outstanding; 2005 — 7,519,959, 2004 — 7,381,349) ................ 15,040 14,763
Additional paid-in capital ....... ... . L 43,807 45,358
Common shares held in treasury (112,000) ....... ... i (297) (297)
Accumulated other comprehensive income......... ... ... i i . 880 230
Restricted retained €arnings ... .........eetetiitn et 1,832 1,832
Unrestricted retained earmings ... .....ouitrt et 16,275 8,473
Total shareholders’ equity ......... ... ... .o i 77,537 70,359
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ............ ... ... . .. ... .. .... $271,732 $27ﬁl,749

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE CRONOS GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(US dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

2005 2004 2003
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income ............... U $ 7,802 $ 885 $ 4,190
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
- depreciation and amortization. . ........ ... ... . i e 15,329 18,181 17,683
- (decrease) increase in unamortized acquisition fees ............. (22) 218 (640)
- provision for losses on accounts receivable .................. ... 1,284 1,251 1,077
- recovery of related party loannote. . ....... ... ... .. ... o — (1,280) —
- provision against legal claims ............... ... . ... o .. 4,100 — —
- (gain) loss on disposal of fixed assets ......................... (955) (211) 270
- undistributed equity in earnings of affiliate......... [T (4,269) (2,883) (1,499)
- (decrease) increase in current and deferred income taxes ........ (64) 257 (2,555)
- increase in new container equipment for resale .............. ... (21,026) (6,300) {8,246)
- decrease (increase) in amounts receivable:
-related parties . . ... L 203 19 23
-unrelated parties . . ... ... (1,453) 1,089 989
- increase in amounts payable and accrued expenses:
-related parties .. ... 3,553 2,401 1,098
-unrelated parties . .. ... e 21,553 9,267 10,320
Net cash provided by operating activities ......................... 26,035 30,874 22,710
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of container equipment ............ ... ... i, (54,837)  (29,050)  (16,545)
Purchase of other equipment . ......... .. .. ... ... . il (440) (628) (324)
Investment in direct financing leases . .................. . ... .... (4,286) (57) (29)
Investments in related parties ........ . ... ... i (11,075) {(3,600) (2,550)
Proceeds from sales of container and other equipment .............. 91,059 16,698 9,632
Increase in restricted cash . ... . . (2,711) (456) (40)
Net provided by (used in) investing activities ..................... 17,710 (17,093) (9,856)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-6




THE CRONOS GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(US dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of termdebt ......... ... .. .. .. . ... $ 49,778 $ 21,556 $ 33,649
Repayments of term debt and capital lease obligations .............. (95,222)  (25,391)  (44,854)
Dividends paid....... ... .o (1,688) (799) (583)
Recovery of refated party loan. . ................ .. .. .l 1,280 — —
Issue of common stock. ... .. i 357 — —
Shares repurchased . ........ . . — — (260)
Net cash used in financing activities ............................. (45,495) (4,634)  (10,048)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents............... (1,750) 9,147 2,806
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.................... 17,579 8,432 5,626
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ........................ $ 15829 §$17,579 $ 8432
Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:

B 1> v="-) S $ 5227 $ 4478 $ 4,765

- INCOME tAXES o\ vttt et e 1,104 1,126 1,189
Cash received during the year for:

B 11 (S) L1 O P 345 241 269

= IMCOME TAXES .+ v\ v vttt ettt ie ettt e 176 312 45
Retention deposit utilized to repay capital lease .................... — — 2,743
Non-cash items:

- container equipment contributed to the Joint Venture Program. ... — — 999

- container equipment acquired under capital leases............... 5,188 12,583 1,812

- container equipment transferred to direct financing leases ........ 4,082 1,097 1,268

- direct financing lease equipment acquired under capital leases. . . .. 523 — 391

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE CRONOS GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(US dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Accumulated Unrestricted
Additional Common other Restricted retained Total
Common paid-in shares held  comprehensive retained earnings shareholders’
shares capital in treasury  (loss) income earnings (deficit) equity

Balance, December 31,2002......... $14.744  $47.125 $ (37) $ — $1,832 $(4,582) $59,082
Netincome ................oon... l 4,190 4,190
Retirement and cancellation of

employee share grant . ............ 10 10
Declaration of dividends ............ (583) (583)
Purchase of treasury shares.......... (260) (260)
Other comprehensive loss for year .. .. (406) (406)
Balance, December 31, 2003......... 14,744 46,552 297) (406) 1,832 (392) 62,033
Netincome .........coovvvieinnnn.. 8,865 8,865
Employee share grant .............. 10 10
Declaration of dividends ............ (1,235) (1,235)
Issue of common shares ............ 20 32 52
Retirement of common shares ....... ¢9) () 2)
Other comprehensive income for year 636 636
Balance, December 31, 2004...... ... 14,763 45,358 (297) 230 1,832 8,473 70,359
Netincome .............c.con... 7,802 7,802
Issue of common shares ............ 277 352 629
Stock based compensation........... 94 94
Declaration of dividends ............ (1,997) (1,997)
Other comprehensive income for year 650 650
Balance, December 31, 2005...... ... $15,040  $43,807 $(297) $ 880 $1,832 $16,275 $77,537

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE CRONOS GROUP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(US dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

1  Nature of operations and summary of significant accounting policies

a) Nature of operations

The principal activity of The Cronos Group (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group” or “Cronos”) is the leasing to ocean carriers of marine containers that are owned by the Group or
managed by the Group on behalf of other owners.

The Company is incorporated in Luxembourg. The common shares of the Company are publicly traded
in the US on the Nasdaq National Market System under the symbol “CRNS”.

The Group provides a worldwide service and, accordingly, has significant operations in key shipping
locations, particularly in Europe, the United States and Asia.

The Group enters into agreements (the “Agreements”) with container owners (the “Managed Container
Programs”) to manage the leasing of their containers (“Managed Containers”) to ocean carriers. These
Managed Container Programs have taken three principal forms.

Under the first principal form, the Group has organized limited partnerships in the United States (“US
Limited Partnership Programs™) and purchases and manages containers on behalf of the US Limited
Partnership Programs.

Under the second principal form, the Group has a 50% equity investment in a joint venture container
purchase entity (the “Joint Venture Program”). The Group manages the containers held in the Joint Venture
Program. Both the US Limited Partnership Programs and the Joint Venture Program are considered to be
related parties of the Group .

Under the third principal form, the Group enters into Agreements with private container programs (the
“Private Container Programs”) that provide for the Group to purchase and manage containers for such
container programs.

Although the provisions of the Agreements vary, they all permit the Group to use the Managed
Containers together with containers owned by the Group as part of a single fleet, which the Group operates
without regard to ownership. The Group has discretion over which customers, container manufacturers and
suppliers of goods and services with which it may deal. The Agreements constitute leases within the scope of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 13 — “Accounting For Leases”, and they are
accounted for as leases under which the container owners are lessors and the Group is lessee.

b) Basis of accounting and consolidation

The Group’s accounting records are maintained in United States dollars and the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“US GAAP”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and
the disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities in the financial statements and in the accompany-
ing notes. The most significant estimates relate to the calculation of bad debt allowances, the annual
impairment testing of intangible assets and the carrying value of equipment including estimates relating to
depreciable lives, residual values and asset impairments. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
majority owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
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The equity method of accounting is used for investments in companies that the Group does not control
but where the Group has the ability to exercise significant influence over the operating and financial policy of
that investment.

c) Leases

i.  Group as lessor

The Group leases containers to ocean carriers under master leases, term leases and direct financing
leases.

Operating leases with customers. The Group enters into master and term leases with ocean carriers and
other customers, principally as lessor in operating leases, for containers that are designed for the carriage of
cargo and that are either owned by the Managed Container Programs or by the Group itself. Operating lease
rentals are recognized as gross lease revenue on a straight-line basis in accordance with US GAAP.

Master leases specify the maximum number of containers to be leased and the maximum term that each
container will remain on-hire, but allow the customer to pick up and drop off containers at various locations as
specified in the lease agreement. Lease rentals, which are generally based upon the number of containers used
by the customer at any given time and the applicable per diem rate are therefore all contingent rentals.

Term leases provide the customers with specified container equipment for a specified term. The rentals
are based upon the number of containers leased, the applicable per diem rate and the length of the lease,
irrespective of the number of days during which the customer actually uses the containers. Term leases
typically range from a period of three to five years.

Direct financing leases with customers. The Group, as lessor, enters into direct financing leases for
container equipment owned by the Group. The net investment in direct financing leases represents the
receivables due from lessees, net of unearned income. Unearned income is recognized in the statements of
income to give a constant return on capital over the lease term and is recorded as part of commissions, fees
and other operating income.

Direct financing leases are usually long-term in nature, typically ranging from a period of three to seven
years and require relatively low levels of customer service. They ordinarily require fixed payments and provide
customers with an option to purchase the subject containers at the end of the lease term. Per diem rates
include an element of repayment of capital and therefore are higher than rates charged under either term or
master leases.

ii.  Group as lessee

Operating leases. 'The majority of Agreements with Managed Container Programs are in the form of a
master lease. Under the terms of the master lease, the Group is not liable to make any payments to the
Managed Container Programs until such time as the Managed Containers have been placed on lease to a
customer. The Agreements generally provide that the Group will make payments to the Managed Container
Programs based upon the rentals collected from customers after deducting direct operating expenses and the
compensation earned by the Group for managing the equipment.

The terms of the Agreements vary from 1 to 15 years. Containers generally have an expected useful
economic life of 12 to 20 years. The Agreements generally contain provisions, which permit earlier termination
under certain conditions upon 60-90 days’ notice. For the US Limited Partnership Programs, a majority of the
limited partners in a partnership can remove the subsidiary of the Group, which acts as general partner,
thereby terminating the Agreement with the Group. For the Joint Venture Program, the Agreement with the
Group may be terminated should an event of default, as stipulated in the Agreement, occur and remain
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unremedied for a specific period thereafter, as defined in the Agreement. Under the Agreements with Private
Container Programs, certain container owners may terminate the Agreement if stipulated performance
thresholds are not achieved by the Group (see Note 17). The Group believes that early termination is unlikely
in normal circumstances.

The majority of payments by the Group to Managed Container Programs are charged to the statement of
income in each period based upon the amounts earned and subsequently payable under the Agreements with
Managed Container Programs.

Other operating lease rentals are expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Capital leases. Assets held under capital leases are initially reported at the fair value of the asset and are
categorized as container equipment, with an equivalent liability reported as capital lease obligations. Where
the asset is recorded within container equipment, it is depreciated over its expected useful life. Finance
charges are reported over the lease term in accordance with the effective interest method and are recorded as
interest expense.

d) Equipment trading revenue and expenses

Equipment trading revenue represents revenue earned from the sale of equipment to third parties.
Equipment trading expenses are the costs of the equipment sold. In such transactions, the Group enters into
agreements to supply equipment to third party buyers. Simultaneously, the Group enters into separate
agreements with container manufacturers for the acquisition of the equipment. The Group acts as principal in
such transactions and accordingly the revenue and expenses are reported gross. This equipment does not enter
the Cronos fleet of managed containers unless the third party buyer defaults on the agreement. Equipment
trading revenue and expenses are recognized when the contracted parties meet the terms of their respective
contractual agreements.

e¢) Commissions, fees and other operating income

This comprises acquisition fees, income on direct financing leases, fees earned in connection with
equipment consultancy and design services, licence fees earned in connection with the patented cellular
palletwide container (“CPC”), fees earned on the disposal of Managed Containers, gains and losses resulting
from the disposal of fixed assets, foreign exchange gains and other income.

Acquisition fees represent amounts paid by the Managed Container Programs when the Group enters into
Agreements and begins to manage new container equipment on their behalf. Such fees are generally non-
refundable and are deferred and recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the term of the
Agreements. Licence fees and fees earned in connection with equipment consultancy and design services are
recognized on the accrual basis based on the terms of the contractual agreements.

) Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 109 — “Accounting for Income Taxes”.
Deferred income taxes have been provided for the tax effects of temporary differences between financial
reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the
differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax laws or rates on the deferred tax liabilities
and assets is recognized when the change in the tax laws or rates are enacted, and the effect is included in
income from continuing operations for the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances are
recorded to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will not be realized.
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g) Net income per common share

Net income per share data has been calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 128 — “Earnings per
Share”.

Basic net income per common share is computed by dividing the net income applicable to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each period presented.
Diluted net earnings per common share is determined using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during each period presented, adjusted for the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents,
consisting of shares that may be issued upon exercise of common stock options or stock based equivalents.

The components of basic and diluted net income per share were as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Net income available for common shareholders. .. .. e $ 7,802 $ 8,865 §$ 4,190
Weighted average outstanding shares of common stock ......... 7,358,950 7,260,852 7,321,908
Dilutive effect of:

- 1998 stock option ... ... 187,183 113,627 75,000

S WAITANES .« o ottt et e e e e e e e e e — 74,757 50,000

- 1999 stock option plan ........ i 262,772 137,105 —

- non employee directors’ equity plan ............ ... ... .... 134,528 163,365 154,746

- 2005 equity incentive plan ........... ... oo i, 18,500 — —
Common shares and common share equivalents ............... 7,961,933 7,749,706 7,601,654
Basic netincome per share............ ... .. o ... $ 1.06 § 122 § 0.57
Diluted net income pershare .............. ... ... ..., $ 098 § 1.14 § 0.55

For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, all of the common stock equivalents were included in
the computation of diluted net income per share as the average market price of Cronos’ common shares
exceeded the exercise price of each stock plan. During the year ended December 31, 2003, options to acquire
500,000 shares were outstanding with a weighted average exercise price of $5.11, but were not included in the
computation of diluted net income per share because the options’ exercise price was greater than the average
market price of the common shares.

On February 4, 2005, 200,000 warrants to purchase 200,000 common shares of the Company were
cancelled in connection with the restructuring of a debt facility.
h) Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and may include highly liquid commercial debt
instruments purchased with original maturities of three months or less. The carrying value approximates fair
value.

i) Allowance for doubtful accounts

Amounts due from lessees represent gross lease revenue and container disposal revenue due from
customers, less an allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts comprises specific
amounts provided against known probable losses plus an additional amount provided based on loss experience.
The loss provision is recorded as part of direct operating expenses.
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J)  New container equipment for resale

New container equipment for resale represents new containers purchased by the Group with the intention
to resell to either Managed Container Progams or customers contracting with the Group under equipment
trading transactions. All such equipment is stated at the lower of original unit cost or net realizable value.

In certain instances, rental income may be earned on new container equipment for resale and is included
within gross lease revenue. Containers not sold within six months from the date of purchase are transferred to
the Group’s container equipment. Depreciation is then calculated from the original date of acquisition. The
amount of depreciation which would have been provided on new container equipment for resale, had it been
transferred to long-term ownership at the balance sheet date, and the amount of rental income earned on new
equipment are not material to the Company’s operations.

k) Investments
Investments are accounted for using the equity method and take two main forms:

Under the first form, investments comprise the Group’s general and limited partner interests in the US
Limited Partnership Programs, in which a subsidiary, Cronos Capital Corp., acts as a general partner.

Under the second form, the Group has a 50% equity investment in the Joint Venture Program. The joint
venture entity is a bankruptcy-remote, special purpose entity organized under the laws of Bermuda.

1) Consolidation of variable interest entities

In December 2003, the Group adopted Interpretation No. 46R — Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities (“FIN 46R”). FIN 46R clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51
(“ARB 51%), to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling
financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support from other parties. FIN 46R explains how an enterprise identifies variable
interest entities in order to assess its interests in variable interest entities. FIN 46R requires the Group to
consolidate a variable interest entity where it determines that it is the primary beneficiary of that variable
interest entity. '

m) Container equipment

Container equipment is carried at cost, adjusted for impairment, if appropriate, less accumulated
depreciation. Containers, both owned by the Group and acquired under capital leases are depreciated on a
straight-line basis as follows:

» Refrigerated container equipment — over 12 years to a residual value of 15%
e Tanks, rolltrailers and flat racks — over 20 years to a residual value of 10%
» Dry cargo and all remaining container equipment — over 15 years to a residual value of 10%

On October 1, 2003, the Group changed the straight line depreciation basis for tanks, rolltrailers and flat
racks from a useful life of 15 years with a 10% residual value to a useful life of 20 years with a residual value of
10%. The change was implemented in response to research that was conducted by the Group and which
supported the change by providing additional information about the estimated future useful lives and future
benefits of the assets. As a result of the change, net income for the three month period ended December 31,
2005 increased by approximately $131 and each of basic net income and diluted net income increased by
$0.02 per share.
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n) Other equipment

Other equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation for leasehold improve-
ments is recorded on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the useful life or the lease term. Depreciation for
other equipment is recorded on a straight-line basis over a life of four to seven years.

0) Restricted cash

Restricted cash consists of cash placed on deposit to support letters of credit and a balance held on
deposit under the terms a loan facility that would be utilized in the event that adequate funds were not
available to meet the scheduled debt service payments.

p) Goodwill and other intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of goodwill and patents and are accounted for in accordance with
SFAS No. 142 — “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”). The Group tests goodwill annually
for impairment. The Group compares the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying value, including
goodwill. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill is not considered
impaired.

Patents will continue to be amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, to a
residual of nil in 2007.

q) Translation of foreign currencies

The majority of the Group’s revenue is denominated in US dollars as are a significant proportion of total
costs, including container purchases. Accordingly, the functional currency of the Group is the US dollar, the
currency in which the financial statements are prepared.

Transactions denominated in other currencies are translated into US dollars and recorded at the rate of
exchange at the date of the transaction. Balances denominated in other currencies are translated into US
dollars at the rate of exchange on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are charged or credited
to the statements of income.

r)  Stock-based compensation

The Group has adopted disclosure requirements under SFAS No. 123 — “Stock-Based Compensation”
(“SFAS 123”) and SFAS No. 148 — “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclo-
sure” (“SFAS 1487}, but continues to account for stock-based compensation under Accounting Principles
Beard Opinion No. 25 — “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”). Under APB 25,
compensation expense is measured as the amount by which the quoted market price of the stock at the date of
the grant or award exceeds the exercise price, if any, to be paid by an employee and is recognized as expense
over the period in which the related services were performed.

In accordance with SFAS 123, the Company discloses the fair value of stock options, which is calculated
based on the Black Scholes option-pricing model. If the stock options had been accounted for under the fair
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value based method of accounting, the impact on the Group’s net income and net income per share would
have been as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Net income:
- aS TEPOITEd ... e $7,802 $8,865 $4,190
- add stock-based employee compensation included in reported net income,
net of related tax effects. .. ....... ... . . — 3 12
- deduct stock-based compensation expense computed in accordance with
SFAS 123, net of related tax effects ........ ... ... ................ — (21) (106)
-proforma ... $7,802  $8,847  $4,096
Basic net income per share:
—as reported L. e $ 1.06 $ 122 § 057
S PTO fOTINA . oottt $ 106 $ 122 §$ 056
Diluted net income per share:
S AS TEPOITEd .\ oot .. $098 $1.14 $ 055
S PTO fOTMIA o $098 §$1.14 §$ 054

s)  Accounting for warrants

Warrants issued in conjunction with debt are accounted for in accordance with APB No. 14 —
“Accounting for Convertible Debt and Debt Issued with Stock Purchase Warrants” (“APB 14”). Under
APB 14, the proceeds of debt issued with detachable warrants are allocated between the two instruments
based on their relative fair values, at time of issuance. Any resulting discount on the debt is accreted over the
life of the debt, using the effective interest rate method. The fair value assigned to warrants is credited to
additional paid-in capital at the time of issuance of the warrants.

t) Asset impairment

Certain long-lived assets of the Group are reviewed when changes in circumstances require consideration
as to whether their carrying value has become impaired, pursuant to guidance established in SFAS No. 144 —
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144”). Management considers
assets to be impaired if the carrying value of the asset exceeds the future projected cash flows from related
operations (undiscounted and without interest charges). When impairment is deemed to exist, the assets are
written down to fair value measured using projected discounted cash flows from related operations. The Group
periodically evaluates future cash flows and potential impairment of its fleet by container type rather than for
each individual container. Therefore, future losses could result from individual container dispositions due to
various factors including age, condition, suitability for continued leasing, as well as geographic location of the
containers where disposed. Management also re-evaluates the period of amortization to determine whether
subsequent events and circumstances warrant revised estimates of useful lives.

u) Derivative financial instruments

The Group accounts for derivative financial instruments in accordance with SFAS No. 133 — “Account-
ing for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”) as amended by SFAS No. 137 and
SFAS No. 138. SFAS No. 133 was further amended by SFAS No. 149 — “Amendment of Statement 133 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 149”). SFAS 133 requires that all derivative
instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value and that changes in the fair value of
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derivatives are recorded each period in earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on the type of
hedging instrument and the effectiveness of the hedges.

The Group evaluates all derivative instruments each quarter to determine their effectiveness. Any
ineffectiveness is recorded in the statements of income.

v)  New pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123 (Revised 2004) — “Share-Based Payment”
(“SFAS 123R”). This Statement is a revision of SFAS 123. SFAS 123R supersedes APB 235, and its related
implementation guidance.

SFAS 123R establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its
equity instruments for goods or services. It also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in
exchange for goods or services that are based on the fair value of the entity’s equity instruments or that may be
settled by the issuance of those equity instruments. This statement focuses primarily on accounting for
transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. This statement
does not change the accounting guidance for share-based payment transactions with parties other than
employees provided in Statement 123 as originally issued and Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue
No. 96-18 — “Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring,
or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services”. This Statement does not address the accounting for
employee share ownership plans, which are subject to American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Statement of Position 93-6 — “Employers’ Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership Plans”. In April 2005,
the effective date for compliance with SFAS 123R was revised to the first fiscal period beginning after
December 15, 2005. Management does not expect the adoption of SFAS 123R to have a significant impact on
the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Group.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154 — “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — a
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3" (“SFAS 154”). SFAS 154 requires
retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of a voluntary change in accounting principle
unless it is impracticable. APB No. 20 previously required that most voluntary changes in accounting principle
be recognized by including in net income of the period of the change, the cumulative effect of changing to the
new accounting principle. SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2005.

In June 2005, FASB ratified the consensus reached in the Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 04-53,
“Determining Whether a General Partner, or the General Partners as a Group, Controls a Limited
Partnership or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights” (“EITF 04-5"). EITF 04-5
provides a framework for determining whether a general partner controls and should consolidate a limited
partnership or a similar entity in light of certain rights held by the limited partners. The consensus also
provides additional guidance on substantive rights. EITF 04-5 must be applied no latter than the beginning of
the first quarter of 2006, based on limited partnership agreements in place at the time of adoption.
Management does not expect the adoption of EITF 04-5 to have a significant impact on the financial position,
results of operations or cash flows of the Group.

2 Selling, general & administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the twelve months to December 31, 2005, included
charges totalling $1,666 in respect of one-off termination benefits relating to involuntary employee termina-
tions pursuant to reorganizations of the Cronos marketing and operations structures. Management committed
to the plans and communicated the plans to the employees during 2005. The Group made total payments of
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$406 during 2005 leaving a balance payable of $1,260 at December 31, 2005. The termination charges did not
form part of the calculation of segment profit for any of the reportable segments.

3 Operating segment data

The Group’s fundamental business activity is the leasing of containers to ocean carriers. The Group’s
fleet of containers are either owned by the Group itself, or managed on behalf of US Limited Partnership
Programs, the Joint Venture Program or Private Container Programs (see Note la). As such, the Group
considers that its fundamental business equates to one industry segment, comprising four reportable segments
which are structured according to the different forms of funding entered into for its container fleet
acquisitions. The Group’s operating performance is reviewed and managed with respect to these reportable
segments which represent the different levels of profitability and risk to the Group.

Owned containers are financed by the Group’s own capital resources, debt facilities and capital leases,
and include new container equipment for resale. See Notes 1 and 10 for additional Managed Container
Program related disclosures.

All revenues and expenses that are specifically identifiable to the containers within each reportable
segment have been allocated to that segment and individual product revenues have been aggregated within the
reportable segments. Prior to December 2004, the US Limited Partnership Programs segment and the Joint
Venture Program segment were combined in a single reportable segment, Container Equity Programs, in
accordance with the aggregation criteria of SFAS No. 131 — “Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise
and Related Information” (“SFAS 1317). At December 31, 2004, the Joint Venture Program exceeded the
10% revenue threshold of SFAS 131 and accordingly was reported as a separate segment. Corresponding items
of segment information were restated for prior years.

No single customer accounted for 10% or more of total revenues in the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003.

The Group does not manage income taxes by reference to its reportable segments and thus the Group
evaluates segment performance based on income before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliate.
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Segment information is provided in the tables below:

us
Limited Joint Private
Partnership Venture Container Owned
Programs Program Programs Containers Total
Year ended December 31, 2005
Items directly attributable to segments:
- gross lease revenue ................... $ 23,512 $ 30,637 § 47,368 $ 37,507  $139,024
- direct operating expenses .............. (3,587) (2,119) (7,250) (5,135) (18,091)
net lease revenue ...................... 19,925 28,518 40,118 32,372 120,933
- direct financing lease income . .......... — — — 1,757 1,757
- payments to Managed Container
Programs ........................... (14,801) (26,025)  (36,177) — (77,003)
- container depreciation................. — — — (14,890)  (14,890)
- container interest expense ............. — — — (6,266) (6,266)
Segment profit .......................... $ 5,124 % 2493 0§ 3941 $ 12973 $ 24,531
Total assets . ... ..o $ 7772 0§ 43,041 $ 12,504 $208415  $271,732
Expenditure for segment assets ............ $ 74 $ 11,172 § 150 $ 69,385 § 80,781
US Limited Joint Private
Partnerships Venture Container Owned
Programs Program Programs Containers Total
Year ended December 31, 2004
Ttems directly attributable to segments:
- gross lease revenue. .. ................ $ 26,671 $ 16,349 § 47442 $ 41,634  $132,096
- direct operating €Xpenses ............. (5,012) {1,058) (8,359) {6,134)  (20,563)
net lease revenue. ..................... 21,659 15,291 39,083 35,500 111,533
- direct financing lease income .......... —_ — —_ 1,547 1,547
- payments to Managed Container
Programs .......................... (17.675) (13,963)  (36,323) — (67,961)
- container depreciation ................ — — — (17,716)  (17,716)
- container interest expense ............. — — — (5,076) (5,076)
Segment profit...................... . ... $ 3,98 $ 1328 § 2,760 $ 14255 $ 22,327
Total assets ...............c.c.vviiinn... $ 8542 $ 21,117 $ 11,519  $230,571  $271,749
Expenditure for segment assets . ........... $ 120 $ 368 §$ 219  $ 46,648 $ 50,673
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Us
Limited Joint Private
Partnership Venture Container Owned
Programs Program Programs Containers Total
Year ended December 31, 2003
Items directly attributable to segments:
- gross lease revenue .................... $ 26,558 $ 8,630 $ 44901 § 37,412 $117,501
- direct operating expenses ............... (7,162) (753) (10,704) (6,889)  (25,508)
net lease revenue ............ ... ..., 19,396 7,877 34,197 30,523 91,993
- direct financing lease income............ — — — 1,510 1,510
- payments to Managed Container Programs (15,969) (7,190)  (32,571) — (55,730)
- container depreciation.................. — — — (17,282)  (17,282)
- container interest expense .............. — — — (5,665) (5,665)
Segment profit .............. .. ... ... ... $ 3427 $ 687 § 1626 $ 9,086 $ 14,826
Total assets . ... .ot $ 8838 $12,830 § 11,096 $205,273  $238,037
Expenditure for segment assets ............. $ 73 $3573 §% 124 $ 18,880 $ 22,650

Reconciliation of total segment profit to income before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliate:

2005 2004 2003
Segment profit..................... P $ 24,531  $ 22327 $ 14,826
Equipment trading revenue ...ttt 2,210 4,698 4,991
Unallocated commissions, fees and other operating income .......... 3,622 2,047 2,131
Interest income . ... ... oot e 344 120 130
Equipment trading eXpenses ...........c.iieiriiiiiiiiiiieen., (1,978) (4,018) (4,600)
Amortization of intangible assets ............. ... ... .. . .. (188) (188) (188)
Non container depreciation .......... ..ottt (251) (277) (213)
Selling, general and administrative expenses ....................... (21,909) (18,834)  (15,791)
Gain on settlement of litigation. . ....... ... ... ... ... ... ... 1,333 — —
Recovery of amount payable to Managed Container Program ........ 703 — —
Recovery of related party loannote ............. .. ... ... ... ... — 1,280 —
Provision against legal claims .......... ... ... .. i ... (4,100) — —
Non container interest credit/ (expense) ...........oovviieeenn... 80 (102) (89)
Income before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliate........ $ 4397 §$§ 7053 § 1,197
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Reconciliation to total revenues:

2005 2004 2003
Revenues directly attributable to segments:
- gross lease TeVeNUE . . . . ...\ttt $139,024 $132,096 $117,501
- direct financing lease income ............cooveiiiiiii... 1,757 1,547 1,510

140,781 133,643 119,011
Other revenues: '

- equipment trading Ievenue ................oiiiiiiiiia 2,210 4,698 4,991
- unallocated commissions, fees and other operating income........ 3,622 2,047 2,131
~AMEETESE IMCOIMIE .\ o\ vttt ettt et e ettt e e 344 120 130
Gain on settlement of litigation.......... ... .. .. . i, 1,333 — —
Total TEVEIUES . . .ottt e e e $148,290 $140,508 $126,263

For the three years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2003, the Group recorded equity in the earnings
of the Joint Venture Program of $4,269, $2,883 and $1,499, respectively. The segment assets of the Joint
Venture Program included the equity method investment of the Group of $31,341, $15,339 and $8,570 at
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Each reportable segment derives its revenues from leasing different types of container equipment to ocean
carriers. Total revenues for these different types of equipment were:

2005 2004 2003
Dry cargo containers. . .....ouvunerie i $ 94638 $ 91,511 $ 80,773
Specialized containers:
- refrigerated containers ............. R 19,890 20,613 20,829
- tank CONTAINETS . . ...t 10,188 8,295 6,713
- dry freight specials . . ... ... 14,308 11,677 9,186
Gross lease revenue . ...... ... .. $139,024  $132,096 $117,501

Lease revenue is deemed to be earned based on the physical location of the containers while on lease.
Almost all of the Group’s lease revenue is earned on containers used by its customers in global trade routes.
Accordingly, the Group believes that it does not possess discernible geographic reporting segments as defined
in SFAS 131. However, based on the address of each of its customers, the Group estimates that gross lease
revenues for the years ending December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, have been generated by
customers located in the following regions:

2005 2004 2003

Europe ... . 42% 44% 43%
Australasia . .. ... e 37% 33% 36%
Other ... o 21% 23% 21%
Total. . oo 100% 100% 100%

The Company does not generate material revenue from external customers in its country of domicile,
Luxembourg.
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In the fourth quarter of 2005 the selling, general and administrative expenses included charges totaling
$463 in respect of one-off termination benefits relating to involuntary employee terminations pursuant to
reorganizations of the Cronos marketing and operations structures. There were no such charges in the fourth

quarters of 2004 or 2003.

At the beginning of the fourth quarter, the Group changed the straight line depreciation basis for tanks,
rolltrailers and flat racks from a useful life of 15 years with a 10% residual value to a useful life of 20 years with
a residual value of 10%. As a result of the change, net income increased by approximately $131 for the quarter.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, a provision of $4,100 was recorded in respect of legal claims that have been
made against the Group. See Note 17 for the detailed disclosure relating to this item.

In the fourth quarter of 2005 the Group reversed a provision of $422 that had been previously recorded as
a potential deferred income tax liability on unremitted retained earnings of certain subsidiaries. See Note 5 for
the detailed disclosure relating to this item.

S Income taxes

Income before income taxes and equity in earnings in affiliate comprises:

The provision (benefit) for income taxes comprises:

Current taxes:

US Federal . ...
US State . oot e

Total provision (benefit) for income taxes

2005 2004 2003

$1,159  $(1,437) $(2,416)
3,238 8,490 3,613

$4,397 $ 7,053 § 1,197

2005 2004 2003

$ 9§ 11 $ (5

5 (15) 93
968 706 760
982 702 848
(86) (25) 46

96 51 (41)

(128) 343 (2,347)
(118) 369 _(2,342)
$ 864 $1,071  $(1,494)

The Group has measured the differences between the provision (benefit) for taxes that would be
computed at the US statutory rate and the actual tax provision (benefit). The Company is based in
Luxembourg and is therefore not subject to income tax. However, the Group has used the US statutory rate to
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measure these differences due to the fact that it files annual financial statements as a US filer with the

Securities and Exchange Commission.

. 2005 2004 2003

Tax at US federal rate of 34% ... ..o e $1,495 $ 2398 $§ 406
Difference between US statutory rate and other taxed jurisdictions . ....... 334 467 (3,296)
US state taxes (net of federal tax benefit) ......... ... ... . ... .. ... 100 37 52
Effect of non-taxed income at US federal rate of 34% .................. (603)  (2,305) 482
Valuation allowance ............ . it (551) 547 983
O her L e e 89 (73) (121)
Actual tax provision (benefit) ........ ... ... $ 864 $ 1,071  $(1,494)

Temporary differences giving rise to the net deferred income tax liability as of the balance sheet date
were:

2005 2004

Assets
ACQUISTHON FEES . .. ittt et e e $ 533 $§ 591
Losses carried forward . . ... ... . e 1,278 1,661
Partnership income taxable in different periods for book and tax purposes .......... 1,038 789
Disallowed interest expense carried forward ........ .. ... . ... .. 1,234 1,230
Alternative minimum tax credit ... ... .. e 22 5
Other . o e 877 343
Valuation allowance . ... ... e (3,475)  (4,026)
Total deferred income tax assets .. ...... ..ottt 1,507 593
Liabilities
Depreciation . . ... e e 4,472 3,254
Unremitted retained earnings of subsidiaries .............. ... .. ... . . ... — 422
Total deferred income tax Habilities ........... ... ... i, 4,472 3,676
Net deferred income tax Habilities. ... .. .. ..ot e $ 2,965 § 3,083

Tax losses have arisen in certain US entities. As of December 31, 2005, the deferred tax asset associated

with these losses carried forward will expire as follows:

2006 . . e $ 76
2007 . o e —
2008 . e e 22
2000 . o 18
2000 . o —
2011 and thereafter ........ ... i 834
Total ... $950
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At December 31, 2005, the Group had net operating loss carryforwards available of approximately
$2,098, $2,630 and $1,151 for federal, state and foreign income taxes, respectively, to offset future income tax
liabilities. The expected tax effect of these losses is reflected as a deferred tax asset. A valuation allowance has
been established in the US subsidiaries since the realization of tax benefits of net operating loss carryforwards
is not more likely than not. The amount of the valuation allowance is reviewed on a quarterly basis.

The Group has previously recorded a provision for potential taxation on the unremitted retained earnings
of certain subsidiaries. Management considered the Group’s remittance intentions in arriving at the provision.
The provision primarily related to the potential withholding taxes applicable to the remittance of retained
earnings between a European based subsidiary and its European parent company. In December 2005, the
status of the parent company changed. As a result of this change, the European Union (“EU”) Parent/
Subsidiary Directive will apply to future remittances between the subsidiary and its parent. This directive
applies a zero tax rate to distributions from subsidiaries resident within the EU to parent companies also
resident in the EU. Accordingly, in December 2005, the Group reversed the related $422 deferred tax liability.

The Group will continue to monitor potential deferred income tax liabilities on the unremitted retained
earnings of subsidiaries.

6 Amounts due from lessees
a) Group as lessor

The Group earns rental income from leasing containers to ocean carriers under operating leases. The
containers are either owned by the Group or by Managed Container Programs (see Note 1) and the rental
income is included in gross lease revenue in the statements of income. The cost and net book value of Group
container equipment is detailed in Note 11.

Contingent master lease rentals approximated $73,459, $78,795, and $73,000 of gross lease revenue,
respectively, in the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

As of December 31, 2005, the minimum lease rentals receivable in future years under non-cancelable
term operating leases were:

20006 .. e e $ 50,793
2007 o e e 40,181
2008 L 31,203
2000 . e 19,406
2000 . 7,436
2011 and thereafter. ... ..o i e 3,785
Total . o e $152,804

Rental income from leasing containers owned by Managed Container Programs to ocean carriers was
$101,517, $90,462 and $80,089 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively (see
Note 3).

The Group previously also leased office space and earned revenue of nil, nil and $98 for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

F-23




THE CRONOS GROUP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(US dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
b} Allowance for doubtful accounts

The activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts was:

2005 2004 2003
Beginning of YEar ... ...ttt e $2,246 $ 2,296  $2,063
Provision for doubtful accounts . .......... .. ... ... 1,284 1,251 1,077
Write-offs, net of recoveries. . ...... .. . e (166)  (1,301) {844)
End of year .. ... $3,364 $ 2,246  $2,296

7 Net investment in direct financing leases

The Group, as lessor, has entered into leases that qualify as direct financing leases. The minimum future
lease rentals under these direct financing leases are due as follows:

Net lease Unearned Minimum future
receivables lease income lease rentals
December 31, 2005:
S 2006 . . 4,162 1,409 5,571
=200 e e 3,071 903 3,974
= 2008 L 2,735 483 3,218
=2009 . ... P 1,872 194 2,066
2010 . 838 28 866
Total . $12,678 $3,017 $15,695

8 New container equipment for resale

Activity during the year in new container equipment for resale was:

2005 2004 2003

Beginning of year ... ... . $ 17,116 $ 10816 $ 2,570
Container purchases .. .........vuieteein i, 107,587 89,618 47,054
Container disposals:

- sold to US Limited Partnership Programs ..................... (3,594) (3,239) —

- sold to the Joint Venture Program............................ (64,146) (61,698)  (37,751)

- sold to Private Container Programs ........................... (17,015)  (14,890) —

~-sold toother parties . . ........ it e (1,034) (3,413) (1,057)
Transferred to long-term ownership of container equipment .......... (772) (78) —
End of year . ... $ 38,142 $ 17,116 $ 10816

The Group purchases containers for resale to Managed Container Programs. These transactions are
entered into on normal commercial terms. All container equipment held for resale is held at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.
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9 Consolidation of variable interest entity

In December 2003, the Group adopted FIN 46R and determined that it was the primary beneficiary of a
variable interest entity (“VIE”) in which it held a 0.01% share, and accordingly the VIE was consolidated into
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The VIE was established as a container purchase company in
1996 and acquired $49,700 of containers from Cronos in a series of transactions in prior years. The variable
interests of the Group in the entity were comprised of a management fee, that Cronos earned in return for
managing the containers of the entity, a non-interest bearing loan note and an option to acquire 75% of the
container owning company, the exercise of which was subject to the repayment of certain of the indebtedness
of the VIE.

At December 31, 2004, the VIE held cash balances of $1,531, restricted cash of $500, container assets of
$21,901 (stated at net book value) and debt facilities of $20,880. In addition, the VIE held total amounts
payable to Cronos subsidiaries of $13,439 that were subordinate to the repayment of the VIE debt.

In February 2005, the Group acquired 100% ownership of the VIE. The debt held by the variable interest
entity was restructured on the same date. In connection with this restructuring, the Group issued a guarantee
for $10,000 of the outstanding debt and the lender cancelled an option to acquire 25% of the variable interest
entity. In addition, 200,000 warrants to purchase 200,000 common shares of the Company were cancelled
effective February 4, 2005. The outstanding debt was repaid in full on August 1, 2005.

10 Investments in related parties

2005 2004
Investment in Joint Venture Program ... ... ... ..ttt $31,341  $15,339
Other investments . ... ... ... i 17 25

Investment in unconsolidated affiliates ... ... ... .. ... . . $31,358  $15,364

Investments take two primary forms:

Under the first form, the investments comprise the Group’s equity interests as a general partner in six US
Limited Partnership Programs. In accordance with FIN 46R, the Company has determined that the six
Limited Partnerships qualify as variable interest entities. In each case, the Company has concluded that
neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries, is the primary beneficiary of any US Limited Partnership
Program.

The partnerships are all California limited partnerships managed by Cronos Capital Corp., a subsidiary of
the Company. Since 1979, sixteen public limited partnerships and one private limited partnership have raised
over $485,000 from over 37,500 investors. Eleven of the original seventeen partnerships have now been
dissolved.

These general partner investments are accounted for using the equity method. In the case of each
program, the investment from the Group comprises a nominal general partner capital contribution of $I,
representing total Cronos contributions of $6. Earnings in respect of the equity in the interests in the US
Limited Partnership Programs attributable to the $1 general partner capital contribution were immaterial in
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and were reported as a component of
“Payments to Managed Container Programs” rather than “Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates” due
to their immateriality.

The objectives of the partnership are to invest in marine cargo containers to generate continuing income
for distribution to the limited partners, and to realise the residual value of the container equipment at the end
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of its useful economic life or upon the dissolution of the individual partnerships. At December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively, the US Limited Partnership Programs had total assets of $84,303 and $107,298, and total
liabilities of $3,160 and $3,311. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the US Limited
Partnerships reported total revenues of $25,590 and $24,926, and net income of $5,661 and $198. The general
partner is indemnified by the partnerships for any liabilities suffered by it arising out of its activities as general
partner, except in the case of misconduct or negligence. As a limited liability partnership, the limited partners
may not be assessed for additional capital contributions and it is possible that the general partner could be
liable if the assets of the partnerships are not sufficient to pay their liabilities. However, the Group considers
that the risk of any such loss is not material. Therefore, the maximum exposure for Cronos to losses as a result
of its involvement with the US Limited Partnership Programs at December 31, 2005, and December 31, 2004,
was $2,847 and $3,114, respectively, representing the total amount due for management fees and other items
from the partnerships.

At December 31, 2005, the Group had investments in the following US Limited Partnership Programs:

% Investment

US Limited Partnership Program holding
IEA Income Fund XI, L.P. ... ... ... .. ... . . .. . .. . . e 0.003%
IEA Income Fund XII, L.P. .. .. e e 0.001%
Cronos Global Income Fund XIV, LoP. .. .. . e 0.002%
Cronos Global Income Fund XV, L.P. ... . . 0.001%
Cronos Global Income Fund XVI, L.P. ... .. . e e 0.003%
Cronos Containers Partners I, L.P. . ... . . . e 0.001%

Under the second form, the Group has a 50% equity investment in an entity known as the Joint Venture
Program, or CF Leasing Limited. The Joint Venture Program is a container purchase entity that was
established in 2002 to acquire and lease marine cargo containers to third parties. It is a bankruptcy-remote,
special purpose entity organized under the laws of Bermuda. It’s objective is to generate income for
distribution to the equity holders or for reinvestment in additional equipment and to realise the residual value
of the container equipment at the end of its useful economic life. The Joint Venture Program is accounted for
using the equity method. The Group has determined that the Joint Venture Program is not a variable interest
entity as defined by FIN 46R. At December 31, 2005 and 2004 respectively, the Joint Venture Program had
total assets of $259,241 and $130,545, and total liabilities of $196,557 and $99,865. For the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Joint Venture Program reported total revenues of $28,869 and $15,602, and
net income of $8,555 and $5,766. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, the carrying value of the
Group’s investment in the Joint Venture Program approximated its underlying equity in the net assets of the
program, The maximum exposure of Cronos to losses as a result of its involvement with the Joint Venture
Program at December 31, 2005 and 2004, was $31,660 and $15,505, respectively, representing the total of its
equity investment in the Joint Venture Program and the management fees due to Cronos from the program.
At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the retained earnings of the Group represented by unremitted retained
earnings of the Joint Venture Program were $9,595 and $4,668, respectively.
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The activity in the investment in unconsolidated affiliates was:

2005 2004
Beginning of year ... ... i e $15,364 $ 8,570
Investment in JOINt VENTUIES . . . .. o\ttt e i et et et 11,075 3,600
Equity in earnings of affiliates . .......... .. .. e 4,269 2,883
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements ...............c.cooivveenn. 650 311
End of year. ... .o e $31,358  $15,364

11 Container and other equipment

The activity in container equipment for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, was:
Cost

Balance, December 31, 2003 . .. .. $ 270,970

AdItIONS . .o 46,388

DaSposals . ... e (22,783)
Balance, December 31, 2004 . .. ... . e 294,575

AdditionS .. . e e 64,457

DaSPOSAlS ..t (161,551)
Balance, December 31, 2005 .. ..ot e $ 197,481

Accumulated depreciation

Balance, December 31, 2003 . ... ... . $ 115,466

Depreciation €Xpense .. ...ttt e 17,716

DHSPOSALS . ot e (5,191)
Balance, December 31, 2004 . ... ... i e e $ 127,991

Depreciation EXPeNSE . . ...ttt ittt 14,890

DISPOSALS . . (67,388)
Balance, December 31, 2005 ... e $ 75,493

Book value

December 31, 2005 . . ..ot $ 121,988

December 31, 2004 . . .. e $ 166,584

Container depreciation expense in 2003 was $17,282.

The Group recorded depreciation expense for other equipment of $251, $277 and $213 for the years

ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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12 Goodwill and intangible assets

The activity in the goodwill and intangible assets was:

Goodwill Patents Total
Cost
Balance, December 31, 2003 . .. ..ot $16,231  $2,096  $18,327
AddItIOnS . .. L — — —
Balance, December 31, 2004 . . .. ... e 16,231 2,096 18,327
AdItions . ... i e — — —
Balance, December 31, 2005 ... .. ... $16,231 $2,096  $18,327
Accumulated amortization
Balance, December 31, 2003 .. ... $ 5193 $1,375 $ 6,568
AMOrtiZation €XPEMSE . . ..\ v vttt e e e et — 188 188
Balance, December 31,2004 . .. ... ... . 5,193 1,563 6,756
AMOTtZAtION EXPENSE . ..ottt ettt e e — 188 188
Balance, December 31, 2005 .. ... .. o $ 5,193 $1,751 § 6,944
Book value
December 31, 2005 . .. . o e $11,038 $ 345 $11,383
December 31, 2004 . . ...t $11,038 $ 533  $11,571

The amortization expense in 2003 was $188.

i  Goodwill

Goodwill arose on the acquisition in 1990 of Intermodal Equipment Associates and the acquisition in
1996 of Intermodal Management AB.

SFAS 142 addresses the initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets subsequent to their acquisition.

SFAS 142 provides that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives will not be amortized, but will
be tested annually for impairment. Cronos conducts its impairment test in December of each year, and in
December 2005 concluded that the carrying value of goodwill was not impaired.

Prior to December 2004, the goodwill relating to the acquisition of Intermodal Equipment Associates,
with a book value of $7,209, was assigned equally across three reportable segments. At December 31, 2004,
the Joint Venture Program, which had previously been combined with the US Limited Partnership Programs
in the Container Equity Programs reportable segment, exceeded the 10% revenue threshold of SFAS 131 and
was accordingly reported as a separate segment. In accordance with SFAS 142, the goodwill that had been
assigned to the Container Equity Programs segment was reassigned between the US Limited Partnership
Programs and the Joint Venture Program segments.

At December 31, 2004, goodwill was assigned $400, $2,000, $2,400 and $2,409 to the US Limited
Partnerships, Joint Venture Program, Private Container Programs and Owned Containers reportable seg-
ments, respectively. This allocation remained unchanged in 2005.
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The goodwill relating to the acquisition of Intermodal Management AB, with a book value of $3,829 at
December 31, 2005, has been allocated to the Owned Containers reportable segment.

ii. Patents

The Group entered into agreements to acquire the patent rights relating to the CPC, the Slimwall CPC
and the intellectual property of Cargo Unit Containers Limited in August 1996 for a total consideration of
$2,096 from a third party (the “Seller”). In April 2000, the Group entered into another agreement with the
Seller which provided that, in consideration for the sum of $1,000, the Group would fully discharge any
liabilities for accrued royalties, acquire full right, title and interest that the Seller may have had to receive
royalties in the future and acquire all residual rights as the Seller had or may have had under the agreements.

In accordance with SFAS 142, patents are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
life to a residual value of nil in 2007. The estimated aggregate amortization expense for future periods is as
follows:

2006 . . 188
2007 . o e e N 157
Total ......oooevvi. R S $345

13 Hedging transactions and derivative financial instruments

The purpose of Cronos’ foreign currency hedging activities is to reduce the risk that sales transactions
that are denominated in non US dollar currencies will be affected by adverse exchange rate movements
between the US dollar and the sales transaction currency. During 2003, Cronos entered into foreign currency
forward contracts to reduce exposure to exchange rate risks associated with a Euro denominated sales
agreement. Each forward contract was designated a fully effective cash flow hedge as the critical terms of each
contract matched those of the hedged item. The changes in the fair value of the hedges were reported as a
component of other comprehensive income and were reclassified into earnings as equipment trading revenue
on the contracted performance dates of the sales agreement. The estimate of fair value was based on the
estimated replacement cost of each hedge. The final forward contract expired in June 2004. For the year
ended December 31, 2004, $325 was reclassified from other comprehensive income to equipment trading
revenue on the contracted sales agreement performance dates. The Group did not enter into any foreign
currency forward contracts in 2005.

Cronos does not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

14 Other assets

Other assets include the following items:

2005 2004
Unamortized loan origination fees . ........ ... .. .. it $1,276  $1,480
Prepaid EXPensEs . ..o v it e e 834 827
Deposits for leasehold properties and other items .............. ... ... iiiiiae. 286 254
Amounts receivable under equipment trading transactions .......................... 78 364
Sales tax receivables .. ... .. e 77 267
OtheT . o e 542 707
- 1 $3,093  $3,899
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15 Debt and lease obligations

As of December 31, 2008, the Group had $102,621 of term facilities (including capital lease financing)
under which $87,780 was outstanding and $2,018 of credit facilities under which $88 was outstanding. The
unused portion of the term facilities is available to fund the acquisition of container equipment and may
require a cash contribution from the Group of up to 25% of the cost of the new containers. Fixed and floating
interest rates under these facilities ranged from 4.0% to 6.8% at December 31, 2005. The terms of these
facilities extend to various dates through 20135. The rate of interest for the majority of floating rate facilities is
based on either a one or three month London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“Libor”) plus a margin. The size of
the margin is dependent on the financial institution and the nature, size and term of the facility.

All of the debt and capital lease facilities involve agreements between subsidiaries of the Company and
financial institutions. At December 31, 2005, the fair value of the facilities exceeded the carrying value by $97.
The estimate of fair value was based on borrowing rates currently available to the Group for debt with similar
terms and average maturities. The Company has provided parent company guarantees against all of the
outstanding debt and capital lease facilities at December 31, 2005. The guarantees provide that, in the event of
a default by the subsidiary, the Company will pay all amounts due under the agreements as they fall due. The
guarantees will expire on various dates through 2015. Based on December 31, 2005 interest rates, the
maximum potential amount of future payments for the guaranteed debt and capital lease facilities is $105,305.
The debt and capital lease facilities are secured by container equipment. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the
cost of the collateralised equipment was $166,544 and $277,049, respectively. The Group receives free and
clear title to the collateralised container equipment once all payments due under a facility have been made. In
the event that the Group cannot make the guaranteed payments, the financial institutions are entitled to
recover the collateralised equipment and either use the related cash flows or sell the equipment and take the
sales proceeds to discharge outstanding obligations of the Company. The Company considers that the cash
flows and/or sales proceeds generated by the collateralised equipment would be sufficient to cover outstanding
obligations.

Debt and capital lease obligations are comprised of:

Interest rate % at

2005 2004 December 2005/2004

Debt:

—floatingrate .. ....... ... ... . $54,065 $ 97,883 53-65/34-5.1

—fixed rate .. ... e 4,702 — 6.8/ -
Obligations under capital leases:

—floating rate . ....... .. .. e 26,300 26,130 40-64/37-51

-fixedrate ... 2,713 3,940 6.4/62-6.4
Total ... $87,780 $127,953
a) Debt

Bank loans, the majority of which have floating interest rates, have instalments payable through 2015.
The weighted average interest rates for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, were 6.2%, 4.5%
and 4.7%, respectively.

In September 2004, the Group negotiated an extension to a $70,000 revolving line of credit by an
additional year and agreed to repay the balance outstanding under the revolving line of credit, as of
September 23, 2005, over five years. In August 2005, the Group reduced the facility to $45,000 and extended
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the revolving credit period until July 2007 and unless extended on that date, agreed to repay the balance
outstanding over three years.

The primary facilities include financial covenants that are tested on a quarterly basis and measure
minimum tangible net worth, the maximum level of debt and capital lease obligations to tangible net worth
and interest expense coverage. At December 31, 2005, the Group was in compliance with each covenant. The
breach of a covenant constitutes an event of default.

As of December 31, 2005, the annual maturities of debt were:

20006 .. $ 5,790
2007 e 10,446
2008 . 10,343
2000 e 10,870
2000 L e e 14,633
2011 and thereafter. . ... .. ... .. . 6,685
Total . . $58,767

b) Capital lease obligations

The cost and net book value of assets acquired through capital leases were $46,306 and $35,290,
respectively, at December 31, 2005 ($42,776 and $33,563, respectively, at December 31, 2004). In addition,
the net investment in direct financing lease equipment acquired through capital leases was $3,147 and $3,376
at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

As of December 31, 2005, the minimum lease payments under capital leases were:

Principal Interest Total
2006 . . e $ 5,979 $1,465 $ 7,444
2007 o 6,431 1,113 7,544
2008 e e 4,285 807 5,092
2000 . 4,224 566 4,790
2000 L 2,745 371 3,116
2011 and thereafter. . ... o 5,349 367 5,716
Total . o $29,013 $4,689 $33,702

At December 31, 2004, the lease payments with current maturities under capital leases were $5,745.

¢) Operating leases — Group as lessee

The total fixed operating lease rental expense for container equipment, computer equipment and office
space was $4,454, $6,888 and $7,688 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have fixed operating lease agreement (the “Agreements”) for container
equipment with Private Container Programs. Under these Agreements, the fixed operating lease rental
expense was $3,664, $6,132 and $6,811 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Contingent rental expense for containers was $73,339, $61,829 and $48,919 for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These amounts are shown in the statements of income as payments to
Managed Container Programs and described in Note 1. The Company has provided parent company
guarantees for the $11,654 of minimum future lease payments outstanding under these Agreements at
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December 31, 2005. The Agreements provide that, in the event of a default by the subsidiary, the Company
will pay all amounts due under the Agreements as they fall due. The Agreements contain purchase options
which allow the Group to acquire the containers after a period of ten years.

As described in Note 6, the Group has entered into term operating leases with ocean carriers for
equipment that is owned by the Managed Container Programs. The minimum lease rentals receivable in
future years under these leases is $106,692. The amounts due to the Managed Container Programs will be
calculated by deducting direct operating expenses and the income due to Cronos for managing the containers
in accordance with the terms of the individual Agreements. No amount will be payable to the Managed
Container Programs if the ocean carrier fails to pay the future term lease rentals to the Group.

As of December 31, 2005, the total future minimum lease payments due, both under contingent rentals
and fixed operating leases were:

Fixed Total
Contingent operating minimum
lease leases lease
payments payments payments
2006 . $33,501 $ 1,313 $ 34,814
2007 26,295 1,313 27,608
2008 ... e 20,251 1,313 21,564
2000 L 11,480 1,313 12,793
2000 . 2,768 6,402 9,170
2011 and thereafter. . ......... .0 i 564 — 564
Total . .o e $94,859 $11,654  $106,513
16 Deferred income and deferred acquisition fees
Deferred income and deferred acquisition fees comprise:
2005 2004
Advance billings . . ........ ... . oo $4,363  $2,382
Deferred acquisition fees .. ............... ... ... ..... 3,321 3,343

$7,684  $5925

The recognition of deferred acquisition fees is not contingent upon the performance or continuation of any
of the Agreements to which they relate. On the termination of an Agreement, any deferred fees are recognized
immediately. As of December 31, 2003, deferred acquisition fees are scheduled to be recognized as follows:

2000 . $ 655
2007 L 548
2008 . 370
2000 e 296
2000 .o 227
2011 and thereafter. .. ... ... ... .. . . . . . 1,225
Total ... $3,321
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17 Commitments and contingencies

i. Commitments

At December 31, 2005, the Group had outstanding orders to purchase $29,429 of container equipment.

ii. Parent Guarantee under Agreements with Private Container Programs

The Company has provided parent guarantees for certain agreements between wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company and Private Container Programs. The agreements are in the form of a master lease and
provide that the subsidiary companies make payments to the Private Container Programs based on rentals
collected after deducting direct operating expenses and the income earned by the subsidiary company for
managing the containers. The subsidiary company is not liable to make payments to the Private Container
Program if the containers are not placed on a lease or if a lessee fails to pay the lease rentals.

At each financial statement date, the amounts due under the agreements are recorded as a liability and
disclosed under amounts payable to Managed Container Programs. The amount payable at December 31,
2005, was $6,395. The terms of the guarantees generally obligate the Company to ensure payments and other
obligations of the subsidiary companies are performed on a timely basis and in accordance with the terms of
the agreement.

The agreements with the Private Container Programs expire between 2006 and 2015. Should a default
occur, the Company would be required to make the contracted payments on behalf of the subsidiary
companies over the remaining term of the agreements or until such time as the default was remedied. Based
on the $4,134 earned by the Private Container Programs for the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company
estimates that the maximum amount of future payments for rentals collected after deducting direct operating
expenses and the income earned for managing the containers would be $58,723. The fair value of the
estimated amount of maximum future payments is $49,761.

iii. Guarantees under fixed non-cancellable operating leases

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have fixed operating lease agreements for container equipment with
Private Container Programs. The Company has provided parent company guarantees for the $11,654 of
minimum future lease payments outstanding under these agreements at December 31, 2005. The agreements
provide that, in the event of a default by the subsidiary, the Company will pay all amounts due under the
agreements as they fall due. The agreements contain purchase options which allow the Group to acquire the
containers after a period of ten years. The future minimum annual lease payments under the non-cancellable
operating leases are detailed in Note 15 — “Debt and Lease Obligations” herein.

iv.  Agreements with Private Container Programs — early termination options

Approximately 69% (based on original equipment cost) of the agreements with Private Container
Programs contain early termination options, whereby the container owner may terminate the agreement if
certain performance thresholds are not achieved. At December 31, 2005, approximately 41% (based on
original equipment cost) of total agreements with Private Container Programs were eligible for early
termination. Cronos believes that early termination of these agreements by the Private Container Programs is
unlikely.

v.  Agreements with Private Container Programs — change of control provisions

Approximately 61% (based on original equipment cost) of the containers subject to agreements with
Private Container Programs provide that a change in ownership of the Group, without the prior consent of the
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container owner, may constitute an event of default under the agreement. In substantially all of these
agreements, the consent of the container owners may not be unreasonably withheld. In the event that consent
is not obtained, the container owners may require the Group to transfer possession of 41% of the containers
under management to another equipment manager. Such transfer of possession may result in the Group
incurring certain costs. The remaining 20% of total agreements can elect for the Group to purchase the
equipment pursuant to the terms of their respective agreements, generally at a stipulated percentage
(determined by age of the equipment) of the original cost of the equipment.

vi. Joint Venture Program — change of control provisions

Under the operative documents governing the Joint Venture Program, certain changes in control of the
Group constitute an event of default, permitting the lenders to the Joint Venture Program to accelerate
repayment of the Joint Venture Program’s indebtedness. In addition, whether or not a change of control
constitutes an event of default, one of the agreements governing the Joint Venture Program provides that upon
a change in control of the Group, the parent of the Group’s joint venture partner (and lead lender to the Joint
Venture Program) may cause the Group to purchase the container assets of the Joint Venture Program at a
purchase price equal to their book value plus a premium of 10%, and to purchase all other assets of the Joint
Venture Program at their book value. In addition, at the election of the parent of the Group’s joint venture
partner (and lead lender), the parent may cause the Joint Venture Program to repay, in full, the Joint
Ventures Program’s outstanding indebtedness.

vii. TOEMT

Since the 1980s, the Group has managed containers for Transocean Equipment Manufacturing and
Trading Limited (“TOEMT (UK)”), an English company. A separate company by the same name was
registered in the Isle of Man (“TOEMT (Isle of Man)”). Both TOEMTs are in liquidation in England,
represented by the same liquidator, As disclosed in [tem 3 — “Legal Proceedings”, on December 13, 2004,
the liquidator filed an “ordinary application” (in the nature of a complaint) in the UK High Court of Justice
against the Company and two of its subsidiaries, Cronos Containers N.V. and Cronos Containers (Cayman)
Limited (collectively the “Respondents”). The liquidator alleges that the Respondents knowingly were parties
to the carrying-on of the business of TOEMT (UK) to defraud the creditors of TOEMT (UK) during the
period 1991 through 1999. The Respondents’ application to dismiss the liquidator’s application was heard by
the court on July 18-20, 2005, and October 4-10, 2005. On November 4, 2005, the court granted the
Respondents’ application in part and denied the application in part. On March 10, 2006, the court of appeal
granted in part and denied in part the Respondents’ application to appeal the court’s judgment. Pending
resolution of the appeal, prosecution of the underlying action is stayed. The estimate of possible losses ranges
from nil to $41 million, plus interest and costs. See Part I, Ttem 3, “Legal Proceedings”.

TOEMT Liquidator's Challenge to New York Judgment Deficiency. As the Group has previously
reported, the Group prosecuted claims aggregating approximately $2.3 million against Stefan M. Palatin, a
former chairman of the Group, in the UK courts, secured final judgments (the “UK Judgments”) against
Mr. Palatin in this amount (plus interest and costs), and, on June 25, 2004, secured an order of sale from the
High Court of Justice, London, England, of an estate beneficially owned by Mr. Palatin in Amersham,
England (the “Amersham Estate”). One of the claims the Company prosecuted to judgment against
Mr. Palatin arose from a judgment the Company’s subsidiary, Cronos Equipment (Bermuda) Limited
(“CEB”), had obtained from the Massachusetts Superior Court on May 8, 2001 (the “Massachusetts
Judgment”) against Mr. Palatin, Pursuant to the terms of the Massachusetts Judgment, the Massachusetts
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Superior Court ordered the cancellation of 1,793,798 outstanding common shares of the Company (the
“Palatin Shares”) held of record by Klamath Enterprises S.A. and beneficially owned by Mr. Palatin, and the
reissuance and delivery of the Palatin Shares to CEB. The Massachusetts Judgment was, in turn, obtained to
satisfy a default judgment secured by CEB against Mr. Palatin on February 8, 2000 from the Supreme Court
of the State of New York in the amount of $6.6 million (the “New York Judgment”). Approximately
$1.6 miilion of the $2.3 million in claims prosecuted by the Group against Mr. Palatin in the UK courts was
based upon the deficiency claimed by CEB under the New York Judgment after crediting the value of the
Palatin Shares against the amounts owing CEB under the New York Judgment (the “New York Judgment
Deficiency”).

Pursuant to the UK court’s order of sale secured by the Company, the Amersham Estate was sold on
January 31, 2005 for £3.4 million British pounds (at the then current exchange rate, approximately
$6.4 million). From the proceeds of sale, the Company retained amounts sufficient to satisfy the UK
Judgments, plus interest and costs. The balance of the proceeds (the “Amersham Surplus Proceeds™) from
the sale of the Amersham Estate were deposited with the court under the terms of the court’s order of sale.

The liquidator of TOEMT (UK) secured charging orders against the Amersham Estate, in satisfaction of
default judgments he had secured against Mr. Palatin, aggregating in excess of £3 million British pounds. The
liquidator asserted that, under his charging orders, he was entitled to the entire Amersham Surplus Proceeds.

On February 25, 2005, the Company, Austrian investment entities collectively known as “Contrin”, and
the liquidator settled their differences with respect to the allocation of the Amersham Surplus Proceeds,
agreeing to an allocation of such proceeds between Contrin and the liquidator (the “February 2005
Settlement”). The agreement was subject to approval of the UK court supervising the TOEMT liquidation.
Under the agreement, Contrin was allocated Amersham Surplus Proceeds in an amount sufficient to fully
discharge the Company’s remaining payment obligations to Contrin under the terms of a Settlement
Agreement entered into between the Company and Contrin on November 17, 2003 (the “Settlement
Agreement”). The Group reported the settlement in its 8-K report of November 17, 2003. On April 11, 2005,
the court entered its order approving the February 2005 Settlement. Accordingly, the Company’s financial
obligations to Contrin under the Settlement Agreement have been fully discharged.

By letter dated September 9, 2005 (the “Demand Letter”), the TOEMT liquidator has asserted that
CEB is not entitled to the proceeds from the sale of the Amersham Estate in satisfaction of the New York
Judgment Deficiency. The stated basis for the liquidator’s claim is that by the terms of the Massachusetts
Judgment the cancellation of the Palatin Shares fully satisfied the New York Judgment and that CEB was
therefore not entitled to any deficiency under the New York Judgment. The liquidator further alleges that the
valuation evidence relied upon by CEB to establish the value of the Palatin Shares for purposes of satisfying
the New York Judgment “suffered from serious shortcomings”, and that those shortcomings were not brought
to the attention of the UK court when CEB sought judgment from the UK court to satisfy the New York
Judgment Deficiency. The liquidator further asserts that CEB “must be taken to have known” that the
judgment and order of sale obtained from the UK courts to satisfy the New York Judgment Deficiency were
not validly obtained from the UK courts. The liquidator demands the payment of all monies secured by CEB
from the sale of Amersham and attributable to the New York Judgment Deficiency, which the liquidator
asserts is £0.9 million British pounds (stated to be the US equivalent of $1.6 million) together with interest of
8% per annum from February 1, 2005.

CEB has responded to the liquidator’s Demand Letter, rejecting his claims as wholly without merit and in
conflict with the February 2005 Settlement. If the liquidator files his claims in the UK courts against CEB, as
he has threatened to do, then CEB intends to vigorously contest them.
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viti. Provision for legal claims

As discussed in Item 3 — “Legal Proceedings”, the liquidator acting on behalf of the two TOEMT
companies has made a number of claims against Cronos. The Group understands that the liquidator has
acknowledged the claims of only one creditor (“MKB”) of the two TOEMT companies. MKB bases its claim
against TOEMT on one or more loan notes (the “Loan Notes”) purportedly issued by the TOEMT
companies. In December 2005, the Group entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”) with an independent
third-party (the “Third-Party”) under which it contracted to pay a maximum amount of $4,000 (inclusive of
related transaction costs) to the Third-Party to acquire the Loan Notes, in the event that the Third-Party were
to purchase the Loan Notes from MKB. The Group directed its bank to issue an irrevocable standby letter of
credit in the amount of $3,950 with an expiry date of March 15, 2006, (subsequently extended to March 31,
2006) in favor of the Third-Party and placed $3,950 on deposit with the bank as security for the letter of
credit. The expiry date under the Agreement was March 1, 2006 (subsequently extended to March 31, 2006).
In February 2006, the Third-Party advised the Group that MKB was prepared to enter into an agreement to
sell the Loan Notes to the Third-Party. On March 21, 2006, the Group acquired the Loan Notes for an
amount of $3,560 (inclusive of related transaction costs) and the issuance of a guarantee by the Group, for a
maximum amount of $435, under which the Group would be required to make a payment of up to $435 in the
event that MKB suffers a loss as a result of claims made by the liquidator of the two TOEMTs against MKB.

On March 21, 2006, the Group also acquired the claims of a potential creditor (the “Contrin Creditors™)
for an amount of $95. The Group understands that the Contrin Creditors had their initial claims rejected by
the liquidator in September 2005 but were allowed to submit reformulated claims in December 2005.

With the purchase of the claims of the only known creditors of both TOEMTsS, the Group intends to
pursue an end to the litigation brought by the TOEMT liquidator against the Respondents. The timing of the
termination of the liquidation and the winding-up of the two TOEMTs will depend upon the cooperation of
the liquidator. Accordingly, the Group is unable to predict when the winding-up of the TOEMT liquidations
and the termination of the litigation brought by the liquidator against the Respondents will occur.

In December 2005, the Group recorded a charge of $4,100 equal to the fair value of the costs associated
with the Agreement, the related guarantee, the purchase of the claim of the Contrin Creditors and the
estimated costs of establishing the position of the Group as the sole creditor of the two TOEMTs.

18 Common shares

2005 2004 2003
Common shares outstanding:
At beginning of yvear ... ... .. 7,269,349 7,260,080 7,360,080
New common sharesissued . ...... ... ... ... .. ... 138,610 9,769 —
Common shares held in treasury ..., — — (100,000)
Common shares retired ............ ... i — (500) —
Atendof year ... ... i e 7,407,959 7,269,349 7,260,080

On December 11, 1998, an option to purchase 300,000 common shares was granted to the chief executive
officer on his appointment (see Note 19).

On June 3, 1999, the 1999 stock option plan (the “Plan”) was approved by the Board of Directors. The
Plan authorized the issuance of 500,000 common shares to key employees (see Note 19). In 2005,
40,000 shares were issued under the Plan.
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In August 1999, the Company issued an additional 300,000 common shares and warrants to
purchase 200,000 common shares in connection with the Group’s refinancing of approximately $47,800 of its
short-term and other indebtedness. The warrants were exercisable at $4.41 per share and were due to expire on
the date that the amount borrowed under the associated refinancing was repaid. Using a Black Scholes model,
the fair value of the warrant was determined to be $246 and was credited to additional paid-in capital. The
corresponding debt discount was deferred and was amortized over the life of the associated refinancing using
the interest method. The warrants were cancelled in February 2005.

On October 29, 1999, a shareholder rights plan (the “Rights Plan”’) was adopted. Under the Rights Plan,
one common share purchase right was distributed as a dividend on each share of the Company’s common
shares as of the close of business on October 25, 1999. The rights will be attached to and trade with all
certificates representing common shares. The rights expire on October 28, 2009, and are redeemable by the
Company at any time prior to this date. The rights will only be exercisable on the acquisition by any person or
related group of persons of 20% or more of the Company’s common shares. The rights entitle the holder, with
the exception of the acquiring person or group, to purchase a specified number of the Company’s common
shares for 50% of their market value at that time. The rights will not be triggered if the Company’s Board of
Directors has previously approved such an acquisition.

On January 10, 2001, the non-employee director’s equity plan (the “Equity Plan™) was approved by the
shareholders. The Equity Plan authorized the issuance of 275,000 common shares to non-employee directors
(see Note 19). During the years ended December 2005 and 2004, 98,610 and 9,769 shares, respectively, were
issued under the Equity Plan.

At the annual meeting of shareholders of the Company held in June 2005, the shareholders approved an
extension of the grant of authority to the Board to repurchase common shares both in the open market and
through privately-negotiated transactions. The approval of the grant of authority was extended until
December 1, 2006. In December 2002, 12,000 shares were repurchased under the share repurchase plan at
$3.10 per share. In August 2003, 100,000 outstanding common shares were repurchased from a single
shareholder of the Company at a purchase price of $2.60 per share, or $260 in the aggregate. The cost of the
treasury shares has been disclosed separately as a deduction within shareholders’ equity.

In December 2004, the Company retired 500 shares that were issued under the 2002 employee stock
grant. The shares had been held by employees who had left the employment of the Group prior to the full
vesting of the stock grant (see Note 19).

On June 9, 2005, the 2005 equity incentive plan (the “Equity Incentive Plan”) was approved at the
annual meeting of shareholders. The Equity Incentive Plan authorizes the issuance of up to 300,000 common
shares, par value $2.00, that may be issued by the Company as non-vested shares or upon the settlement of
director’s stock units. On July 15, 2005, 37,000 non-vested shares were granted by the Company.

All 7,407,959 of common shares outstanding rank equally in respect of shareholder rights.

19 Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation comprises:

L 1998 stock option

In December 1998, the Company granted the chief executive officer of the Company, on his appoint-
ment, the option to acquire 300,000 common shares in the Company. The term of the option is ten years, and
may be exercised, in whole or in part, at any time from the date of grant. If the options are exercised, payment
for shares is to be made by cash, the surrender of the Company’s common shares already owned by the
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employee (valued at their fair market value on the date of the surrender), or an alternate form of payment as
may be approved by the Company’s Compensation Committee (the “Committee”). The number and price of
shares subject to the option will be adjusted in the event of any stock split, declaration of a stock dividend, or
like changes in the capital stock of the Company.

ii. 1999 stock option plan

The Plan authorized the issuance of 500,000 common shares and permitted the Company to award to key
employees incentive options and non-qualified stock options. The number of shares available for issuance
under the Plan may be adjusted in the event of any subdivision of the outstanding shares of the common
shares of the Company, the declaration of a stock dividend or like events. A total of 500,000 options were
granted under the Plan and the exercise price of each option was determined by the Committee on the date of
each grant. The exercise price of a stock option may be paid in cash or previously owned stock or both. The
options vested and became exercisable at the rate of 25% per year on the first four anniversary dates of the
grant. The options became fully vested on January 10, 2005. The term of each option is ten years.

iii. The non-employee director’s equity plan

The non-employee directors have participated in the Equity Plan in two ways: by electing to receive, in
lieu of the cash compensation otherwise payable to the non-employee director, an award of “Director’s Stock
Units”, and through the receipt of director’s options (‘““Director’s Options™) to acquire common shares of the
Company. A Director’s Stock Unit is defined as the equivalent of one common share of the Company. A total
of 275,000 common shares were made available for issuance under the Equity Plan, both to supply shares for
the settlement of Director’s Stock Units into common shares of the Company and for issuance upon the
exercise of Director’s Options. A total of 274,998 Director’s Stock Units have been issued under the Equity
Plan. The option may be exercised within 10 years of the grant date. The Director’s Options vested and
become exercisable over three years, with one third exercisable on the first three anniversary dates following
the date of the grant. The exercise price of each Director’s Option equals the average of the fair market value
of the common shares for the twenty trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the Director’s
Options. The options became fully vested on January 10, 2006.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the number of Director’s Stock Units awarded in lieu of
compensation and the related weighted average fair value was 15,999, and $3.34, respectively. At Decem-
ber 31, 2005 the weighted average remaining contractual life was 6.2 years. No Director’s Stock Units were
awarded in 2004 and 2005.

No charges were recognized for the Equity Plan for the years ending December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

iv. 2005 equity incentive plan

On June 9, 2005, the Equity Incentive Plan was approved at the annual meeting of shareholders. The
Equity Incentive Plan authorizes the issuance of up to 300,000 common shares, par value $2.00, that may be
issued by the Company as non-vested shares or upon the settlement of director’s stock units. On July 15, 2005,
37,000 non-vested shares were granted by the Company. The 31,000 shares issued to executive and senior
officers vest on the fourth anniversary of the date of grant. The remaining 6,000 shares issued to the non-
employee directors vest on the business day preceding the next annual meeting of shareholders of the
Company at which the term of the Participant as a director is to expire. The fair value of the grant was
determined to be $410, calculated at $11.07 per share, being the market value of the shares on the date of the
grant. Compensation expense of $94 was recognised for the year ended December 31, 2005. For 2006, three
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non-employee directors have elected to receive shares under the Equity Incentive Plan in lieu of
compensation.

v.  Stock grant

The purpose of the Company’s restricted stock grants, under which a total of 8,000 Cronos shares have
been authorized for grant, is to increase the number of sharecholders of the Company and to further align the
interests of the grantees with the interests of the shareholders of the Company. In December 2002, a total of
7,500 shares were granted to eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. The grant vested upon
the second anniversary of the grant and became fully vested in December 2004. No cash payment is required
of the grantees for the shares and, once vested, the shares are no longer subject to forfeiture. A grantee is
entitled to all rights of a shareholder of the Company during the time the shares are subject to forfeiture. The
fair value of the grant was determined to be $21 calculated at $2.80 per share, being the market value of the
shares on the date of the grant, and was amortized to income over the vesting period.

vi. Stock appreciation rights

On October 13, 1999, the Board resolved to grant stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) to a key executive
of 200,000 share units. A SAR is defined as the equivalent of one common share of the Company. The grant
of the SARs entitles the grantee to receive cash payments from the Company as provided for in the SAR
agreement. The SARs were granted at a grant price of $4.375 per SAR. As of the date of the award, the
closing price of the Company’s common shares was $4.875 per share. The SARs became fully vested in
October 2002. The SARs expire on October 12, 2009.

In accordance with SFAS 123, the compensation expense incurred in respect of SARSs is estimated using
the price of the Company’s common shares on the balance sheet date as a surrogate for the price on the date
of exercise. A liability is created for the estimated compensation expense and is adjusted up or down at each
balance sheet date for changes in the price of the Company’s stock. Compensation expense of $456, $1,085
and $103 was recognized for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. No SARs were
redeemed during the three years ended December 31, 2005.

Summary of Stock Option Activity Under All Plans

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding on January 1............. 980,504  $4.732 980,504  $4.732 . 980,000  $4.733
Granted . ....... ... ... . — — — — 504 $3.577
Exercised (retired) .................. (78,000) $4.591 — — — —
Outstanding on December 31.......... 902,504 $4.741 980,504 $4.732 980,504 $4.732
Exercisable on December 31 .......... 902,000 $ 474 913,918 $ 4.73 728,750 $ 4.71

For options outstanding at December 31, 2005, the exercise prices ranged from $3.58 to $5.25, and the
weighted average remaining contractual life was 4 years.
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In the case of share grants where the exercise price to be paid was less than the quoted market price of
the Company shares at the date of the grant, the Group recognized compensation expense of $nil, $3 and $12
during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 respectively.

vi. Fair value disclosures

-For the year ended December 31, 2003, the exercise price for the options granted was less than the
market value of the Company shares on the date of the grant. For such stock options, the weighted average
exercise prices was $3.58 and the weighted average fair values was $1.25. No options were granted in 2004 and
2005.

The weighted average fair value of options was determined based on the Black Scholes model, utilizing
the following assumptions:

2003
Expected teIm IN YEaTS. . . oo vttt et ettt e e e 10
Risk free Interest rate . .. ..ot e e 3.8%
VOlati ity ..o 11.7%
DIVIdEndSs . . .o e 0%

20 Restricted retained earnings

On an annual basis, Luxembourg law requires appropriation of an amount equal to at least 5% of net
income to a legal reserve until such reserve equals 10% of the stated capital related to the outstanding common
and preferred shares. This reserve is not available for dividends. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the legal
reserve exceeded the legal minimum by $328 and $378, respectively.

21 Related party transactions

The Group had the following transactions with related parties during the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively:

i.  On August 1, 2005, the Group sold $73,750 of container fixed assets to the Joint Venture Program.

Other related party transactions with the Joint Venture Program and with the US Limited Partnership
Programs are disclosed in the consolidated statements of income, in the consolidated balance sheets and in
Notes 3, 8 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

ii.  The Group has a 50% equity interest in an information technology company that was incorporated during
2004 and is located in India. During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Group paid the
company $251 and $2135, respectively, for software products and software development projects. The
information technology company reported a net loss of $39 and net income of $29 for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and had total assets of $79 and $89 as at December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

iii. During 2005 a non-employee director entered into an agreement with the Group for the management of
$110 of container equipment. The containers form part of the Private Container Program reportable segment.
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22 Quarterly financial data (unaudited)

Ist 2nd 3rd 4th
2005 quarterly financial data
Total revenues . ... vt vt e $36,534 $38,177 $36,663 $36,916
Net INCOMIE . . o vttt e e e e $ 3,629 $ 3,477 $ 2,193 $(1,497)
Basic net income per common share .................... $ 0.50 $ 047 $ 0.30 $ (0.21)
Diluted net income per common share .................. $ 0.46 $ 044 $ 027 $ (0.19)
1st 2nd 3rd 4th
2004 quarterly financial data
Total TEVENUES ...\ v vttt ettt $34,036 $34.027 $35,348 $37,097
Net INCOME . . oottt et $ 789 $ 2,070 $ 2,036 $ 3,970
Basic net income per common share . ................... $ 0.11 $§ 0.29 $ 028 $ 0.54
Diluted net income per common share .................. $ 0.10 $ 027 $ 0.26 $ 0.51
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of CF Leasing Limited:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of CF Leasing Limited (“the Company”) as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related statements of income and comprehensive income, cash flows
and shareholders’ equity for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our
audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Reading, United Kingdom
March 29, 2006
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents . .......... .t
Restricted cash . .. ...
Amounts receivable from arelated party ........ ... .. i

Net investment in direct financing leases, including amounts due within twelve
months of $7,800 and $4,125 respectively . ... ... i

Container equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $18,029 and $9,945
TESPECHIVELY . . oottt

OthEr BS80S . o\ttt it
Total assets .......... ...ttt JR
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Amounts payable to arelated party ... ... ...
Other amounts payable and accrued expenses ............c..ouiiinininnenn.n.
Loan notes issued to affiliate and other parties .......... PR

Total liabilities . ....... .. .. . . . .

Shareholders’ equity

Common shares, par value $1 per share (24,000 shares authorised, issued and
OULSTANAING) .« oot e et e e

Additional paid-in capital ........ ..
Accumulated other comprehensive inCOmMe . . ...,
Retained earnings. . .. ... . .

Total shareholders’ equity ........... ... ... .. ... . . . i

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ... ............ ... ... ... ... .. ...,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2005 2004
$ 4143 $ 2,015
2,834 946
7,502 2,736
28,919 17,641
210,652 104,506
5,191 2,701
$259,241  $130,545
537 226
437 256
195,583 99,383
196,557 99,865
24 24
43,469 21,319
1,761 462
17,430 8,875
62,684 30,680
$259.241  $130,545




CF LEASING LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(US dollar amounts in thousands)

2005 2004 2003

Container investment TEVEIUE . .. oo ottt it e et $25,940 $14,042 $7,184
Fees and other income . . ... . ..o 2,929 1,560 894
Total Tevenues . . .. .. ... 28,869 15,602 8,078
Depreciation. . . oo .ot 11,860 5,969 3,330
Selling, general and administrative expenses . .............c..covvuna... 142 164 90
TNEerESt EXPEISE . . o o ottt e e e 8,312 3,703 1,660
Total expenses .. ... .. .. .. . 20,314 9,836 5,080
Net IRCOME .. ... e e e 8,555 5,766 2,998
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements . .................. 1,299 624 (162)
Comprehensive INCOME . . . ...ttt ... $9854 $639 $2,836

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CF LEASING LIMITED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

(US dollar amounts in thousands)

2005 2004 2003
Cash flows from operating activities
NeEt INCOME . .o ettt e e $ 8555 $ 5766 % 2,998
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
-Depreciation .. ... 11,860 5,969 3,330
- Gain on disposal of fixed assets ...................... AN (406) (185) (17)
- (Increase) decrease in amounts receivable
mrelated parties . ... (4,766) {(1,386) (94)
-unrelated parties ... ... e 8,973 1,020 (1,055)
- Increase (decrease) in amounts payable to unrelated parties
-related parties . ... 311 47) 82
-unrelated parties .. ... ... ... 181 180 48
Net cash provided by operating activities ................ ... ..., 24,708 11,317 5,292
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of container equipment .............. . . i (122,454)  (49,644)  (38,253)
Investment in equipment acquired for direct financing leases ........ (20,226)  (12,760) (5,689)
Increase in restricted cash deposits....... ..., (1,888) (525) (201)
Proceeds from sales of container equipment ...................... 3,638 566 205
Net cash used in investing activities ............................ (140,930)  (62,363)  (43,938)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of termdebt ........... .. .. ... .. .. .. .. .. 96,200 44,541 32,640
Additional paidin capital...... ... ... . . 22,150 7,150 6,099
Net cash provided by financing activities ........................ 118,350 51,691 38,739
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents........................ 2,128 645 93
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ................... 2,015 1,370 1,277
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . .. ............. ... ... . $ 4143 $§ 2,015 $ 1,370
Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
SISt L L $ 7,557 $§ 3,380 § 1,433
Cash received during the year for:
C ATt L e $ 49 — —
Non-cash items:
- container equipment contributed as equity .................... — — $ 99
- container equipment transferred to direct finance leases ......... $ 1,216 $§ 353 —
- change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements ........... $ 1,299 § 624 5 (162)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CF LEASING LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(US dollar amounts in thousands)

Balance, December 31, 2002 ... .. S
Capital contributions ....................
Netincome .................oiiiin...

Reduction in fair value of financial
derivatives ........... ...,

Balance, December 31,2003 .. ............
Capital contributions ....................
Netincome ... ..
Increase in fair value of financial derivatives
Balance, December 31,2004 . . ... ... ... ...
Capital contributions ....................
Netincome .......oovvviinninnennennn.
Increase in fair value of financial derivatives

Balance, December 31,2005 ..............

Accumulated
Additional other Total
Common paid-in comprehensive Retained shareholders’
shares capital (loss) income earnings equity
$24 $ 7,071 $ 111 $ 7,206
7,098 7,098
2,998 2,998
L (162) (162)
$24 $14,169 $ (162) $ 3,109 $17,140
7,150 7,150
5,766 5,766
. 624 624
$24 $21,319 $ 462 $ 8,875 $30,680
22,150 22,150
8,555 8,555
. 1,299 1,299
$24 $43,469 $1,761 $17,430 $62,684
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CF LEASING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(US dollar amounts in thousands)

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies, all of which have been applied consistently throughout
the year, is set out below.

a) Nature of operations

CF Leasing Limited (the “Company’’) was incorporated in Bermuda on October 5, 2001. Its principal
activity is the investment in and leasing of marine cargo containers. From the date of incorporation until
September 17, 2002, FB Aviation & Intermodal Finance Holding B.V. (“FB Intermodal Finance™), formerly
MeesPierson Transport & Logistics Holding B.V. was the sole member of the Company. On September 18,
2002, Cronos Equipment (Bermuda) Limited (“CEB”) acquired 12,000 shares in the Company becoming a
50% equity holder.

The Company has éntered into a master lease agreement (the “Agreement”) with Cronos Containers
(Cayman) Ltd (“CAY”), an affiliate of CEB, whereby CAY will manage the containers under specific
guidelines provided for in the Agreement. Pursuant to the Agreement, CAY will perform or contract with its
related party, Cronos Containers Limited (“CCL") to perform all services related to operating and leasing the
containers, including the leasing, managing and re-leasing containers to ocean carriers. The Agreement
permits CCL to use the containers owned or leased by CAY, together with containers owned or managed by
CCL and its affiliates, as part of a single fleet operated without regard to ownership. CAY, CEB and CCL are
wholly owned subsidiaries of The Cronos Group.

The Agreement is in the form of a master lease whereby payments do not become due from CAY until
such time as the containers have been placed on lease to an ocean carrier. The Agreement contains leases
within the scope of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 13 — “Accounting for
Leases” (“SFAS 13”), and is accounted for as a lease under which the Company is lessor and CAY is lessee.

The Company finances the acquisition of marine cargo containers through equity contributions from FB
Intermodal Finance and CEB and under a syndicated loan facility for which Fortis Bank (Nederland) N.V.
(“Fortis™) acts as agent. FB Intermodal Finance and Fortis are ultimately equally owned by Fortis SA/NV, a
company incorporated in Belgium, and by Fortis N.V., a company incorporated in The Netherlands.

b) Basis of accounting

The Company’s accounting records are maintained in United States dollars and the financial statements
are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“US GAAP”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. The most significant estimates relate to the carrying value of equipment
including estimates relating to depreciable lives, residual values and asset impairments. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

¢) Leases

Operating leases. As mentioned under note 1a, the Company has entered into a master lease agreement
with CAY, whereby CAY will contract with CCL to lease containers to ocean carriers, principally as lessor in
operating leases. CCL leases-out containers to ocean carriers, under master leases, term leases and direct
finance leases.
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CF LEASING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(US dollar amounts in thousands)

Master leases do not specify the exact number of containers to be leased or the term that each container
will remain on-hire but allow the ocean carrier to pick up and drop off containers at various locations specified
in the lease agreement. Lease rentals, which are generally based upon the number of containers used by the
ocean carrier and the applicable per diem rate, are therefore all contingent rentals.

Term leases provide the ocean carriers with specified container equipment for a specified term. The
rentals are based upon the number of containers leased, the applicable per diem rate and the length of the
lease, irrespective of the number of days during which the ocean carrier actually uses the containers. Term
leases typically range from a period of three to five years.

The Company recognises container investment revenue based upon operating lease rentals from the
operating lease agreements between CCL and its various lessees less direct operating expenses incurred by
CCL and management fees due to CAY.

Direct financing leases with customers. The Company has entered into direct financing leases as lessor
for container equipment, which it owns. The net investment in direct financing leases represents the
receivables due from lessees net of unearned income. Unearned income is recognised in the Statement of
Income to give a constant return on capital over the lease term and is recorded as part of commissions, fees
and other operating income.

Direct financing leases are usually long-term in nature, typically ranging from a period of three to seven
years and require relatively low levels of customer service. They ordinarily require fixed payments over a
defined period and provide customers with an option to purchase the subject containers at the end of the lease
term. Per diem rates include an element of repayment of capital and therefore are higher than rates charged
under either term or master leases.

d) Fees and other income

This comprises income on direct financing leases, gains and losses resulting from the disposal of fixed
assets and other income.
e) Taxation

The Company is an exempt company as defined by the Companies Act 1981 (Bermuda), and
accordingly no income tax provision nor income tax disclosure is required.
) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company places its cash in short-term current and deposit bank accounts with original maturities of
three months or less. The carrying value approximates fair value.

g) Container equipment

Container equipment is carried at cost, adjusted for impairment, if appropriate, less accumulated
depreciation. Containers are depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows:

+ Refridgerated container equipment — over 12 years to a residual value of 15%
» Tanks, rolltrailers and flat racks — over 20 years to a residual value of 10%
* Dry cargo and all remaining container equipment — over 15 years to a residual value of 10%

On October 1, 2005, the Company changed the straight line depreciation basis for tanks, rolltrailers and
flat racks from a useful life of 15 years with a 10% residual value to a useful life of 20 years with a residual
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CF LEASING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(US dollar amounts in thousands)

value of 10%. This was in recognition of research conducted by the Company which provided additional
information about the estimated future useful lives and future benefits of the assets. As a result of the change,
net income increased by approximately $141.

h) Asset impairment

Container equipment is reviewed when changes in circumstances require consideration as to whether
their carrying value has become impaired, pursuant to guidance established in SFAS No. 144 — “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. Management considers assets to be impaired if the
carrying value of the asset exceeds the future projected cash flows from related operations {undiscounted and
without interest charges). When impairment is deemed to exist, the assets are written down to fair value or
projected discounted cash flows from related operations. The Company evaluates future cash flows and
potential impairment of its fleet by container type rather than for each individual container. Therefore, future
losses could result for individual container dispositions due to various factors including age, condition,
suitability for continued leasing, as well as geographic location of the disposal. Management also evaluates the
period of amortisation to determine whether subsequent events and circumstances warrant revised estimates of
useful lives. No impairment charge has been recorded for any of the periods presented in these financial
statements.

i)  Fair value of financial instruments

SFAS No. 107 — “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments” requires the disclosure of fair
value, to the extent practicable for financial instruments, which are recognised or unrecognised in the balance
sheet. Fair value of the financial instruments disclosed in the balance sheet is not necessarily representative of
the amount that could be realized or settled, nor does the fair value amount consider the tax consequences of
realization or settlemernt. For certain financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, and trade
receivables and payables, it was assumed that the carrying amount approximated fair value because of the near
term maturities of such instruments.

J)  Derivative financial instruments

The Company accounts for derivative financial instruments in accordance with SFAS No. 133 —
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”) as amended by
SFAS No. 137 and SFAS No. 138. SFAS No. 133 was further amended by SFAS No, 149 — “Amendment
of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 149”). SFAS 133 requires that
all derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value and that changes in the fair value
of derivatives are recorded each period in earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on the type of
hedging instrument and the effectiveness of the hedges.

The current risk management strategy of the Company involves the use of interest rate swap agreements
that are designed to manage interest rate risks created by the Company’s variable interest rate loan facility. All
such contracts are highly effective cash flow hedges since the terms of the interest rate swap agreements are
substantially similar to the hedged loan agreements and the book values of the derivatives are adjusted to their
fair market values at the end of each calendar quarter.

The Company evaluates all derivative instruments each quarter to determine that they are highly
effective. Any ineffectiveness is recorded in the statements of income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(US dollar amounts in thousands)

k) Translation of foreign currencies

The majority of the Company’s revenue is denominated in US dollars as are a significant proportion of
total costs, including container purchases. Accordingly, the functional currency of the Company is the US
dollar, the currency in which the financial statements are prepared.

Transactions denominated in other currencies are translated into US dollars and recorded at the rate of
exchange at the date of the transaction. Balances denominated in other currencies are translated into US
dollars at the rate of exchange on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are charged or credited
to the statements of income.

1)  Restricted cash

Under the terms of the facility, the Company is required to hold a minimum balance on deposit in its
restricted cash account. The minimum balance on the restricted cash account equates to one quarter of
interest on the outstanding principal balance of the loan notes issued to its affiliate and other parties. The
account would be utilised in the event that adequate funds were not available to meet the scheduled debt
service payments, or in order to pay fees in connection with the selection of a replacement manager in the
event of a default that is not remedied.

m) New pronouncements

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154 — “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — a
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3” (“SFAS 154”). SFAS 154 requires
retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of a voluntary change in accounting principle
unless it is impracticable. APB No. 20 previously required that most voluntary changes in accounting principle
be recognised by including in net income of the period of change, the cumulative effect of changing to the new
accounting principle. SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors in fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2005.

2. Net investment in direct financing leases

The Company, as lessor, has entered into various leases of equipment that qualify as direct financing
leases. The minimum future lease rentals under these direct financing leases, net of unearned income, are due
as follows:

Net Lease Unearned Lease Minimum Future

Receivables Income Lease Rentals
December 31, 2005
2006 ... e $ 7,800 $2,793 $10,593
2007 . 8,358 1,871 10,229
2008 . e 6,142 1,029 7,171
2009 . e 4,424 463 4,887
2010 . 2,195 258 2,453
Total. ... . e $28,919 $6,414 $35,333

3. Container investment revenue

Container investment revenue included $5,596, $1,376 and $1,000 of contingent revenue for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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CF LEASING LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(US dollar amounts in thousands)

As of December 31, 2005, the minimum container rentals receivable in future years on term operating
leases were:

2006 e $23,786
2007 e e 19,630
2008 e 14,879
2000 L 8,316
2000 e e 2,282
2011 and thereafter....... ... ... i e 556
Total . o e $69,449

4. Container equipment

Cost

Balance, December 31, 2003 .. ... . e $ 65,639

AdAItIonS . ... e e 49,644

DISPOSAlS L\ e e (832)
Balance, December 31, 2004 . . . ... ... 114,451

AdGIIONS . oo 122,454

DaSPOSAlS .. i e (8,224)
Balance, December 31,2005 . ................... O $228,681

Accumulated depreciation

Balance, December 31, 2003 . ... e $ 4,074
Depreciation EXPEMSE . . ..ot vttt et e e et e e 5,969

DaSpPosals ... o e (98)
Balance, December 31, 2004 . . ... . e 9,945

Depreciation EXPENSE .. ... vttt ittt e e e e 11,860

DISPOSAlS .\ ot (3,776)
Balance, December 31, 2005 .. ... $ 18,029

Book value

December 31, 2005 . ... $210,652

December 31, 2004 . . .. o $104,506

5. Other assets

Other assets include the following items:

2005 2004
Unamortised loan origination fees .............. ... ... ... .. .. . ... ... $3,418  $2,227
Increase in fair value of financial derivatives . .......... ... .. ... ... ... 1,761 462
Other . 1212
Total o $5,191 $_2_£_7£1_




CF LEASING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(US dollar amounts in thousands)

6. Debt

In June 2004, the Company amended its revolving line of credit and increased the maximum
commitment of the lenders from $80,000 to $150,000. The Company agreed to extend the facility by a year
and agreed to amortise the balance outstanding, as of June 135, 2005, over eight years. In August 2005, the
Company increased the maximum commitment of the lenders from $150,000 to $300,000 and extended the
revolving credit period to July 31, 2006 and unless extended on that date, agreed to repay the balance
outstanding over ten years. As of December 31, 2005, $195,583 was outstanding under the facility. The unused
portion is available to fund the acquisition of container equipment and may require a cash contribution from
each of the Company’s equity holders of up to 10% of the cost of the new container. The rate of interest on this
facility is based on an adjusted London Inter Bank Offered Rate (“Libor”) plus a margin. The size of the
margin is dependent on the length of time the facility has been in use and on the amount outstanding. The
terms of the facility require the Company to enter into interest rate swap agreements (see note 7) to convert
floating interest rates into fixed rates and thereby manage its exposure to fluctuations in future interest rates.
Amounts due under this facility are secured against container equipment. At December 31, 2005 and 2004 the
Company had collateralised equipment at a cost of $228,681 and $114,451 and receivables from investments
in direct finance leases of $28,919 and $17,641 respectively, against its debt. The average interest rate under
this facility was 5.3% and 3.6% for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. At
December 31, 2003, the fair value of the facility exceeded the carrying value by $1,761. The estimate of fair
value was based on borrowing rates currently available to the Company for debt with similar terms.

The Company has issued loan notes to Fortis and to other banks under this loan facility for which Fortis
acts as agent. The amount outstanding under the loan notes held by Fortis was $57,045 and $34,291 at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Debt is comprised of:
Interest Rate % at

2005 2004 December 31, 2005/2004
Floating rate debt ................ ... ... .. $ 98,372 $22,077 6.0/3.4
Fixed rate debt (seenote 7) ................. 97,211 77,306 3.9-6.3/3.8-5.7
Totaldebt ........ ...t $195,583 $99,383

2006 i $ 16,339
2007 o 19,035
2008 e e e 19,035
2000 L e e 19,035
2000 . 19,035
2011 & thereafter ... oot e 103,104
TOtal . . e $195,583

7. Derivative accounting policies

The Company has adopted SFAS 133 as amended, which requires that all derivative instruments be
recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each
period in earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on the type of hedging instrument and the
effectiveness of the hedges.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(US dollar amounts in thousands)

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Company must designate the derivative instrument as a
fair value hedge, a cash flow hedge or the hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. The Company has
designated its derivative financial instruments as cash flow hedges and tested the effectiveness of these
instruments at inception. Thereafter, effectiveness testing is performed quarterly.

The Company’s risk management strategy includes utilising derivative financial instruments (in the form
of interest rate swap agreements), which effectively convert floating interest rates into fixed rates and thereby
manages its exposure to fluctuations in future interest rates.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had entered into sixteen interest rate swap agreements with a
financial institution for which the notional balance was $97,211. These agreements are used by the Company
to manage interest rate risks created by its variable interest rate loan facility. These agreements terminate at
various dates during the period 2006 to 2012. The Company has concluded that these agreements perfectly
match the interest payments due on the loan facility to which they relate, and are therefore considered perfect
hedges.

At December 31, 2003, the unrealised gain on these cash flow hedges of $1,761 was recorded as other
comprehensive income. Management estimates that approximately $475 of the accumulated other compre-
hensive income will be reclassified into the statement of income within the next twelve months.

8. Related party transactions

The Company had the following transactions with related parties during the year ended December 31,
2005, and 2004, respectively:

2005 2004
Container acquisitions:
S CAY $ 63,175  $61,698
-G 73,750 —
Total ... $136,925  $61,698

During the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the statements of income of the Company
included the following transactions with related parties:

2005 2004 2003
Container investment revenue earned from CAY .............. $25,940 $14,042 $7,184
Fortis interest expense (acting as agent for the loan facility) . ... 8,312 3,703 1,660
Total . o $34,252 $17,745  $8,844

9. Amounts receivable from a related party

The Company had amounts receivable for container investment revenue from CAY of $7,502 and $2,736
at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

10. Amount payable to a related party

In addition to the loan notes payable to Fortis (see Note 6), the Company had amounts payable to Fortis
for interest expense of $537 and $226 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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